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0.5 1.0 0.40 0.09 0.52
1.0 2.0 0.425 0.10 0.545
2.0 0.45 0.10 0.57
0.02
2020 31 1,038,060.08
237,213.85 1,215,131.51
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO

PIMCO
0.05

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

2,053,541.41
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OECD

CRS

OECD

2014 10 29
CRS CRS
MCAA
60 2016
CRS

HMRC

HVMRC

HMRC

FATCA

FATCA
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2020

19,580 4.55
17,377 4.04
5,560 1.29
4,630 1.08
3,130 0.73
1,367 0.32
234 0.05
144,288 33.54
36,281 8.43
34,108 7.93
7,895 1.84
6,963 1.62
5,582 1.30
4,574 1.06
4,046 0.94
3,278 0.76
3,052 0.71
2,991 0.70
2,491 0.58
2,306 0.54
2,000 0.46
1,667 0.39
1,412 0.33
1,308 0.30
980 0.23
899 0.21
797 0.19
786 0.18
601 0.14
512 0.12
507 0.12
452 0.11
202 0.05
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16,741 3.89
4,462 1.04
3,997 0.93
2,570 0.60

996 0.23
803 0.19
202 0.05
19 0.00
15 0.00
1 0.00

32,685 7.60

25,754 5.99
3,424 0.80
1,074 0.25

407 0.09
7,403 1.72
2,268 0.53
1,012 0.24

13,357 3.10

24,249 5.64

636 0.15

16 0.00

463,915 107.84

33,716 7.84
430,199

45,326 100.00
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30
2020
1 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.750 | 2028 15 15,294,390 15,218,544 16,835,412 3.91
2 |Treasury Inflation Protected Securities 0.375 | 2025 15 7,171,581 7,074,795 7,413,723 1.72
3 |Canada Government Bond 1.500 | 2022 7,240,299 10,000,000 7,402,945 1.72
4 |Central Nippon Expressway Co. Ltd. 0.852 | 2022 15 7,000,000 7,000,000 6,939,132 1.61
5 |HSBC Holdings PLC 1.386 | 2024 18 5,500,988 5,500,000 5,434,971 1.26
6 |TD Securities USA LLC 0.110 | 2020 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 1.16
7 |Ripon Mortgages PLC 1.056 | 2056 20 4,741,218 3,839,803 4,708,669 1.09
8 |BAT Capital Corp. 1.272 | 2022 15 4,813,681 4,800,000 4,701,028 1.09
9 |Dell International LLC 4.420 | 2021 15 4,355,520 4,300,000 4,381,400 1.02
10 |Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC 3.937 | 2021 4,400,000 4,400,000 4,291,483 1.00
11 |Occidental Petroleum Corp. 1.842 | 2022 15 4,596,765 4,900,000 4,289,278 1.00
12 |Sabine Pass Liquefaction LLC 5.625 | 2021 4,147,228 4,100,000 4,181,959 0.97
13 |QNB Finance Ltd. 1.281 | 2022 12 4,022,791 4,100,000 4,069,308 0.95
14 |Shell International Finance BV 2.340 | 2021 19 3,940,711 4,000,000 3,966,656 0.92
15 |JPMorgan Chase & Co. 2.250 |2023 10 24 3,938,277 3,900,000 3,911,234 0.91
16 |Volkswagen Group of America Finance LLC 2.064 | 2021 24 3,905,120 3,900,000 3,845,265 0.89
17 |Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. 1.781 | 2022 25 3,736,138 3,750,000 3,725,280 0.87
18 |Charter Communications Operating LLC 2.337 | 2024 3,737,085 3,700,000 3,668,015 0.85
19 |Finsbury Square PLC 0.000 | 2070 16 3,930,450 3,000,000 3,660,490 0.85
20 |Daimler Finance North America LLC 1.211 |2021 11 3,706,881 3,700,000 3,594,490 0.84
21 |Athene Global Funding 2.667 | 2022 3,681,691 3,650,000 3,576,860 0.83
22 |Mizuho Financial Group, Inc. 0.990 | 2024 25 3,702,627 3,700,000 3,568,772 0.83
23 |Freddie Mac 2.500 | 2048 10 25 3,521,792 3,484,283 3,547,293 0.82
24 |ORIX Corp. 2.650 | 2021 13 3,438,032 3,450,000 3,470,915 0.81
25 |Evans Grove CLO Ltd. 1.291 | 2028 28 3,328,617 3,371,185 3,291,422 0.77
26 |Enbridge, Inc. 0.881 | 2022 18 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,246,161 0.75
27 |ATET, Inc. 1.964 | 2024 12 3,304,998 3,300,000 3,233,473 0.75
28 |Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC 1.862 | 2023 15 3,169,959 3,150,000 3,106,300 0.72
29 |Bumper UK Finance PLC 0.666 |2028 12 20 3,183,625 2,500,000 3,074,860 0.71
30 |Broadcom, Inc. 3.125 | 2021 15 3,021,484 3,000,000 3,023,056 0.70

2020

2020
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2020

2017 31 24,770,876 2,609,859 101.50 10,694
2018 a1 52,767,817 5,559,617 103.03 10,855
2018 31 109,790,959 11,567,575 104.87 11,049
2020 a1 194,300,838 20,471,536 106.12 11,181
2019 115,554,265 12,174,797 105.46 11,111
10 116,122,230 12,234,638 105.53 11,119

11 122,707,446 12,928,457 105.72 11,139

12 150,999,980 15,909,358 105.88 11,156

2020 178,160,840 18,771,026 106.52 11,223
193,966,152 20,436,274 106.81 11,254

193,837,931 20,422,764 103.64 10,920

193,578,223 20,395,402 105.24 11,088

195,216,953 20,568,058 106.12 11,181

192,428,726 20,274,291 107.35 11,310

193,335,050 20,369,781 107.57 11,334

203,503,367 21,441,115 107.73 11,350
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2017 a1 2,351,943,111 10,061
2018 a1 8,298,729,600 10,050
2019 a1 9,299,823,921 9,987
2020 a1 6,173,046,183 9,902
2019 8,328,987,906 9,966
10 8,284,319,172 9,952

11 7,389,609,231 9,958

12 7,247,704,039 9,948

2020 7,137,282,572 9,992
7,069,796,140 10,007

6,285,403,551 9,688

6,265,826,116 9,822

6,172,979,211 9,902

6,306,155,443 10,013

5,946,070,926 10,030

5,950,763,324 10,043
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2017 31
2018 31
2019 31 53,255,585 4,127,308 100.57 7,794
2020 31 67,759,817 5,251,386 100.86 7,817
2019 66,740,867 5,172,417 100.77 7,810
10 64,589,839 5,005,713 100.71 7,805
11 64,905,919 5,030,209 100.83 7,814
12 65,446,028 5,072,067 100.90 7,820
2020 66,499,370 5,153,701 101.46 7,863
72,191,040 5,594,806 101.71 7,883
71,677,577 5,555,012 98.53 7,636
71,225,750 5,519,996 100.03 7,752
67,759,080 5,251,329 100.86 7,817
63,624,439 4,930,894 102.02 7,907
63,190,667 4,897,277 102.20 7,921
62,754,719 4,863,491 102.34 7,931
1.50
1.51
1.79

1.19

100

100
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0.61

0.11

0.63

0.85

100

10,000

0.57

0.29

100

100
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319,663.840 75,612.492 244,051.348
(319,663.840) (75,612.492) (244,051.348)
474545275 206,442.167 512,154.456
(474,545.275) (206,442.167) (512,154.456)
1,122,566.281 587,802.245 1,046,918.492
(1,122,566.281) (587,802.245) (1,046,918.492)
1,501,616.986 717,612.501 1,830,922.977
(1,501,616.986) (717,612.501) (1,830,922.977)

316,834.453 83,074.972 233,759.481
(316,834.453) (83,074.972) (233,759.481)
810,474.837 218,499.580 825,734.738
(810,474.837) (218,499.580) (825,734.738)
617,414.043 511,980.377 931,168.404
(617,414.043) (511,980.377) (931,168.404)
98,733.129 406,489.661 623,411.872

(98,733.129)

(406,489.661)

(623,411.872)

) ) )

) ) )
530,693.000 1,162.000 529,531.000
(530,693.000) (1,162.000) (529,531.000)
312,815.000 170,511.000 671,835.000

(312,815.000)

(170,511.000)

(671,835.000)
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4.7

10

4.7

USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank

Secrecy Act
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60
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NYSE
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BMA
BMA

2001 100

31

5,000 1972 Exchange Control

Act 1972 BMA

75

100
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2018 2019 31
2019 2020 31

131

23 103

2020 31 UFJ
105.36 77.50
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2020 31

2020

TBA

TBA

31

463,931
0

565
1,289
1
4,670
26
1,603
0
25,176
2,958
1,479

501,698
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48,880

60
136

492
169
2,653

312
156

35,587
0

697
2,284
3,948

25,097
1,020
2,653

0
93
0
0
21
99
0

52,859

71,499

3,749

73
241
416

2,644
107
280

10

10

430,199

7,533
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467,651 49,272
0 0
24 3
(16) (2)
5,000 527
44,979 4,739
57,298 6,037
194,301 20,472
672
623
1,831
66.95 7,054
100.86 7.817
91.91 9,684
9,902
106.12 11,181

107/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31

13,003 1,379
0 0
13,003 1,379
178 19
246 26
614 65

0 0

225 24
225 24
765 81

0 0

41 4

56 6
140 15
1,945 205
108 11
4,543 479
8,550 901
5,078 535
0 0
(7.728) (814)
4,208 443
(356) (38)
1,202 127
(5.170) (545)
0 0
2,697 284
(7.,038) (742)
14 1
(9,497) (1,001)
(8,295) (874)
255 27
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2020 31
8,550 901
1,202 127
(9,497) (1,001)
255 27
0 0
- 44,274 4,665
44,529 4,692
385,670 40,634
430,199 45,326
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2020 31
255 27
(851,077) (89, 669)
871,206 91,790
(19,507) (2,055)
19,502 2,055
(19,178) (2,021)
(5.072) (534)
4,188 441
(547) (58)
583 61
TBA (194) (20)
751 79
(3.569) (376)
(4,042) (426)
TBA (2,091) (220)
(48) ®)
(3,620) (381)
30 3
0 0
0 0
7 1
26 3
(69) )
0 0
(84) ®
(5,078) (535)
7,728 814
(4,208) (443)
5,170 545
(2,697) (284)
7,038 742
363 38
219 23
(4,015) (423)
234,894 24,748
(188,814) (19,893)
3,209,370 338,139

(3,225,419) (339, 830)
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4,547,788 479,155
(4,573,808) (481,896)
4,011 423
) 0
31 3
27 3

1,993 210
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2020 31

69.68 7,341
©) 1.17 123
(3.90) (411)
(2.73) (288)
66.95 7,054
(b) (3.92)
©) 0.29
44,979 __ 4739
1.52
1.04
1.74

0.01
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2020 31

91.98 9,691
(@) 2.07 218
(2.14) (225)
(0.07) )
91.91 9,684
(b) (0.08)
© (0-85)
57,298 6,037
1.26
0.77
2.25

0.01

113/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31

104.87 11,049
() 1.51 159
(0.26) @7
1.25 132
106.12 11,181

O 1.19
194,301 20,472

1.56

1.08

1.43

0.01
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US GAAP
US GAAP
US GAAP
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FASB LIBOR
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US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP
US GAAP
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US TIPS

125/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CMO
CMo
CMo
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SMBS 10
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138/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

250,000
TBA
CFTC FCM
FCM
FCM
1SDA
1SDA
1SDA

1SDA

139/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

140/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.236
0.236
045 () g5 €D 0.02 0.33 ()
045 () g5 €D 0.02 0.33 ()
0.35 ) 0.08 () g3 ()
0.35 @O 0.08 @V g3 @2
0.35 @ 0.08 9 g3 @9
0.45 10 0.40 10
0.35
5,000
0.25 5,000 0.20
0.15
0.23 10 0.28 10
0.33
0.45 10 0.40 10
0.35
5,000
0.25 5,000 0.20
0.15
0.23 10 0.28 10
0.33
0.0 0.35 0.0
0.5 0.375 0.5
1.0 0.40
1.0 2.0 0.425

2.0 0.45
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2.0
10
0.35
0.375
0.40
0.425
0.45
11
0.08
0.085
0.09
0.10
0.10
12
0.32
0.42
0.52
0.545
0.57
13
0.35
0.375
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0.32
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2.0
0.0
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PIMCO
PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
0.05
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 31 PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 31
0 2,959
0 1,622
15,038 59,632
1,105 0
543 0

68,085 73,763
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JITF
2020 31 2020 31 2020 31 2020 31
23 2,366 15 1,577 684 27,407
6,157 102,829
@yl 4,242) enl @.82n) @72)|  (30,141)
12,973)|  (216,161)
as)|  (@.87) anl  @,250) @8 @730  (6,816) (113,332)
2020 31 2020 31 2020 31 2020 31
154 9,677 100 1,098 124 2,348
169 6,856
18 1,475
20 1,424
23 1,366
227 3,348
59 1,986
(202) (12,746) ©D| (1,019) @188)  (3,424)
247) (9,673)
(O] (412)
34 (2.349)
7 (2,823)
4,679  (77.821)
(83) (2,820)
48) (3,069) 4,578)  (79,407) 9 79 65| (@,076)

2020 31

313 21,393

3740 | 37,767

49 4,627
18 1,758
99 9,049

1,502 158,694
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ar) | @i,370)

5P| (5,395
(606) | (56.314)
@y | @.osn
@07y | (37,290)
(718) | (75.588)

368 44,274
2019 29 2020 31
13
14
US GAAP
2020 31
2020 31
15
2020

147/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31

SN EfEE
{FHRLE) { T HAE)

AT ERRE A 107, %

O 005 due 05273021 ] plan 1] i 2040
AerCap Ireland Caplital DAC

4. 4505 due 12/16/2021 L] 35
4. 500 due 06,715/ 2021 L, T} L, 637
A B25% due 10,/30,/3020 4 b
AIA Group Lid

L. G3EN due 06,30,/ 3021 1. 700 1. 678
Afr Lease Corp.

5000 due 0G,/00/2021 ) 22
<o 700 due 001552023 FLL 61
3. 500% due 00/15/2022 700 L]
Alrcastle Led

51058 due 0G/15/2021 1. 700 1. &7
Allstate Corp.

005N due O6,30,/3003 O it
Ally Financial, Inc.

4. 250% due D4/15/2021 1 111
7. 5000 due %015,/ 2020 (1] 6OT
Amorican Tower Corp.

b 3TER due 06,15,/ 3024 41} 32
Aozora Bank Ltd.

G BTN due 0807/ 2021 TO0 izl
Athene Global Funding

L. 66T due 0701022 & 650 & BTT
Avolon Holdings Funding Ltd

o HTE% due 027152025 (EL1] 160
5. 500% due O/ 152023 00 55
Banco Santander Chile

15718 due 11/25/2021 5 THE
Bank of Aserica Corp.

& 083% due 1000073021 00 T
o L0 e 0G06/ 2024 L 2} L 479
Barclays Bank PLC

1. TT1% due OF 1072021 HK SO0
Barclays PLC

<. 008N due 08 10/3021 1. 420 L
EowIe% due 00710/ 2023 2, 500 L i
BOC Aviation Led

1. Gl due 060275021 1, 2} 1. 184
2.375% due 0915/ 2021 B T} L. 700
X To0% due 057 18/ 2022 plai i} 200
Baston Properties LFP

i F25% due 061573021 500 sk
Brizsor Operating Partnership LP

1. T3% due 020075022 1, i} w2
Citibank H. A

O 97T% due 05,700,/ 2022 400 3o
Citigroup, Inc.

L ATE% due 06,007/ 3024 0 byt 5}
L A86% due 0617/ 3024 o 100} L. 079
1. THO due 06,00 /502 1, 3} 1. 306
1970 due 0724/ 2025 1. D} L. 489
Conparatieve Rabobank UA

1. T91% due 001073025 2, [} 1991
Credit Suisse Group AG

2 02A% due 061273024 b, D} agd
Credit Suisse Group Funding Guoernsey Lid.

& 4500 due 416/ 3021 LY al2
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2020 31

T B

{FHLge) {FHk{}
Danske Bank A/S
L8445 due 06,712/3023 3 S0 3 83
2. B00% due 06102021 ) 811
3. 001% due 0630,/ 3002 L 606
DS Group Holdings Ltd
L G11% due OF25,/3022 I, 500 L 410
DB Bamk ASA
. SGA% e 127022022 1] 'ELrg
First Abu Dhabi Bank FJSC
1N due D416,/ 3022 3. N} L) |
Goldsan Sachs Group, Inc.
1. B62% due 11,/15,/3021 1, 3k 1. 303
E020% due OF 2452023 A 307
L1001 due 0436,/3022 O FLH |
L351% due DM/2E/2021 500 50d
Goodsan 1L 5. Finance Tws LLC
B 000% due 06,722/ 2022 500 531
Hitachi Capital UK FLC
L. 06T% due 11,/30,/2020 2. G} L 607
HSHC Haldings PLC
L3654 due 06182004 (1) B, 5 5 435
LoABN due 0691053021 £, ) £ 001
ICICI Bank Ltd
3 105N due 083/12/3020 L. D} 1. 002
ING Groep WY
2451% due 1002/ 2023 HX 245
L525% due 0G0 H002 700 100
International Lease Finance Carp.
BRSNS due 0015/ 2022 1< 106} 1128
Jacksom Mational Life Global Funding
L. v due 06,27 /2022 K} A4
TPMorgan Chase & Co.
L 933% due 07, 25 2024 0l 197
&o200% due 10732023 3., T} 3911
KEB Hamn Bank
E151% doe 1002/ 3022 1., 21 1195
LeasePlan Corp. NY
PR T 0 TR 1 el Wt | A0 iz
Lloyds Banking Group FLC
1% due 060302 2, T X 607
LTS due 11072023 HK) 309
Mirae Asset Daewoo Co. Led
4. 125% due 11S07/2021 0 412
Mitsubishi UFT Financial Group, Inc.
L 08A% due 05,08 2025 1, TR} 1. 865
1. 275% due O2SI2/0002 S0 o7
L. TEI% due 07,25/ 2022 &, 700 3,725
1. 833% due 0613/ 3021 TE2 T63
Mitsubishi UF] Lease & Finance Go. Ltd.
*652% due 06,16/3022 1. S 1,538
£ To0% due L1021/ 2020 T T
Miziuho Financial Group, Inc.
(90 due 06,725, 2024 37 i, 564
1. 3101% due 020055022 2, A0 2. 362
L G2F% due 089 LRSS0 1, K} 1. 276
1. G48% due 09113022 1. 20} 1, 160
Margan Stanley
0. 751% due O/H0S2023 2, 3 2. 256
L. 665 due 05,08 3024 I, 80 1192
2o due 1032023 100 100
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2020 31

T B

{FuLge) {FHk{}
Nationwide Building Society
2. 000% due 0127,/ 2023 ] ] H b1l
3. 622% due M/06,/ 2020 Xl doa
MatWost Markots PLC
2. TTE% due 06362022 1. G 1. 5%
Navient Carp.
5000 due 1036,/ 2020 0 2594
Nomura Holdings, Inc.
2G5 due 01/ 16/2025 By 825
Mardoa Bank Abp
1. 303%: due 08,30,/ 1023 1, 00 L]
ORIX Carp.
2 650% due /132021 3,450 3. 471
L00Cr% die 07/ 18,2022 650 673
3. 200% due 0019/ 2022 200 0%
Park Aerospasce Holdings Ltd,
3. 625% due 03/15/3021 A0 IG5
5. 2500 due 06/ 15/2022 1. 3K} I, 148
Piper Sandler Cos.
4. TA0% due 10152021 o0 195
b, 200% due [0/15/ 3023 G bEd
GQatari Diar Finance Q8C
5. 00CH due 07 /2152020 1, 30 1.308
@B Fimance Ltd.
1. 281% dus 021253022 4. 100 4. 064
1. 556% due 06,02/ 2022 I, 200 I, 184
1. T3 due 06,/31,/2021 A0 401
Royal Bank of Seotland Growp FLG
1. 802% due 06,15,/ 2023 3. 150 3 104
o THEY due D6/T5/ 0024 80 i
Santandor Holdings USA, Inc.
4. 450% due 1203/ 2021 o] LUa]
Santander UK Group Holdings FLC
3 3TH due 0105,/ 2024 i 105 Iy 142
Santander UK PLC
O O70% due D6/00/3021 GO0 Ll
L 052% due 111572021 A0 S99
E100% due O0/13/3023 Ll i1
SBA Tower Trust
L8TT% due 07093021 T T
Seantre Group Trust 1
E3TE% due TR 02E G55 658
Sinochem Overseas Capital Co. Lid.
4. 500% due 11/12/2020 L] 813
Skandinnvisks Enskilds Banken AB
L A2e% dus |2/ 020022 A0 400
5L Green Operating Partnership LP
1. 366% due 08,16,/ 2021 500 485
Springleaf Finsnce Corp.
7, 750% due 10,01/2021 40 e
B.250% due 12/15/2020 160 7]
Standard Chartersd FLC
2. 006% due 09,10,/ 3022 2,00 2, 1849
F. TEE% due DG/21/2025 00 204
Starwood Property Trust, Imc.
362N due 02002021 A L)
State Bank of India
4. 000% due 01242022 400 110
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Groap, Inc.
1. 87T5% due FO1B/2022 400 J97
E001% due 0712/ 3002 1, 30 L. 289
2A21% due 071472021 400 402
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2020 31

SN ESE

{7 ki) (TR
Swodbank AR
LT die 03714/ 2002 L] 500 qua
Synchrony Bank
3. G50% due 06,24,/ 2021 &, DO & 05
UBS Group AG
1325 due 08/15/32023 500 L]
1. 5788 due 06,23/ 2023 1. 565 1. 670
WEA Fimance LLC
& 250% due 10053020 5 501
Wells Pargoe & Co.
1. 50T% due 10/31/2023 1, 4040 1. 401
LG2EN due 07223082 500 516
Wells Fargo Bank M A
O, due 0607 /00 1, 500 1, 42

133, 730

T
Abb¥ie, Imc.
0 T24% due 05,/20/2021 (] G
O 841% due 11719720210 300 208
L 024% due 11/21/m022 1. 000 Gz
21500 due 1119 M2 1, 400 1,426
3ATE% due 11053021 51 520
Altria Group, Inc.
S R00% due 02714/ 2022 500 521
American Honda Finance Corp.
L 115% due 06/ 11/2021 1. 400 1393
1. G605 due 06,06, 3021 500 gl
Arrow Electronics, Ine.
35000 due (4012002 B0 616
Avintion Capital Group LLC
1. 300% due 06/01/2021 100 368
L A3 due 0730/ 2021 L. AGD 1. 268
& ST5% due D1/20/2002 1200 1, 004
B To0% due (4,/06,/2021 00 1856
7. E2E% due 10/15/2000 B8 584
BAT Capital Corp.
L2723 due D8/15/2022 () 1. 800 1,701
Bayer 1.5 Finance II LLC
1. T50% due 12/15/2023 I 100 1,072
| BAE% due 06,25,/ 3021 100 o]
3. 500% due 06/25/2021 100 1]
BMW Finance NV
1954 due DS/ 12/2002 1 500 1. 451
BdW U.5, Capital LLC
003 due 0132021 B 2. 45
Broadeom Corp.
2, 300% due 01/ 15/2021 1, 500 1. 508
Broadeom, Inc.
3.125% due 4IRS I020 3,000 3,023
Caterpillar Financial Services Corp.
O.TTE% due 06/ 17,/2021 ) anl
Central Nippon Expressway Co. Ltd.
0, 852% due 0C/15/2002 T 000 6,939
2O11F% due 04232021 300 3056
oI due 02716/202 0K 201
22T due 06/06,/2022 30 i
F 209N due 423202 1, 000 1, 007
2. 567% due | 01/02202) 1. Do 1032
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2020 31

T B

{FHifr) {TF-Hi{E)
Chartor Commnications Opoerating LLC
LT due 0200/ 2024 ] 3. 704 L1 i 663
0TS due OF/ 232020 I, EGe) 1, 109
A A6 due OT/23, 3002 L, (N 1. D65
Cigna Corp.
1. 403% due 09/17/2021 1. 00 1]
2. 109 due 0715/ 2023 2. 800 2. TR
Ol Industrial Capital LLC
45755 due (40072021 g il
Conagra Bramds, Ine.
3 800 due 1OSTRSI0ZL ] 520
Constollntion Brands, Inc.
L% dues 11 Far 02 o} 97
ME Fumding LLC
4. 000% doe 08,01/ 2020 400 304
Daimler Finance North Aserice LLC
0. 805% due 02/32/3021 500 L]
L211% due 11,/06/2021 &b, T} 3. 605
1. 235% due 0222/ 2002 571 650
1. 262% due 0215,/ 2022 1. 0 L]
Dancoe 5. A
00T due 11022021 F a7
Dell Imternational LLC
4. 420% due 061552021 (1) 4. 3 4. 381
D8 Borton, Ine.
4. 373% due 091572022 00 {-]
EMC Corp.
2 650% due 06,/01/3020 145 148
Equifax, Ine.
1. 262% due 08/ 15/3021 [BEL e L]
2. 300% due 06,/08/3021 A0 s
Ford Moter Credit Co. LLC
30375 due DL/OT/30210 4., 4K} 4,202
Fresenius Medical Care UL 5. Finance II, Inc.
4. 125% due 10/15,/ 2020 700 01
GATX Corp.
1. 260% due 110573021 1., 974
General Mills, Ime.
G.G10% due 10,15/ 2020 500 511
Genernl Motors Co.
1. 274% duc 08/ 07,/3020 400 353
General Motors Finamcial Co., Ime.
1. 603% due 11,06,/ 2021 2, ) T2
2 170% due B09 2021 1. L0 1,071
o T0O% due 11S20SH020 1. 000 1. 00&
Harley-Davidson Finsncial Services, Ine.
EOA00% due 06153020 500 500
Hewlatt Packard Enterprise Co.
o 003% due 100G/ 2021 ] fic)
Hyundai Capital America
1. G0% dus OG5 127002 1. 130 113
1. GES% due 06,18/ 2020 B} 508
2. 392% due 07,08,/ 3021 472 4050
2.975% due 0210/ 2023 $00 i ]
2. 6% due 09/ 18/2020 400 40d
J 4500 due 0531252021 K 503
Hyundai Capital Services, Inc.
2. G25% due 0909,/ 20020 o0 [
Imperial Brands Finance PLC
2. 0500 due OF/20,/2020 1, GO 1,602
3 125 due 07365,/ 202 1 30 1. 318
3. THO due 0721/ 2022 1. 300 1. 333
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S L]

{FHkgr ) {Fhi{E}
John Deers Capital Corp.
1. 475% due 06/08/ 3022 I L 5 B8
Eraft Heinz Foods Co.
1. 268% due 0810/ 2022 L 106} 1. 078
3 ATE% due 06/15/2021 200 03
Las Vegas Sands Corp.
200 due 06252025 21K} 169
35004 due 08/18/3026 2 192
Marriott International, Ine.
LG5 due 0008/ 3021 RLy e
Mazca Corp.
3. 500 due 04003021 Fai 203
Mylan NV
S 1000 due 0615,/ 3021 T w7
3 THO% due 12/15/0020 B e
Hizsan Motor Acceptance Corp.
L. T01% due 0713/ 2020 500 il
1. 825% due 06721 L. 700 1. 578
L961% due 07713/ 2022 1, 540 L3
L D6S% due 06/08/ 3022 1. O BG
NTT Fimance Corp.
1 000% due 0721/ 3021 1. T} 1. 008
MNP BY
3 875N due 06/01/ 3022 Rl 315
4. 15N due 06/01/2021 A} 112
4 625% due 0615,/ 2022 2} 211
Dcoidental Petroloms Corp.
1. 842% due 08/15/ 5022 4. K 4,289
Pacific Hational Finance Pty Lid
4. GE5% due 06/23,/3020 pspei=t )| 7l )
Penske Truck Leasing Co. LP
3300 due 04013021 400 {05
3. G500 due 0720,/ 2021 200 mn3
Pentair Finance Sarl
o B25% due 09,15,/ 2020 GO Lit]]
Reckitt Benckiser Treasury Services FLC
L To4% dime 067242022 650 1
Shire Acquisitions Investsents Ireland DAC
& A0 due 06,725/ 302 ) 1. (e} 1. 020
SMHC Aviation Capital Finamce DAC
& 00 due 0715/ 2022 2T} 194
G OO due 041530 1. A5 1. 453
Spectra Energy Partners LP
L 014% due 06052020 i | 321
Spirit AeroSystems, Inc.
1. 540% due 06/ 15/3021 1 O} WG
Yolkswagen Group of Aserica Finance LLC
L 064N due 06343021 &, 00 4843
J.875% due 1171372020 1. () 1. 012
Yulcan Materials Co.
L. 000 due 0003021 a5 L]
Vostinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp.
S MI% due 09,15/ 2021 W} 856
Woolworths Group Ltd.
4. 0000 due 09,22,/ 2020 ELL 1]
Limmer Biomet Holdings, Ine.
1. B02% doe 03192021 T L]
footis, Inc.
. BITS due 08"20,/3021 A0 L]

1132, 350
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T A B4
(FMigir) (i)

ATAT, Ine.

1LA14S due 02715/ 2003 3 GO0 H 560

1 064% due 0612/ 304 3. 300 d233

L. LGS due 07/ 15/2021 1. 70 1710

Centrica PLC

L 216% due 08725/ 2020 ELL s 1]

Duke Emergy Corp

O 2% due 06142021 1. B 1, 558

Enbridge, Ime.

O, 881% due 0218/ 2022 3. 300 3 M6

1o #1% due 0615,/ 3020 HiN) B0

Israel Electric Corp. Ltd

G BTER due 06/21/3023 400 152

Sabine Pass Liquefaction LLC

5 G2S% due 02/00/3021 4. 100 4.182

Sempra Enorgy

1. T15% due 01/15,/ 3021 150 7

Sinopec Group Overseas Develogment 2016 Lid.

LOTR0N due 05033021 2 202

Southern Power Co.

1. G6E% due 1200/ 3020 & 500 £ Ath

Sprint Commsnicatlons, Ine.

G D00 due 1115,/ 3022 400 426

Sprint Corp

7. 1254 due 067153024 103 114

Yerizon Commnications, Ine.

1. 462% due 0615/ 2025 & log & DS

LTA0% due 03716/ 2022 1. Bl 1. 604
B, 5

A 268, 978

(A 272, BTE)

Dauphin, Peonsylvanin, Penosylvenia Higher Education Assistance Agency Eevenue Bonds, Series 2006

1 121% due D0CES 2006 JHY 28
Sacrasento, Californis, Geoeral Obligation Bonds, Series 2017

1. 110% due 40003047 Ol 200
Salt Lake, Utsh, Utah State Board of Regents Revenus Bonds, Series 2007

0, 91E% due D035 3057 157 153
st 635
(M 5652)

SRR 3. 1%

Fannie Mas

I, 9655 due 0625, 0058 134 141
1o E% die 725,/ 2023 3 3
Froddie Mac

L 335% due 00/15/2037 () Wid 170
1 395% due 1015/ 3007 L, 454 1. 340
1 335% due 08/15/2042 () (5 il
1. 3855 due 00152040 (6} b5 BA2
L. S0 due 0625/ 2034 () 1. 253 I 268
25000 due 10CIESI048 (1) d484 5547
Ginnde Mao

Lo A0ES due 00/20,/ 2061 50 £
L T1E% due 0800/ 3066 110 111
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SN ESE

{FuLge) {FRA{}
1. S16% due 06,/20,/ 2066 5 154 164
1BEE% die 07/00,/2066 B3 83
1 856% due 11/20/2066 180 i81
T, 5008 due 01/00,/2045 (F) 1071 1. 047
L500% due 10/20/204% () 1. 554 I 002
2ETEN due 11/00/206T (F) ) 51
4 A B 13, 367
CHARIIENS 13, 356)

R B R 5. o

Treasury Inflation Protocted Securitios (b)

., 375% due 07/ 15/2025 7,075 T4l
0. TRO% due 0715/ 2028 (F) 15, 218 16, %13
LSS 2 i 24, 249
(AR ERI 22, 466)

E— e st R 1L TR
ACE Seciritios Corparation Hose Equity Loan Trust

O IE% doe 042572000 H $25
AREIT Trust

1. 16A% due |LSIAS2085 156 464
Lo 200% due 00143006 500 477
2. 883% due 04 102007 1. 100 L. 103
Atrium Hotel Partfolio Trust

L L36% due 06152035 o0 [iiT)
BAMLL. Cossercial Morigage Securities Trust

L. 2340% due 0415720086 400 376
1. 384% due O3 15/ 3034 400 HS
Bancorp Commercial Nortgage Trust

108 due 00715/ 2035 163 H2
Lo 2346% due 09715,/ 2006 1491 473
Bayview Opportunity Master Fund IVa Trust

& 0TS due 0328300 21 21
Bear Stonrns Adjustsble Bste Morigsge Trust

1. 016% due B4/25/ 2000 a ]
4. 131% due 08,25,/ 2003 M 23
Bour Stoarns Asset-Backed Securities I Trust

O T2E% due 097252034 5O7 i)
Bear Stoarns Second Lisn Trust

1. 518% due OFS35/3036 ]| a7l
Brass MNo. 8 PLC

1. 085% due 1116/ 2065 HE Ma
Canterbury Finance Me. 1 FLC

1. B43% due 0516/ 3066 GElM I, ) 1. 188
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust

3. 228% due 09/75/2069 L] 187 185
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Inc.

0. 445% due 1125/ 2006 gas o7
Coamorcinl Wortagnge Trust

O 825% due OGS 10/ 2046 32 32
Countrywide Asset-Backed Cartificatos

O, 465% due 08/25/ 036 240 B
Credit Suisse Mortgege Capital Cartificates

3. 543% due 08,16,/ 2058 0 75
Crodit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust

9% due 07715,/ 32032 0 281
& 106 due 1027/ 2069 GE1 L2 5]
4372 due 10/ M58 15 |Hs
C3 First Boston Mortgege-Backed Trust

0. 905% due 10/25/ 2034 11 11
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R B4

{FHkgr ) {Fhi{E}
Eurcpean Loan Comduit Moo 36 DAC
1 000% due B2/17,/ 2030 EUR ey H 1074
Finance Asorica Mortgage Lomn Trust
0 0% due 08,25,/ 3034 L] 177 171
Finsbury Sqaare FLC
(. 00CR% due 0018,/ 2070 Gap 3, 000 i, G0
1. AGTS due D6/ 16,/ 2069 1459 1, 840
1. T22% due |2/ 1673069 1, 550 1. 900
Firstasc Mortgage Funding Trust Mo.4
O S due 0008,/ 2045 3 400 407
Fromont Hose Loan Trust
b 90E% due O/ 55,2035 I35 M
GPUT Ltd
LOT1% die 112003035 a7 (]
G5 Mortgage Securities Corporation Trust
0. 884% due 07/ 15,2032 o0 o]
Hawksnoor Mortgege Funding PLC
1. 287% due 06,25,/ 2053 Ll T8 853
Hawksmoor Mortgages
1. 287% due 0615,/ 2063 1, 167 L, 435
Holmos Master Issuer PLC
1. a75% due 101572054 § Fil 47l
1. G35 diwe 100" 15,3054 2,180 21T
HFLY Trust
L 1B4% due 1115,/ 2006 28 $05
Impac QUE Trust
b ALES due 051520035 1, 507 L. 440
0. B05% due 06,25/ 2035 177 167
JPcrgan Chase Commercial Mortgege Securities Trust
1 084% due 06,15,/ 2005 485 i51
I 184% due 0615/ 3032 114 piit] |
LS due 120 F2S 2000 400 4t
Lanark Master Issuer FLC
2. 453% due [2/22/2063 a8 (]
Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust
3. 435% due 05,15/ 2062 &0 70
G TR0 due D257 2059 52 308
London Wall Mortgage Capital FLC
L 142% due 11/15/ 2048 (e 148 150
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust
I 14E% due 042572035 5 1, GOG BET
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
0 B05% due 06252034 150 145
WF] Ltd,
1. 298% due 12/°35,/ 303 q00 382
Mill City Mortgage Loan Trust
X THON due G8,25/M55 Lk bl
Morgan Stanley Asset-Backed Securities Capital I, Imc, Trust
L 00S% due 06,25,/ 2034 406 385
Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust
Lo 184S due 0GE2/ 2006 T 544
Gu O04% due 06,10/ 3042 et 1] 208
Motel & Trust
L 104% due 06/ 15,/ 20034 an ]
Hew Residentinl Mortgage Loan Trust
LT due 0725/ 2059 2, Jal e
O TE0% due 1135,/ 3055 2,413 L4
4. 500 due 0625,/ 2068 218 231
Momurn Resecuritization Trust
oA due 1062006 1,626 1,620
MovaStar Mortgage Funding Trist
O BIEY% due 0/25/ 2036 ek a4
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SN L]

{FHkgr ) {Fhi{E}
Permanent Master Issuer FLC
1. 5UEr due OF15,/2058 L] b= 5 250
1. T69% due 0715/ 2058 00 L
PFP Ltd.
Lo L54% due 14/ D036 1, SO 1. 750
Lo 234% due 04,14/ 3037 2, 200 2084
Precise Mortgage Funding FLC
0. ek due 10)16,/2056 (el I, 0ad 1,320
Reaidential Mortgage Securities 31 PLC
L7375 due 06,30,/ 3065 164 203
Ripon Mortgages FLC
1. 056% due 08,30,/ 3056 3, B 4. 708
5Silverstone Master lssuer FLC
1o 235% due OLS2173070 o 152
1 G675 due 00S20/2070 - 16k 161
Stanwich Mortgage Loan Co. LLC
3 3T5% due 0815/ 3024 240 2358
Structured Asset Investsent Loan Trust
O TIE% due 0625,/ 2034 1, 822 1. 733
Tharaldsen Hotel Porifolio Trust
O 0% due 11103034 510 o6
Tewa Point Mortgage Trust
1. 302% due 07,30,/ 2045 GBI L 31% L. 614
Tewd Point Morigage Funding
L ATES due 0230,/ 2054 563 )
Towd Foint Mortgage Funding Granited PLO
LoGTT% due 10,30,/ 3051 it g 204
Tewd Point Mortgage Trust
1. 168% due 06,25,/ 2058 i GO LEL)
L. 165% due 10025,/ 3059 e a2
Trinity Square PLC
1. 818% due 07/ 15,/3051 P | 163
UB5-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust
O = due B4 10/ 2046 § HMHE 306
Warwick Finance Residential Mortgages Ko One FLC
L5225 due 06,/2]/2048 Ll El L.012
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust
O OL5% due 12715/ 2036 § I 1,329
L% due 1270373031 HF i
1. 2340% due 07153046 M 1]
4. 218% due 07715/ 2046 00 29
WFHES Comsercial Mortgage Trust
(HT4A% due 12015/ 2045 G2 631
== Ry FEREN 63, 344
(i IS0, 095)

T b3y B 12,18
Arbor Bealty Collateralized Lean Obligation Ltd.

L 174% due [2/15/2027 RO 478
Arber Realty Commercial Real Estate Motes Ltd.

L. A34% due 06/ 15,2037 By 285
Arbear CLO IV DAC

0. BT0% due 01/ 152030 EUR 400 434
Atrium XIT

L 028% due (47222027 3 s 72
Bl CLO Led

L 006 due 04 16,2026 218 27
Benefit Street Parimers CLO ¥IT Ltd,

L. 915% due 07/ 18/ 2027 V65 Tas
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R B4

{FHkgr) {FHi{E}
Black Dinmond CLO Dosignated Activity o,
EOARTS due 10,/06/2029 1 tisty 5 2
Bumpar UK Finance FLC
0 GE6% due 12700,/ 2008 [ri 2, 500 3. 075
Carlyle Global Market Strategios Boro CLO DAC
0T due 097212029 EUR w1 i
Cent CLO 10 Ltd.
2171% due 10392005 3 8l 1]
Chesapenke Punding 11 LLC
1O doe 08,15,/ 2029 48 244
3o due 0871552000 s BO3
Commorcinl Industrial Finmnce Corporation Funding Ltd.
1. 851% due 1025,/ 3027 Ll 363
Contoego CLO IT BY
0 G57% due 11015/ 2026 EUR fai 1. 085
Dartry Park (L0 DAC
O8I0 due (MZ8/ 2029 57 285
Dell Equipsent Finance Triust
I, 200 due 06,/22/2022 i (L] 05
Dorchester Park CLO DAC
2.005% due B4/30/ 2028 500 193
Dryden 46 Buro CLO BY
0, 880% due 0115,/ 3030 R 400 142
EXMC Group Student Loan Trust
0, 91E% dus 0237/ 2068 § 542 522
Lo218K doe 05,25/ 2067 w54 30
EFS Volunteer LLC
1. 841% due 10/25/3005 127 12
Evans Grove CLO Led
1. 201% due 06,28,/ X028 3,371 3202
Fair Osks Loan Funding IT DAC
1900 dus 07/ 15,2031 R 1, 800 2002
Figworoa CLO Ltd
2. 119% due 0115,/ 2027 5 o 261
Flagship Credit Auto Trust
2530% due 10016,/ 2023 TR 200
Fard Auto Securitization Trust
2.321% due 1015/ 2023 CAD 1, 200 73
Fard Credit Floorplan Master Owner Trust A
00 B84% due 10/15/ 2023 5 1 (2]
O TRAS due 06153024 GO ri]
Gallatin CLO IX Led
21550 due D120 2008 1,087 1. 077
GHF Floorplan Owner Revolving Trust
O 5% due 0615,/ 2022 400 it
GoldentTree Loan Mamagesent LS. CLO Ltd.
2 083% due [M/I00 2029 1. 100 1. 084
Haleyon Loan Advisors Funding Litd
2. 065% due /30,3027 Bz 538
Hertz Fleot Lease Funding LP
3. 230% due 05/ 10/ 2032 40 624
Jeamestcwn CLO IV Ltd.
1. 905 due 0715,/ 2026 il 194
LoanCore Issusr Ltd
L. 314% due 050153006 Ty TR
LP Credit Card Asset-Backed Securities Master Trust
2.323% due 0830/ 302 (i LiiLed
Marathon CLO ¥ Ltd
Lo 244% due 11205 202T 1, 370 L. 346
Marlette Punding Trust
L due 07162029 T 40
oTI0% due 12715/ 2028 6% 165
Master Crodit Card Trust IT
0L 661% due 07/21,/2024 i o

158/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31
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{FHkgr) {FHi{E}
MMAF Equipsent Finance LLC
20008 due 0712/ 2021 L 125 3 (]
Mountain View CLO LLC
2056 due 10162029 o0 685
Mountain View CLO X Lid.
2 131% due 1013/ 2027 w13 ]
Navient Frivote Educaticn Lonn Trust
X 650% due [2715/2028 =1 BS
Ravient Student Loan Trust
BoA30% due 12715,/ 2059 181 182
Molnot Student Loan Trust
b B6S% due 09/27/ 2008 1, 590 1. 819
09654 due 09,25,/ 2065 133 134
0 068% due 08,25,/ 2067 H30 L8|
L018% doe 02/35,/ 2066 1,840 1, TBY
1. 065% due 0627,/ 2067 1,528 1. 453
Ocean Trails CLO IV
L. 334% due 08132025 28 pa. ]
OCPF CLO Led
2.005% due 07,15, 2027 b54 554
Oaclain Financial Issunnce Trust
2.370% due 087 1L 2002 Lo 103
05CAR UL 5. Pundimg Trust IX LLC
3o 1500% due 0810,/ 2021 L | H
Dscar L5, Punding X LLC
3. 100 due 4011/ 2022 198 200
Palpor Square CLO Ltd
L2428 due 08152026 52 4%
Penarth Master Isswer FLC
0. 832% due 0918,/ 2022 500 1]
0. T22% due O/ 18/ 2023 2, 00D 1. 985
PFS Fimancing Corp.
0 THE due B4 152024 B0 f64
SLC Student Loan Trust
0. A52Z% due 0615,/ 2029 183 177
0. 851% due 03/15/2027 614 603
51M Private Education Loan Trust
AN due 0B/16/3042 171 172
S1M Student Loan Trust
1. 081% due 1/ 26,/ 3005 BO0 T
1. 23101% due 12/15,/2027 6 62
SR00% due M35,/ 2003 173 (12]
Sofi Consuser Loan Frogras LLC
2.TT0% due 06/35/ 2028 bt |
5oFi Consumer Loan Program Trust
T 000 dus 053520208 Fat] 535
Jo010% due 0M/25/2028 191 163
0% due 0225,/ 3008 ¥4 )
5oFi Professicnal Loan Program LLC
I LIS% due D)S2S/2059 S0 30
27200 due 10272036 1a7 104
Safi Professicnal Loan Prograsm Trust
3. 080 due 01/25,/2048 141 142
Sound Point Clo XIV Ltd.
& 193% due 0)/33/ 32000 1. 500 1. 476
SpringCastle Funding Asset-Backed Notes
3. 2000 due 06,27/ 2036 5a7 562
THL Credit Wind River CLO Ltd
2085 due 0115/ 2026 233 235
Tikehaw CLO BY
O GOCR e 08,04/ 2028 EEH L AT L, 603
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ST B4

{FHifr) {F-H{E)
TRTE Issuwer Ltd
1o 334% due 10,715/ 2034 5 I, ) 5 UGS
Upstart Securitization Trust
2 684% dug 00/20/5000 311 306
2. 507% due 05,00/ M09 oz 20
Yenture XVII CLO Ltd.
2095 due 415/ 2027 248 242
Yoya CLO Ltd
L711% due 07,25/ 2026 96 9
Whiteliorse IX Ltd.
2. 295% due 0717/ 2026 6 16
Fiw b o« A RGN 51, 878
(MR A MEES 62, 914)

Canada Govermsent Bond

1. 5008 due 05,/01/2022 CAD 10, (el 7. 403
Export-Isport Back of India

1. 374% due 08203022 3 2,35 2268
Qatar Goverrment International Bond

EATSN due 0602/ 3021 1, 000 L. 02
R 10; 663
CHefIREES 10, 545)

Sumitomo Mitsul Banking Corp.
CE9I% due 11062021 1, 500 1. 799

e e e W]

Asarican Honds Finance Corp,

1. 90T% duwe 07503020 () SO0y 2

L 9OTE% doe 060G/2020 (d) 1, 5O 1. 403

L0 o DESOE/Z020 (e} 2, T . 700

Bayer Corp.

365% due 08032020 () 2, 400 2 306

BF Capital Markets FLC (o)

L G2 due 06,08 2020 3, 00 2, 87

1. B80S due 06, 0 32020 1, D00 L, D00

Genoral Dynemics Corp.

& 2648 due OTSI0SH000 (o) 1, DDk W

HSH Portfolicsanagesent Acell

L T2E% doe 101/18/3021 (<) B0 B3

Schlusberger Investzent 5. A

L 065 due 10027/3020 (e} 1, Dod L]

Sholl Internatioonl Finance BV (¢}

2. 103% due 02/0G/2021 GO0 495

& 3A0% due 00192021 &, GO 3. 667

Sygenta Wilmington, Imc.

&Y due 0605/ 2020 () 1, 200 1. 200

Toyota Motor Credit Corp.

L A25% due 073072020 (&) Ty H949

Walt Disney Co.

LGS due O7/14/2020 (c) R 500
26,743
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2020 31
SN EfE
{ Nk i) (-
Lot (o) 1. 3%
5 5, 000
Australin and New Zealond Banking Group Ltd.
0, 010 due D6/DL/ 3020 AUD 3 2
O 010% due 06,/DL/2020 3 3 3
0, 0500 due 06,02/ 30320 MED T 4
Bank of Nova Scotia
O 010% due 06,/00,/2020 3 3 =
0, 0% due 06/01/2020 CAD 276 200
BNF Paribas Bank
(0. 27080 due 06/01,/2020 ¥ a] I
Brown Brothers Harrisen & Co.
(0. 6O0%) due 0602 2020 KK 2 o
(0. 27000 due 06500/2020 ¥ 1 ]
0. 010% due 06,/01/2020 Gl 3 1
0.0 due 06./01,/2020 CAD 1 10
Citibank M. A
0, 010% due 06,/01/2020 5 95 95
DES Bamk Ltd.
0L 010% due 06/01,/500 15 15
JPMorgan Chase Bank B A
O 0008 duse 06,00/ 2020 (1] 190
MUFG Bank Lid.
(0. 2970%) due DBAL/ 2020 ¥ I, 2 11
National Australis Bamk Lid,
O 0% due 06013020 Alm T
0 0% due 06012020 5 2 o4
Sumitoso Witsui Banking Corp.
(0,290 due 06,500,/ 2020 ¥ iy &
O 010 due 06/D1/ 2020 G 17 ot
O 010 due 06,01/3020 5 a2 H2
Sumitomso Mitsul Trust Bank Lid,
(0, 270%) due 06,00 2020 ¥ L] o
O 01O% due 06012020 GBF o7 25l
O s due 06,01/ 2020 5 130 13
1,308

0, 098% due 06,/02/2020 &7 57

O L0 due 083/06/ 5020 L] ol
256

ST R S B 29, B06
(e 2e, 747
SRAERERAN (=) 107.9% ] 463,931
(MR MU 46T, 651
ST Y AT T EE

(g (1) (0,38 (1,127)
(RIS i 7 LS 7 A, MIEE $016))
T OREEES IR, W (7. 6N (32, 605)
R 100, 0% 3 430, 199
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2020 31

SR ERRE N IR e D TN (R - TR, WMRE R

W PR, PRI EREA SRR e L TS LS,

(a) 200045 A 310 SIEOAREE e k- L S B R S i e, R0t SeERALDEE. B, A D RIHITS 16 1%, BRSBTS
8, 1%, A iRRICETDE TN, BLUSEESE %E A0S S ool Lo REESha,

(b EROEEHEL -7 oL TEEEN TS,

(o) —abiiid, MRE CodRE Y £,

(d)  fre=sbiiefd, RN ol bR TR 0 £,

leAd EURE oo N M|

(e} LediliEy
s L
g e =, L, Adnd
HEH SieE (M 858 (CBRSF) EEEN AR HE MHE Swm
T 0, 110% 0529, 2020 06,/01,°2020 3 o WS Treasury Bomds 3. 000%
due 05/ 15/2047 5 (130 8§ 5000 5 5, 000
LR § (139 3 5000 § 5, 000

|

B WEH gl S T T
e AeR  (ACESE) (ASEASE) WAES ethde
GRE 0. 220% 0O, 2020 07020 § (N1, 037} [} {1y, 1}
SCN 0, B Q5072000 [oh 0, 2020 (7, B3} {7, 554}
sCX 0, e 04,/ 162020 6, 16 3020 03, 102y (3, T4k
TEW 0, GRS 0 162020 e 153020 {13, 238) {13, 2=8)
2 raimean ] {36, 6&T1

fifesHEA L LTI ES s MEOBK

wHoRERERE
Frrlmrd b
BELF
ALEEIRA| WHET  IEMGI0H o0 £k

¥

JERIE Rkt % 0§ (L) 3 03 [
e A HR 0 (8, 2007 ] Q {8, 2000
E AR i {11, 258} (01, L} i (2, 208)
B 3 0§ (M58 3§ (L) 3 0§ (35,587
i AhEn 3 G % (245480 0§ {ln04l) 3 0§ (35687)
LR s B G § (35
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2020 31
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGAMNIZATION

Each Furd distussed in this repoet (each & “Fund™ and coflectively, the "Funds ™), which also indudes eadh dass of units of fat Fund (eadh a "Class™ and colledtively,
the "Classes™), & a senies trustof PIMCO Bermuda st (the "Trust™), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda a5 2 mulB-senies trust pursyant
1 & tgst deed executed by Windvester Global Trust Company Linnited on Ausgust 8, 2000 (a5 amended from Sme o tme, the "Trost Desd™). Effective &5 of the dose
of busmess (Eastern time) on Seplermbier 29, 2017, Maples Trushee Senaces (Bermuda) Limeted (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 rustes of he Trust Paalic vestment
Managernent Company LLC ("FINCOT, the “Manager™ of the "Invesiment Adviser™) is the sponsor of and was responsbile for strocuring te Trust

The: Trust i subgect 10 regaation and supsraton as provded Tor in the nsestment Funds Act 2006 and redated nules relating to standand funds

The: temms of e Trust Deed confer upon the Tustes, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to establish further funds in additon 1o the Funds
currently in operation a5 of the date of this report

The Funds presented in this report are [sied below:

PIMCT Barmuda Forasgn Low Disration Fund Ofarad only to fusds with a “Fund of Fends™ stuciure, as defined in e rubes of the

FIRCT) Barmada U 5 | Low Duration Fund imvestment Try stz Assoaanon, Jagan, of bo funds wath & simdar stryctua in sny oher

FIMGD Emarging Markets Bond Fund LIITF] Junschon

FINCT Emaenging Aarbets Bond Fund {Yan-Hadged)

FINCT Emrging bAsrkets Bond Fund i

PN Fuso Tonsl Reecen Fund T Fresad o festail (e tors im Japan by wey of pUbh offang ticugh @ O ot in

PINCT) Raad Rasturn Fend Jagan, and may bo offined to othid imnisions at B dizaBon o the Manager

FIRCT Short: Teem 5 rategy™ (rffiened toretal investors m Japan by wey of pubiic offanng theough 3 distibaber andior a
sales handling company in Japan, end may ba offered to othar imiesioes at the discraton
of thi Mansgir

FINCT Emaargin g Markets Bond Fund (M) [ Freeeed coniy tor othe Fnds o 3arve a3 an underdying swastmean twehide for such Funds

* R ST el (OE Sy o rite PRET o Sore Srarogy are s i 1 lni i p Tond Vil ™ o o ilind o % ey o e by oty v Samam o i o wich p wrmder ur T 0 my AW pedTO R
Tl UG Ry 2 AR e ove Sty of o M ily 0 0 gt 1 v o 0 i iyt vt et el B okl Pty

Uit of the PIMCO Euro Total Return fund, FIMCO Real Retum Fend, and AUD, JFY, and USD Classes of PIMCO Short-Term Strategy have been registered under the
Fenancial instrumments and Exdhange Law of Japan. Linits of each of the remainng Funds and the O (USD), J QP and J (USD0 Classes of PIMCO Short-Temn Sirategy
have not been and are not currently expected to be registered under the Finandal Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan. Accordngly, such Units of these Funds may
ot b, cirectly or indirectly, offered in Japan or 8o any resident in Japan, except i comnpliance with spplicable Japanese [aws and regulations

2. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUINTING POLICIES

The tollowang is & sumensny of sigmficant accouming pofides congstently fobowed by the Trust in te preparation of its finand @ statements in confonmaty with
accaunting prindples generally acepted in the United States of Amenica (TS GAAP™). Eadh Fund 55 treated 36 an investiment comgany under the feparting
requirernents of U S GAAP The preparation of Snandal statements i accordance with Ll 5. GAAP requines management 1o make estimates and assumplions that
affet the reported amounts of assets and Babilities and dsdosure of confingent assets and Babilities at the date of the finandial statements and the reported amoaunts
of increases and decreates in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Actnal results could ditfer from those estimates

{a} Undertying Fand The Tristee and the Banager may apply all or a portion of the assets of PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (0TF), PFIMCO Emerging Markets
Bond Fund (Yen-Hadged, and FIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (each refierred to herein a5 a "Fund of Funds™ or the " Agquiring Fund”, which invests in other
Funds) to the respective qedit of the FIMCD Emerging Markets. Boned Fund (M) freferred to herein 25 2n "Underhing Fund™ or the ~Acquired Fund(s)™), Ary assets 50
applied will be held in such Acquired Fund(s) a5 if recebed deecty. Where asets are so applied, he Aoguired Fund(s)will recoed the issue of units & e relevant
Anguining Fund at the issee price per unit of sudh units and will repurdhase sudh units at the repurdnase price per unit of such units a1 the dme of repurchase

Ratigs shosvr in the Anandal Highlights do natindude expenses of the Acquired Fundis). See Mole 9, Fees and Expenses, for further informatian regarding fund fees,
a5 applicable

(b} Secunities Transactions and luvestmeont Income Secunilies ransactions are reconded & of the rade date fof inandal reporting purpodes. Secumties pudchased o
sold on a when-issued or delayed-delivery basis may be seitled beyvond a standard settement pericd for the security after the rade date Realized gains and losses
from secunties sold are reconded on the idenfified oot basis. Dividend incoeme is recondsd on the ex-dhidend date, extept certain dvidends from foraign seaunities
whent the exc-daidend date may have paised which ane reconded & 5000 25 a Fund ks infonmed of the aedadend date Interest income, adusted for the Jdrebon o
disoounts and amartization of premiums, i reconded on the acoual bases from seatement date, with the exceplion of searities with 3 fnsard Starting effective date,
wihere inlerest income 15 fecorded on the aconual badis trom effective date. For comvertible seamties, premsums atinbutable o the converson leature e not
amortized. Esfimated tax libilities on certain fioreign secunifies are recorded on an aoorual basis and are reflected 2 compan ents of interest income or net change in
unreafized appreciation (depreciation) on investments on the Statements of Operations, as appropriate. Tax liabilities realized as a result of wudh security sales are
refiected a5 & component of net realized gain (Joss) on investments on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gans and losses on mortgage-related and other asset-
Backed tetuiities, i any, are feceaded 42 codrponents of intefedt incame on the Statements of Operations. Debl abligations may be placed o6 mon-a0ual status and
redabed inbenest incodre may De reduced by ceasng Qarent Jomuas snd wri m_.‘.l"j'-flﬂf.‘{"l'ﬂ! receivable when te collection of all of @ portion of interest has become
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doubiful based on consistently spplisd procedures, A debt obligation is
remiaced from non-a0Tual status when The [Sswer resumes nierest paments
or when collectability of interest it probable

{e} Cazh amd Foreign Currency The Bnandal statements of each Fund ane
presented uang e currency of the primany economic envronment inwhich it
operates (the "funcSonal curmency™), The functicnal curency for each of the
Fureds is [rsted in the below tatie

The market vakies of foreign sequnties, curmency holdngs and other assets
and lahiliSies are ranshated into each Fund's functional asrency based on the
curent exchange rates each business day Purchases and sales of sequnities
and income and expense [tems denomenated in foreign currendes, if sy, ae
trarikated into sach Fund’s respective Juncional asrendy at the exdhangs
rate in effect on the ransecion date. Thi Funds do N Separ abely report the
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates from changes in market prices on
secuities hetd Sudh changes are mdided i ned realized and net changss in
unreatiped gain of Ioss from imeestments on the Statements of Operatons
The Funds may imvest in foreign qurrency denominated securities and rmay
engage in forégn ourmendy ransactions either on a spat foath) basis at the
rate prevailing in the qurrency exdhange markel &t the fime or through a
forveard foreign aurendcy contract. Realized foreign exchange gairs of losses
ansing from sales of spod foreign qurmendies, Qimency Gains or |ogses realized
beetarisen the rade and seddement dates on senuities ransscions and the
ditference between the recorded amounits of deidends, mierest, and foreign
withholdng taxes and the imnctiona curency squivalent of the amounts
achaally received or paid are indudedin net realized gain or loss on foreign
LTEnCy Tansactions on the Satements of Operations. Met unseabzed foreign
exchange gaing and lodsss aniang fromm changes in foneign eochanos rates on
hfr:'?‘l denorminated sisers snd leabill Bes other tham Bves Iments in Seounbes
held at the end of the reporting pericd are induded in net change in
unnegliped apprediation or depreciation on foreign quimendgy as5ets and
Eakilities cn the Statements of Operaions

Thie Met Asset Value (A"} and total retums of centain Funds (or Casses
thereod, a5 appiicable) are presented in the cumency for which the WaY s
reported (he " NAY cumency™) a5 detailed in each Fund's Offering
Memaorandum {the "Offering Memorandum ™), For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the total retum in the NAY curmency, the
beginning and endng MANe are conveited wsing the pencd beqgrning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dstibutions are comeerted using the
exchange rate at the ime of the distribution. See the foliowing fable for the
N ourrency of each respective Fund;
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FundiClase: T — :
PIMCD Shout-Toen Sormiogy
= AD Aushalion dollae | US dollar
o Clusm L5 dofls UE dollar
o JUPT Japasdsa yin U5, dollar
= JuEm Japaseseyin VS dollar
. FY Japanee yan LS, dollar
L] LiZE) U5 dals U5 dollar

FAMCT) Bty Forsign Lows Dusstion Fund Jepanesa yen UE dolla
PIMCO Berrusdo U5 Rows Duranen Fusd RN i i S dolla
PIWDD Emuperep Maskom B Fuusel LITF Jageaneca van UE dolla
FIMOD Emesgprg Mashae Botd Furd I L5, dollar U5 dollar
= Us0
| FIMICD Emerging Mk Bond Fued [Tenfisdged] | Japanesayen | U5 dolls
PIMCD Emastpiniy Markne: Bosd Fusel Jagaan s yn 0% dallar
= JERL
= DA
= J{RA
* ] (MON)
«  JIEN
= JER
FILACO Bure Tosl Rear: Fuond Eur [T
PILICD Real Rlsgem Fund U5 dollar UE della

{d] Multiclass Operations Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
righits 1o the assets of the Fund equal o that of other Classes of te same
Fund, wasept for spedfic assets and gaing and losses designated o a Class
relating to aErency edging operations. Incorne, non-Class spedic expentes,
and non-Class spedfic realized and unreabized capital gains and losses are
#ocated toeqch {lass of units based on the relative net assets of eadh Class
of the respective Fund. Qs spedfic espenses qumently indude
managerment, Jvisory, administrative, agendy and dismitation fees, wihene
applicable

() Distribution Pelley The flloewing table showes the antidpated frequency
of distributions $or each Fund. Distributions from each Fund may be dedared
and distributed to Unitholders onfy upon the authonzation of the Manager,
wihich authorization may be withheld at the Manager®s desretion

Deciared Daiy end Feia Momhiy:

PRACD Ewre Total At Fund
Declered and Peid Morthiy:

PRACO Emer g Markets Bond Fand [ITF)
PRACO Eml.‘:'g-q Markets Bond Fund [en Hedgid)
PRACO Emergng Markas Bond Fund |1
PRACD Short-Term Suateny
a UM
= =]

Doalared and Pasd Quartacy

PRACO Berrmisda Forergn Low Duraton Fand
PRACO Barrrudla LS. Lows Duration Fund

Declarad and Peid Annually

PIMCO Rl Return Fond
PRCD SBort-Term Strateqy
= AU

The Munager ¢ oes not sxpect to declare distributions with respect 12 thia
Fund [or Clazsas 1hereof, if applicable], bus may, in its diseration, desiers and
dintributians to the Ursthalders at sy tisse.

PRMCO Emergag Mearkats Bond Fund (i)

Dustributions, if any, will generally be made from the relevant Fund’s {or
Clags's, it applicable) net imvestment income. In addition, the Manager may
duthorize the payment of net realized capital gains available for distibution
Additional distributions may be dedared as the Manager deems appropriate
Custritwtions paid with respect o any Fund (or Class thereod, if spplicabie)
will reduce the NAV of siech Fund {or Class thereof, if applicable) Af the
discretion of 1he Unitholders, cash distibutions from a Fund (o Class theneof,
it applicabde) may esther be reinvested in additional wnits of a Fund (or Class
thereat, it applicable) or paed o 3 Unithalder in cash. Cath paymen 14 wall be
paid in the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund {or Class thereof, if
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applicable) may declare further distribitions if corsidered necessanyin order
10 Pdintan a reasonabie level of distibutions for 3 Rand (or Class thereod, if
applicable) In the sent that there is inadequate net income and net realized
captal gaind 1o pay 4 dembubon of 4 Fund (of Class thensal, 1 appdicatde)
redquired by the Cffering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
congsting of a partion of the capital of such Fund {or Class therect, if
applicable). Distributions nof oollected withan sixyears from their due date
will lagee and will acorie to the benefitof the relevant Find dor Class theneod,
if appficable)

Il New Accounting Preneommcements I Niirch 2020, the Hpanoal
Acoounting Standands Board (" FASE") rsaued an Acooiniting Standards
Uipcdate " ASUT), ASU 2020-04, which privides optional quidance Do ese the
patential acoounling burden sssodated with rangtioning e ay from the
London Interbant: Offered Rate (TUB0R ™) and other reference rates that are
expected to be discontinued. The ASU s effecthvely immed ately upon releass
of the update on March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022 At this Sme,
mandgement i evaluatng the implicytions of thede dranges on te fingndal
slatements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASLUREMENTS

() Investment Valsation Pelicies The price of 3 Fund's unies i3 bazed on
the Fund's MAY. The NAY of a Fund, or each of its Classes, as applicable, is
determned by dividing the: total walue of pontfobo imestments and ather
assels attmbutable to that Fund or Class, kess any ligbilities, by the total
il of units cutstanding of that Furd of Class On eath Fund's Dealing
[y {35 desaribed in the aament Uﬂ'?l'lﬂEI Memnorandism of the Tnast

Furnd units are ordinanly vabued as of the doge of regular trading on the New
Tork Stock Exchange (TNYSE Clote™) infoemation that becomes kndwn b9
the Funds or their sgents after the Bme as of which NAV has been Caloulated
on 3 particular day will not generaly be used to retroactively adjust the price
ofa SECunfy or the NAY determined eadlier that day. Esch Fund resenves the
right o change the time &5 ofwhich its NAV i5 calulated if the Fund diades
earlier

For purposes of caiqulating a NAY, portfolio seqenties and other assets for
which marker quotes are readily available arevalued at market valpe. Market
wale 15 generaily determined on the bass of official dosing prices or the last
reported cabes prices, of if no Sales ane fepcited, baded on quotes obtained
froen established marker makers or peices (nduding evaluated peices) suppbed
by the Fundt” appeoved pricing Servces, quotation reporing systems and
ofher third-party sources (bogether, " Fridng Sendces”), The Funds wil
nomnally wse pridng data for domesic equity seosities recetved shordy after
the W¥5E Close and do not normally tabe inta sooount radng, deatances or
settkerments that take place after te NYSE Close. If markeq value pracing is
used, a foreign {ron-U 5 ) equaty seauity fraded on & foreign exchange oron
mare than one exchange i pically valued using priding information from the
exchange contidersd by the Manager to be the primary exchangs. A foreign
{mon-U S ) equity sedurity will be walued a5 of the dose of radng on the
fareign exchange, o the NYSE Chose, if the NYSE Close aocurs before the end
of trading on e foreign exchange. Domesic and Tofegn (Ron-L 5. ) fieed
income securities, non-exchange traded dervatives, and equity oplions are
nomnally vaued on the basis of quotes cbitained from brokers and dealers o
Fridng Semices using data reflecting the earier dosing of the prindpal
farkets for thode securitied. Prices oblalned fram Pricanig Sendoes may be
based on, among other things, infommation provided by market makers or
estimates of market values obtained fFom yield data refating to investments of
secyrities with similar charactenistics, Certain ficed inoome seqanities
purchased on a delayed-gelivery basis are marked o market daity untl
setrlement an the forwand settbernent date. Bcchange-traded options, except

equity options, futures and options on futures, are valued at the setdement
perice de rermined key the redevant exchange. Swap sgreements are valued on
thie hass of bid quates obtained Trom biokers and dealers or market-based
prtced supplied by Friong Seraces or ofher plang somnces A Fund's
imvestments in open-end management investment companies, other than
exchange-iraded funds ("ETFs™), are valuad at the NAVS of sudh investments
Open-end management investment companess may indude afSliated funds

& faregn (rof=L0 5 ) equty seaunty's value hat matenaly changed after the
dose of the sensiny's primary exchange of princpal macket but before te
MNYSE Clese, the security may be valued at fair value based on procedures
established and approved by the Manager. Foreign (non-U S equity
sequrities that do not trade when the NYSE ks open are also valued at fair
value, With respect to foreign (non-U 5 equity securities, 3 Fund may
deterrming the farvalue of imedments based on information provaded by
Fricing Senvices and other third-party vendors, which may reccenmend fair
value or adustments with reference to other secunities, indices or a2l In
considering whether far valuation is reguired and in detenmining fair

vilues, & Fund may, smong ather things, consider significant evenis fwhich
may be considered to indude changes in the value of LS, sequties of
st incheed) that aoour after the dede of the relevant market and befere
the NYSE Close A Fund may whilize modeling todls provided by thind-pary
vendors o detenmine fai values of foreign (non-U 5 ) seaunities. For these
purposes, amy movement in the applicable reference index of instrument

(" Zenc trigger”) between the eafser dose of the applicabie foreign market
and the NYSE Clode may be deerned fo be a ggnaficant event, prompting the
application af the pricing model (effectiveby resulting in daity far

valuatiors), Foreign exchanges may penmit trading in foreign {non-U.5)
equity secunities on days when the Trust is not open for business, which may
tesuleen & Fund's peetfolio imvestments Being affected when Limtholders ate
unabhe 10 buy or S8l units

seniior secured floating rate loans for which an active se@ndary market exsts
o & reliabile degree will ba valusd at the medn of the Lasl available bidlak
prices in the markef for sudh loans, a5 provided by a Pricing Senvce. Senlor
seaured floating rate loans for which an active secondary market does nat
exist 10 2 relidble deqgres will be valued at tair value, which is miended to
appearirnale marked value In vauing & tenor seduned floating cate loan at
fair value, the factors considered may indude, but are not lirited fo, the
following: (a) the creditwartteness of the borrower and any intermedate
partidpants, () the terms of the loan, {c) recent prices in the market for
sarmalar [oans, if amy, and {d) recent prices in the market for instuments of
samilar quality, rate, penod until next inderest rate reset and matunty

Irvvestmen s vakued in cumendes other than the functional cumency

of & Fund are converted to the Lunclional currency using exchange rates
obtained from Pricing Senvices. As a result, the value of sudh investments and,
in o, the Hay of the Fund's units may be affecied by changes in e valus
of currencies inrefatian 0 the functional curmency. The valie of irvesimnents
traded in for £ign markers o denceminated n currendes osher than

the funcional currency may be affected significanthy on a diy that the Trust is
not open for business. As a resulk, fo the exent that a Fund holds foreign
fmon-L5) irvesments, the value of those ivesiments may dhange ai Gmes
wihien you cannod pundhass, redeem of exchange units and the value of such
Invoesaireen L will b peflected in the Fund s next calod ated NAY

Inveaments for which mackel quotes o market bated valuatons are nat
readiy available are vaued at fair value a5 determined in good faith by

the Manager of persons acting at their direction. The Manager has adopied
mithads Bof valuing sedunties and other atsels in Ghaumatances where
market quotes are noT readily available, and has dedegated o PIMCO the
responsibafity for applying the far valuation methods. In the event that markset
quintes or market based valuations are not readly availatie, and the sequrity
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of asset cannog be walued pursuiant to & Manager approved valuation
i, thee value of the sexurity or a3set will be determined in good faith by
the Valuation Committes. Market quates are considened not readily available
I arasrsLanes wiverd thene 15 an atsence of aurrentor fellaile marke
based data (e g, rade information, bedfask information, ind cative market
quotations ("Broker Quotes™), Fridng Sendces’ prices), induding where
events oour after the diose of the relevant market, but proe 1o the NYSE
Close, that matedally sffect the values of the Fund's secusities of aisets
addition, markel quatet are considered not readity avalable when, due to
extraordinany draymstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
securifies trade do not gpen for trading for the entire day and no other
market priges are vailable. The Manager is responsibiz for monitoring
significant svents that may matedally affect the values of the Fund's seaurities
oF assets and for determiming whether the value of the applicible seqinties of
agsets should be réevalisated in light of sudh sigmficant events

When a Rend wees far waluanon o determine the value of a porthalio seanty
or ather asset for purposes of calaulating its NAY, sech investments will not
b priced on the bads of quotes from the primany market inwhadh they are
traded, bul rather may be priced by another method that the Manager o
pereons acting 81 their ditection believe refects far value. Fairvaliation may
redquine subjectve determinations about the value of a secunity. While

the Trust's poibcy is intended to result in a caloutation of 3 Fund's NAW tat
fairty reflects sequnty values as of the time of prdng, the Trgst cannot ensgre
that Lair values detemnined by te Manager of persons acing a1 ther
direction would acosrately refiect the price that a Fund could obtain for a
security if it were to dispose of that sequrity as of the time of pridng ifar
instance, in a forced or distressed sale), The prices used by a Fund may differ
Troe the value that would be reaized if te seouriies were sold

il Fair Vadue Hierarchy U5 GAAF desorines far value & Me pce hat

a Fund would receive to sell an sset o pay 1o transfer a Bability in an orderly
transaction bebween market partitipants at the meadusrement date it
establiches & fair value hierardy hal prioalizes nputs 1o waluation methods
and requires dsdosure of the fair value hierarchy, separately for each major
category of ascets and labilities, that tegregates T value megsurements N
levels (Level 1, 2, 0r 3). The inputs o methodobody used for valuing seoaities
ane R0t neotsily anindicaton of the ks astociated with imeeting in those
securifies Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value Heranchy are defined as follows

» Level 1—Ouoted prices in active markets or exchanges for identical assets
ansd iatiliges

* Leved 2—Significant other absenvabie inputs, which may indisde, but are
nal bmited to, quoted prices for Smilar assers of Habeities in markers hat ane
active, quited paces fof identical of Smilar sses of lisbikies in markes that
are not active, inputs otiher than quoted prices that are chservable for the
assets. of liabilities (such as interest rakes, yield quves, wolatilifies, prepayment
spieeck, loss severites, aredit risks and default rates) or ather market
conmobarated inguats

# Leved 3—Significant unobseniabde inputs based on the best information
available in the aroumetances, t the edent observable inputs ane ot
availabde, whidh may indude assumptions made by the Manager or persons
acting at their direction that ane uwsed in deterining the fair value of
invesments

In accandance with the requicements of U S, GAAP, the amounts of ransfers
i and cut of Level 3, if material, are dedosedin the Notes 10 Schedube of
Imvestments for each respedive Fund

For fair valuations wsing significant unchéervable mputs, U5 GAAP requires
to discdese wansfers inte and cut of Level 3 of the fair value hierardny and
punchates and iscues of Livel 3 ascers and liabilites during the pesiod

Addtionally, U5 GAAP requires guantitative information regarding the
siqnificant unobsenvable imputs used in the determination of fair value of
Feels of liabilives categorized 34 Level 3 in the far value hierarchy In
acoofdance with the requiremints of LS GAAF, a fasr value Fierardhy, and it
material, details of agnificant uncbservable inputs, have been induded in the
Modes to Schedisle of Imestments for eadh respective Fund

{e] Valustion Techniques nnd the Fair Valus Hierarchy

Level 1.and Level 2 rading a=sets and trading liabilities, at bair value The
valuaBon methods {or "technigues™) and significant inputs used in
determining the fair values of portiolio securities o other assets and liabiiges
categonized as Leved 1 and Level 2 of the fair value herarchy are as fidlows:

Fixed income securifies includng corporate, convertibde and minicps bonds
andnates, U5 government agendes, L5, meaisry obligabions, soveredgn
lszues, bank loans, comeertible preferred secunities and non-U S, bonds are
normathy walued on the bass of quotes cbtained from brokers and dealers of
Fricing Sendces that use brcker dealer quotations, reported frades or
valuation estimates from their intemal pricing models. The Pricing Senices’
internal rodels ute inpuis that s obtervable sech & issuer details, interest
rates, yeeld curves, prepayment speeds, credit riskafpneads, default ranes and
quobed prives for smilar asets. Securiies that wse smila vauation
technbques and inputs a5 desibed sbove are categonized & Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Fized mcome secunies purdhased on 4 delaped-delivery hatis or 5 a
repurchase commtment im & sale-baybad: transacion are marked to mad:et
daily unitil setdement at the fonwand settlement diate and are calegornized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Morigage-related and asset-badked seqrities are usualy issued 35 separate
wandhes, of dasses, of secuniies within sach deal. These secunties ane also
reoemally valued by Pricing Sendces that use broker-dealer quotations,
fieparted rades of waluation estimates from heir intema pridng models The
pricing madels for these securities usually consider trancheJeved atfributes,
qurrent market data, estmated cash flows and market-Dased vield spreads for
each anche, and ingorporate deal collateral performance, a5 available
Mortgage-related and assel-badied sounbes thal use sl waliation
techinbques and inputs as desribed dbove are categonmd &5 Level 2 of the
fanr value hieranchy

Corremon stodes, ETFs, exchangs-traded notes and finandal derfvative
instnuments, such a5 futures contracts, rights and wamants, or oplions. on
futures that are raded on a national securiBes exchange, are s1ated at the
I3t reported sale of sefthernent price on the day of valuation To the exten
these secunities are actvely raded and valuation sdjsirents sre not apphied,
they are categorized as Level 1 of the fair value hierandhy

Investmen ts valued (denominated) in qumendies other than the lunclional
ourrency of a Fund are converted to the functional oeTency wing exchange
ranes {ourmen oy $pot snd fonward rates) abtaned fronm Prcing Serdces As A
result, the WAV of 4 fund's uniis may be affected by changes in the vialue of
currences in relation o the fencional curency. The vabae of securites traded
in foresgn markets or denominated in qurrendies other than the fnctional
qurrency may be affected sgnificantly on a day that the Trustis not open for
buginess. Valuation sdustments may be applied 10 eriain senrities that ae
solely traded on a foreign exchangs 1o acoount for the market movemen(
between the dise of the foreign market and the WY 5E Close These securnities
are valued using Fricing Sendoes that consider the correlation of the rading
pattems of the foreign secunty to the infraday radng in Se U5 markets for
investments. Sequnities rsng these valuation adustments are Cotegonized &
Liewel 2 of the fair value hieranchy. Preferred sedunbes and other equites
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traded on inactive markets or valued by reference to similar instruments are
also categorized as Livel 2 of the fair value hierardy

Evuin-linked securites ae valued by referencing the last repormed sale or
seltlement price of the linked referended equity an the day of valuaion
Foreign exchange adjustments are zpplied to the last reported price 1o
convert the linked equity"s rading cumency to the conltract’s settiing cumency
These imestments ane categotized a5 Level 2 of the far value hierardy

Irvesiments in regisiered open-end mvesmment gpmpantes (oiher than ETF)
will b valued based upon the NAVS of such invesirmenits and ane cateoonzed
as Level | of the far value hierarchy. Investments in unregistered open-end
impestment companies will be calod ated based upon the NAVs of wch
ivestments and are considerad Level 1 provided that the MAVS are
obsenvable, caloulated daty and ane the value Jtwhich both purdhases and
sales will be conducted

Ecquity exchange-traded options and over the counter finandal denvative
mamrusmenty, sich &% fonyand fersHgn Currendy Conract and oplions conracs,
derive thesr vaue from pnderbang asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
other inputs o 3 coenbination of these facors, Thess conracts are normally
valued on the basis of quates abrsingd from a qualason repaorting Sysbem,
estabivshed market makers of Pidng Seraces (normally determined a3 of the
NYSE Clase). Depending on the produsct and the tems of the ransaction,
finandal derivative insuments can be valued by Fridng Senices using a
series of bechniques, induding simulation pridng models. The pricing models
use inguts that are atrserved from acively quoted markets sud &5 quoted
prices, Buer detals, indioes, bidiask spreads, interedt rates, implied
walatilities, yield curves, dividends and exchange rates. Finandal derivative
instruments that use similar valuaton tedniques and inputs 25 desdibed
above are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hieranchy

Cenfrally deared swaps and owver the counter swaps derive their walue from
underlying assel prices, indices, refierence rates, and other nputs of a
combination of these factors. They are valued wing a broker-dealer bid
quotation of on matket-bated prices provided by Pricing Services (nomnally
determined as of the NYSE Close), Centrally deared swaps and over the
courter aaps oan e valued by Pricing Sendces using a senies of techngues,
induckng simutation pricng models. The pridng madels may use inpits that
are obsineed l'-‘l'.ll'l'ldl]l'\ﬂ'ﬂ]' quoted markers sudh &5 the cverright index Svap
rate (TOIST), LIBOR forerard rate, mterest rates, vield cunvet and aedt
spreads. These sequrities are categonized a5 Leved 2 of the fair value hierardy

Lewel 3 trading assets and bading liabilities, at fair value When a fair
waliration rethod i apgiied by the Manages that uses < gmficant
uncdservable inputs, investments will be priced by a method that

the Manager o perons s28ng at their direction believe refects far value and
are categarized a5 Level % of the fair value hierardhy. The valuation
techniques and sigeficant inputs used in determining the fair values of
porifolic assets and Rabilites categonized as Leved 3 of the far vakie hierardy
are a5 follows:

Prony prichng procedures set the base price of & fooed income sedirity and
subsaquently acust the price proportion dby 16 market value changes of a pre-
determined secunty desrmed to be comparable in duration, generally a LIS
Treasuny or soveresign note based on country of issusnce. The hase price may
be @ broker-cealer quote, ransacsion price, of an internal value 35 dermed by
analyas of market dala. The base price of the sdurity may be reset on 3
peericdic bass based on the availability of market data and procedures
approeeed by the Valuation Commattes Significant dhanges in the
unokservabe inputs of the proxy pdng process (e base price) would result
in direct and propoetional changes in the far value of the sequnity. These
SECUTIRES ale Eﬂf‘:-_}lill'll'&lj a5 Leved 3 of the far value ?HEf.il'l:hj'

i third-party evaluated vendor pricing is not available or not desmed to be
indicative of fair valise, the Manager may ebed (o obtain Broker Cuotes
direciy from the broker-dealer or passed through from 2 thindparty ven dor
In the event that f2ir vabue i$ based upan a single sourced Broker Cuote,
these sequmities are calegonzed a5 Level 3 of the fair value hisranchey. Erober
Cuates are bypically received fom established market parSapants. Although
independently recewved, the Manager does not have the transparency o view
the undething inputs which siepport the maket quotaton Significant
changes in the Broker Cuote would have drect and propcaticonal dranges in
the fair value of the sequrity

Short-term debt instruments (sudh a5 commerdal paper) having a remaining
maturity of 60 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, s0long as the
amicetized cost value of sudh short-term debit instruments i spprosimately the
saire & Ohe Tair vaue of the instrument a5 detemined without the we o
amiortized cosl valuation These securities ane categorized as Level 2 or Level
3 of the far valwe hierardry depending on the sounce of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

() Delayed-Delivery Tramsactions Certan Funds may purchase o sell
senumities on g detayed-delveny basas These transacions Imolve 3
comimetment by @ Fund to purchase or sell securities for a predetermined price
o yighd, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the qustomary
setlement period. When delayed-delbvery mansactions are outstandng

3 Fundwill designate of recee a5 colfateral ligud assets In an armount
suffickent Lo et the purdhase price of redpective obligations. When
purchasing a seasity on a delayed-delivery busis, 3 Fund assumes the fights
and ks of ownersup of the seaunty, induding the sk of prce and yield
fuctuations, and takes such fluctuaions into aooount when detemining i
MAV. A Fund may dispase of or renegotiate a del aped-delivery ransacton
after it is entered into, which may resull in a regiized gain of oss. When

& Fund has sold a sequnty on @ delayed-defivery basis, the Fund does not
partidpate in future gains and losses with respect to the secqurity

(b] Inflstion-Indexed Bomds Certain Funds mayinvest in inflation-indexed
bonds. inflation-indiced bonds are fixed income securifies whose prindpal
valug i5 pefiadically adusted by the rate of inflaton. The miened rae on
these bonds is generally fized atissuance at a rate bower than typical bonds
Creer the life of an inflanon-indeoed bond, howeer, interest will be paid
based on 3 principal value, which is adusted for infation, Ay increase or
decrease in the prindpal amount of an inflation-indeced bond will b2 imduded
a5 interest income on the Statements of Operations, even though investors do
o Fedino their prnapal untd matunty. Repayment of Me ongina bond
prindpal upon matuity (35 adjusted for inflation) is guaranteed in the cate of
U5 TIPS, For bonds that do not providie 3 smilar quarantee, the adusted
prindpal value of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the ongina
peirdpal

{e} Leam Participations, Azsignments and Driginatieas Certain Funih may
iveest in direct debt instruments which are inferests in amounts owed 10
lemders of lending Syndicaties by corporate, goremmental, of ofher bormowers
A Fund's investments in loans may be in the form of partidpations in loans or
Fxsignments of 3l or & porticn of eans froen thind parties of imvestments in of
caiginanons of laans by the Furd. A losn is often admirestensd by 4 bank o
ather Srand.al instigution (he "lender ") that acs a5 aent for all holders. The
agent adminssters the terms of the ban, &5 spedhed in the loan agreement

A Fund may irvest in multiple series or ranches of a loan, which may have
vanying terms and cany different associated nsks. When a Fund purchases
assignmenits from lenders it aoguines diect fights against the bomrowers. of the
laang. Thiede loans may ndude pariapations in bridge loand, which ane [oans
taken out by bomowvers for a short period (fypically less than one year)
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pendng amangement of more permanent finandng through, for example, the
issuance of bomds, fregquently high yield bonds issued for the purpose of
ACqUiE o,

The types of logns and related inwestments in which the Fands may imest
indude, among athers, senior [oans, subcrdnated loans (nduding second
fien boans, B-Mobes and mezzning loans), whaole loans, commercial real
state and other commerd al loans and struclured loans. A fund may
ognate |oans of oquine dinect Intenests in loans through primary boan
distribations andfer in private ransacions. In the case of subondnated boam,
there may be sgnifcant indebtedness ranking ahead of the bomowers
obdigation to the hodder of such 2 loan, indleding in Se event of the
Dorowen s insolvendy. Mezzanine [oans &e typicaly seqred by  pledge of
an equity Entersst in the mortgage borrower that owns the real estate rather
than an inberestin a morgage

Imeestmints in boans may indude uwitunded loan commilrents, which ane
contractual obligations for funding. Unfunded hoan commitments may indude
revohing credit faalites, which may obdigate a Fund to supply additional cash
o thie baorower on demand. Unfunded loan commitments represent 3 fture
obligaton in full, seen ihough a percentage of Se comenitied amount may
nat be utiazed by the bomower When ifvesting in a loan partidpation,

3 Fund has the rght to receive payments of pincipal, interest and any fees to
which it is entidled anly from the bender calling the loan agreement and only
upon receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
recenve 3 commitrment fee based on the undresn portion of fie underlyng
e o crechit podtion of 3 loan. I certasn cinuenstances,  Fund may recene &
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a ban by a bomower. Fees eamed of
paid are recorded as 3 component of interest incoms oF interest expense,
respectively, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
are reflected a5 3 liability on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites

{d} Mertgnge Related mnd (ther Aszel-Backed Secunities Certan Funds
iy invest in mortgage-retated and other asset-backed searities that dinecly
or indirectly represent A partiopation in, or are secured by and payable fror,
bsanis on real propenty. Morigage-related sequnities are aeated from poods of
residential or commendal morigage loans, induding mortgage loans made by
savings and loan instilutions, momgage bankers, commercal banks snd
others. Thede wcurities provide 3 monthly payment which consasts of both
ntefest and principal. ntefesd rdy be detemminied by foed or sdustable rates
The rate of prepayments an undering martgages will atfect the price and
wolatliey of a mortgace-related seourity, and may have the effect of
shortening of extending he eftectve duraton of the Secunty relaive towhal
wears antapated af the dme of puschase. The Gy payment of principal and
imterest of certain morlgage-rel ated seaarities is guaranteed with the hl faith
and gedt of the U5, Govemmend. Fools areated and guaranteed by non-
govemnmental issuers, induding government-sponsored corporations, may be
supported by variouws forms of ingurance of guarantess, but there can be no
A%urance that prvaLe inYaners of QUARANTGN can mabel thist obligations under
it INSUTRENCE DOlRIES OF QUArENDEE ATangements. iy of the fisks of
imeesting i morigage-related sequnities secured by commendial morgage
loans reflect the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
rearicets, the atwlity of tenants 1o make lease payments, and the absity of
property to atiract and retain tenants. These sequrities may be less liquid and
iy exhibel greater price volatlity than other bepes of mamgage-related o
other asset-backed securities. Other asset-backed sequnities are created from
many types of assets, induding, but not limited to, auto loedns, acounts
recedvable, such as aredt cand recedeables and hospital acount recefvables,
hirre equity loans, student loars, boat loans, mobde home boans,
reqreational vehicle loans, manufaciured housing loans, snrafltleases,
cofrputer |eates and syndicated bank loares. The Fund may irvest in any kel

of the capital stnuchere of an issuer of mortgage-backed oo asset-badied
sequnties, indudng the equity or “first|oss” ramche

(] Cellateralized Mortgage Obligatiena (" MO2") are debt obligenoms of &
legal eniity that are collateralized by whobe martgage loans of pitvate
mertgage bonds and divided info dasses. CMOs are siructured into multiple
diazses, often refered to as “tranches”, with each dass bearing a different
stated masurity and entitled o 3 different schedide for payments of prindpal
and inderest, induding prepayrnents. C MOS Py be s liquid and may exhitat
aqreater price volatility than other types of morigage-related or asser-badeed
Learilies

(1 Stripped Martgage-Backed Secwrities |"50ES") are denvativee mult-
(a3 mortgage sequities, SMES are uswally stuctured with twg dasses that
receve cifferent propoetions of te interest and perircpal SIS S on &
pocl of mortgage assets. An SMES will have one dass thatwill recesve 3l of
Bhe i keredd (e inberestanly of 710" dass), white the other dass wall neene
the entire prindpal {the prindpal-only or "PO” dass), Payments received for
1025 are included in interest ingome on the Statements of Operations. Because
o principal will be recesved at the maturity of an 10, adustments are made
1o the cost of the Security om 3 ronthly bass until mananty. Thess
adustments ae induded in interest Roome on the Statements of Operations.
Payments received for P05 are rested as reductions to the vost and par vake
of the ssamities

{g) Collsteralized Debt Obligations (" C00<") indude Collateralized Bond
Cidigations ("CBOs™), Collateralized Loan Cibligations ("CL0s™) and other
cirraladhy structured securities. CBOS 3nd CLO ane types of assel-backed
securities, A CBIO s a trust which is backed by 3 diversified pool of high rigk,
beliowr investrment grade fixed income securities A CLO0S @ rust hypecaly

ool ateralized by a pool of logss, which mayindude, among others, domestic
and fodengn sereor Secured loans, semmor unsedured loans, and sybardinate
corparate loans, indudng hoans that may be rated below Bvestment grade of
equivalentunrated kans. The risks of an inwestrment in a CDO depend langely
o The type of the collateral secunitees. and the dass of the (DO in which

a Fund irmeests. | addibion (o the normal nsks asso0ated with fixed income
sengifies dsoussed elsewhere in fis report and the Funds’ Offering
Mernodandum (e.q., prepayment risk, aedit sk, Bqusdiny risk, market risk,
structural fisk, legal risk and interest rate risk fwhich may be exacerbated if
the witeiedt rate payable on & stiuctored Snandng dhanges based oh
multiples of changes in interest rates or inversely 1o changes in interest
ratesfh, CBOs, CLOs, and other COOs camy additional risks indudng, butnot
lirmbed 16, (1) The podsabality that destibubons feonm collateral secunBes wall nol
Dot addeeqquate 10 make inberes of other payerents, () te quality of the

coll ateral may dedine in value or defaulr, (i) the risk that 3 Fnd may imeest
in CBxs, CLOs, or ather CD0s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (v)
the complex struchire of the sequrity may not be fully understood at the time
of investment and mary produce despu tes with the issuer or unexpected
Imvesemmen et

{h} Payment In-Kind Secwities Certain Funds may imeest in paymentinind
sequrities (TPIKS™). PIES may give the issuer the opion at eadh interest
payment date of making interest paymens in éither cash andior additional
debt securities, These additiona debt securiBies usually have the same tenms,
imcluding sratuity dates and interect rates, and assodated rids 35 e
ceiginal bonds The daby market quotatsons of the ongnal bonds may indude
thie docrussd inbenssd (reberred o 25 2 "dirty price ™) and requice 3 pao rata
adustment from the unrealized appredation or depredation on imvestments
ty inkerest recevatle on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

{i} Restricted Secwrities Ceriain Funds may hotd imvestments that are
subyect 1o bega of coniractual resmchons an resale. Thete secunibes may be
Sohd provanely, but miny be required i De registined of exemphid from such
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reqistration before being sobd o the public. Private placement securifies are
generally conggered o be restricted. [sposal of resiricted invesiments iy
imvobve Gime-Consuming negitiatons and expentes, and prompt sale at an
Acceplable price may be difficult to adhieve. Restricned imestments held by
the Funds at May 31, 2020, a5 applcable, are disdosed in the Notes 1o
Lchedule of Invesiments

(i} Strwetured Motes Certan Funds may imest in struchured notes and other
rilated indruments, which afe privabely negotiated debit obligations in which
the prinapal and’ or interest ks detemnined by reference 1o the performance of
2 bendimark gssel, mankel of interest rate (an “embedded index "), sudh &
selected securities, an ndex of sequnities or specfied interest rates, or he
differential performance of e 55815 or markets, sudh a5 indexes reflecting
bands. Structured instruments may be isued by corporations, induding
baariks, atwedll as by governmental agences The terme of widh siructured
instmements nommially provide that their prindipal andfor interest payments are
10 b afjursted upwarck o dowrmwands ut ordinanily nat below 2eng) (o
reflect changes in the embedded mdex whibs te Sructured instements ane
oustanding. As a result, the interest andfod prindpal payments. that may be
meade on & sructured pooduct ray vary widely, depending on a variety of
factors, induding the vol stility of She embedded index and the effect of
changes in the embedded index on principal andfor inferest payments

ki LS. Gavermment Agencies o1 Gavernment-Spensared Enterprises.
Certain Funds may imeest in securiies of U5 Govemment agentes o
govemiment-spansored enterprises. U S Govemnment securities are
obligations of and, in certain cates, guaranteed by, the U5 Govemnment, its
agendies of instnamentalites. Some U5 Government seounities, such s
Trieasury bils, nabes and bonds, snd teauritied quaranteed by te Govermiren]
National Mortgage Assodation {GNMA™ ar "Ginnie Mae ™), are wpported
Ery the full faith and credit of the LS, Govesnment; others, such as those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer to
oo from the LS. Departrment of the Treasury (the "5 Treasury ™) snd
others, such a3 thode of the Federal National Morlgage Astodiation (" FNMA™
or “Fannie Mae"), are wppoaed by the decretionany authority of the 15
Govemment to purchass the agency’s obligations. U5 Govemmend secunities
My inciude 2er0 coupon Seounities, which do not distribute interest on a
qurent basks and tend o b subject 1o a greater risk. than interest-paying
SECuribes of Smelar matunmes

Gowennireni-relabed quarantors (ue , nok badied by the full Tach and credi of
the U5 Govemment) indude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Morigage
Corporation (TFHIMC™ or " Freddie Mac™) FNMA is 3 government-spon sored
coporation. FMMA purchases comentiona {.e ., not insured or guarantesd by
amy government agency) reshidentia momgages from a listof spproved
sollenfoe nacers which incude state and fedirdly chamered Saving and baan
assodations, mutuad savings banks, commerndal banks and aedt unions and
martgage bankers Pass-throwgh securities sased by FNMA are quaranteed as
to timehy payment of principal and intersst by FNMA, but are not Badked by
the full faith and credit of the U S Goverament. FHLMEC ksues Pt Qpaon
Certificates (" PCs™), which are pass-theough sequrites, eadh representing an
undbvided mreresr in a pool of residential morigages. FHLMC guarantess the
temely paymment of interest and ultimate collection of piindpal, but PCs are not
backed by the full faith and oredi of the US. Govemment

I e 2009, under the Single Sequrity initative, FMA and FELMC started
issuing Uniform Mongage Badoed Seomities ("UMEST) in place of heir
aurent offerings of TEA-eligitle securies The Sngle Seasity Initatve seeks
b supepoet the gwer all liuidity of the TBA market and aligns the
charactenstics of FHMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Sequnity initiatve may have on he market for TEA and ather mortgage-
backed seouiies are undertan

Roll-timing strategies can be usedwhere 2 fund seeks o extend the
expiration or maturity of a position, such a5 & TEA sequrity on an underiying
atsel, by choding oul the podtion bedore squration and opening a new
podatican wath respect o subdtantally Mhe saime undedying asset with a |ater
expiration date TBA securities purchased or sobd are reflected on the
Satements of Assets and Liaktelifes a5 an asset or liability, respectively

(1) When-lasued Tramzactions Cerlain Funds may purchase or sell securnitios
on 3 when-issued basis. Thess fransactions are made condifionally becaase 3
seaurity, dthough authonized, has notyer been fssued in the market
Trardactions 1o punchase or sell searities on 3 when fewed basis imaolve

A comimitment by a Fund to purchase or sell these seaurites for a
peedetemined price or vield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
the oustomary settlement period. A Fund may 22l when-Bsued seaunities
befiore they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain or loss

(m] Bank Obligations Bank cbligations inwhich a Fend may mvest indude
centificates of deposit, bankers aoceptances, and fixed o deposis
Certificates of deponit are negotiable certificates isawed against funds
depasited in 3 commercial bank for 3 definite period of time and earming 2
spedfied return Bankers' acceptances are negotizble drafis or bills of
exchange, nommally drawn by an importer o exporter 10 pay for spedfic
mirchandiie, which are " atcepted” by a bank, meaning mn eftect, that the
bank uncondibonaly agrees to pay the face vaue of the inttrument on
maturity, Foed tirme deposits are bank obligation: payable at a stated
maturity date and beating inferest 21 a fimed rate. Fixed time deposits may be
withdrawm on demand by the Imveston, but gy be sbjec 1o eary
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market conditions and the
rerdining matenty of the obitgation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The: following disdiosures contain information on the Funds” abelity 1o lend of
borrony cath O seouilies 1o the extent perrmitbed under e Offering
Mernorandum, which may be viewed a5 bomowing or fnandng ransacSions
Ley the Funds. The locaton of these instruments is desaibed bedow, For 3
detabed desaiption of aedt and cunterparty risks that can be asodated
wilth bewroeings and other finandng transactions, please see Note 7
Frindpal Risks

{a] Repurchase Agresments Certain Funds may engage in repurchate
aipeements. Under the termes of 2 typecal repurdhase agresment,

& Funed purchases an underhying debt obdigation {collateral) subject 1o an
obligation of the seller to repuanchase, and a fund to resell, the cbitgstion at
an agresd-upon pice and time. In an open matunty repunchase agreement,
there is no pre-getenmined repurdhate date and the agreement can be
terminated by e Fund or counterparty at any time The marked valpe of the
oollateral must be equal to or exceed the total amount of she repurchase
obligations, induding interesi. Repurchase agreements, induding aorued
interest. are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabalities. Inerest
eammed 1s redorded a5 a companent of intefest income on the Statements of
Cperations, In penods of inoeased demand for colaterd, 3 Fund may pay a
fen for receipt of coflateral, wiich mdy result in nlerest expénse 19 the Rund

(b} Reverse Repurchase Agreements Cerlain Funds may enies into reverse
repurdhase agresments. In 3 reverss repurchase agreement, 3 Fund delivers a
Securnly in exchange loe cash 10 Tmanaal mettbon, e countefparty, with
A simultanecyus agreemant 1o repunch.ase the same of substantialy the same
Lecrily at an agreed upon price and date. In an apen Maturity e
repurchase agreement, Bere is no pre-determined repurchase date and the
Fyeement can be terminated by e Fund or counterparty at a ime

A Funed i% en 0tled bo receive prindpal and interest payments, i any, made on
thie security delivered o the counberparty during the temn of the sgresment
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Cash received in exchanige for seqerities defivered plus acorued interest
paymENts o be made by & Fund 1o counterparties are refleded as a ligblliy
on the Statements of Assers and Liabdities interest payments made by a Fund
10 COUNTEMparties ane recorded % & component of interest expense on the
Staternents af Operations. In periods of increased demand for the security,

a Fund may receive 3 fee for wse of the seounity by the countemparty, whidh
may result in interestincome o a Fund. A Fundwill seqgregate asses
determined o ke laguid by PIMCO of will ashenase cover its aligations
under reverse repundhate agresmenls

{e} Sale-Buybacla Certain Funds may enter inta finandng transadions
referred to &5 "sale-buybacks’, A sale-buybadk finandng transaction consists
of asale of asecurity by 3 Fund o a finandal institution, the ounterparty,
with a drmileaneous agresment 1 repurdhzee the same of substantially the
Same secunity at an agresd-upon price and date A Fund is noft entided 1o
receive pindpal and interest payments, if any, made on he security sdd to
the counterpar ty during the term of the agreerment. The agreed-upan
proceeds for securitees (o b repuschased by @ Fund are reflecied a5 a liability
on the Stabements of Assers and LabiliGes. A Pund wall recognize net income
represented by the price differential bedween the price receined for the
trasterred Seamnty and the sgreed-upon repufdiade price This is commfmonty
refermed to & the "price drop” A price drop consists of () the foregone interest
and il ationaey income adustments, if any, 3 Fend would have othensice
reqetved had the sequrity nof been sobd and (i) the negetiated finandng terms
betanien 4 Fund and counteparty. Foregone interest and inflations ny o
adustments, if any, are recorded a5 components of interest inodme on the
Statements of Operations. Interest payments based upon negotiated financing
terrns made by a Fund to counterparties are recorded as a component of
interest expense on the Satements of Operations., In periods of inTeased
dernand for e weoaity, & Fund may receive 3 e fof ute of the security by
thie counterpaty, which mdy result in interestincome 0§ Fund A Fund will
seqregale asdels determined i be liquad by FIMCO of will otherwise cower its
obligations under sale-buybad: ransactions

{d} Shert Sabes Certain Funck may enter into short sales transactions, Shart
calet e ransactons in whidh the Fund sells SecuUnty that it may not own

A Fund may make short sales of secumbes to () offset posential dedines in
long posiBons in sirmdar seoumies, (i) o indedse the feiblity of the Fund,
(i) fior imvestmen t retumn, (vl as part of a sk arbitrage strateqy, and () a5
part of its overall porfolio management strategies imvohving the use of
derivative instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
[hie secunty soid short and deltver it to the counterparty. The Rand will
ordinanty have to pay a fee or premium 1o bomow 3 security and be obligated
Lo repuny e lender of he Security amy dvidend or intenest that aodues on the
security duning the period of the boan Seqrities soldin short sale Farsactions
ane] the dividend or interest payable on such sequrities, if any, are refected as
payabie for shodt sales on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. Shom sabes
expose the Fund to the risk that itwill be required to cover its short positon
2% a time when the security o other assat has apprediated in value, thus
resulting in losses to the Fund, A short sale is " against the bow” if

the Fiend hiolds in its portfolio of has the right 1o acquire the sequrity scid
shoet, or securifies identical to the sequrity sold short, at no additional st

A Fuind will b sibject 1o sddbonal nsks 10 the extent hat it engages in shart
sales that are not "against the b ® A Funds boss on a short sale could
theceeticalty be uriimited in cases whena the Fund is unable, for whatever
reasan, to dose ouf its short position

6. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thee followang disdosures contan information an how and why the Funds use
finandd derivative instnements and how finandal derbvative instuments
affect the Funds” finandal position, results of operatons and cash flows The

location and far value amounts of these instruments on the Statements of
Assels and Lisbites and the net realized Qain (o5 and net dhange in
inrealized apgredation (depredation} an the Statements of Cperations, each
categarized by type of finandal derivatve contract and related fisk exposure,
are induded in a table in the Motes to Schedule of Investments. The finandal
denivative mstuments outstanding as of period end and the amounts of net
redized gain doss) and net change in unrealized sppredation (depreciasion]
on finandal defvative instruments during the perind, & dedosed in the
Motes 1o Schedule of inmvestments, serve a5 indiCators of the valurne of
financial derivative activity for the Funds

{a} Ferward Fareign Corrency Comtracts Cerfain Funds may engage in
forwand foreion Cumency conirads in connedtion with settling planned
pairchases of sabes of sequrites, b0 hedge the umency exposure sssodated
wath some of l of 3 Fund's seaunties of 43 pa of &0 imestment srategy. A
forward foreign cumency conrad is an agreement bebween two parties to buy
and sell 3 curmency at a $etprice on a future date. The market value of a
forwand foreign cumency contract Suctuates with dhanges in foreign cumency
exchange rates. Forward foreign ouimency coniracs ane marked 1o market
daily, and the change in value i5 recorded by & Fend 2 an unrealized gain oo
loss. Realized gaind of lotees afé équal 1o e dithr ende bebween the valoe of
the contract at the time it was opened and the value at the dme it was dosed
and are recorded upon delivery of receipt of the currenicy. These confracts
may invobve market fisk in exgess of the unrealized gain or loss reflected on
the Statements of Assets and Liabiities. i addition, a Fund could be exposed
no itk i the counterparties are unable po meet the temns of the contracts o if
the vatue of the currency changes unfaworabdy to the functional cumency. To
mitigate such risk, cash or seqxities may be éxchanged as collaterdl pursant
b the tems of the underying contracts

Certain Fundh, having a hedosd Class, may &0 enter into foraard foreign
currency contracts desigred to offset the effect of hedging at the Fund kv in
ceder o leave the hedged Class with an exposure to dsmendes ofher than the
fumctional asrendy. There can be no guarantes that thes Class spedafic
forwand foreign cumency contracts will be successhul

{b) Futares Comtracks Ceriain Funcs may enter inlo fulures confracts &
futures conract is & agreement o buy of sedl & seounity o other asset for a
et price on A future date and i traded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fulufies CORTrAcTS Bo fruan e ite expodur 10 the Sedumtes markets of Lo
morvements in inferestrates and qurmency values. The primany risks assodated
with e use of fullres contracts ane the imperfect correlation between the
change in maxkel value of the securings bedd by 2 Fund and the priges of
futures comracts and the |:l.'l55'{i|l'.:|' of &0 illquid mankel. Fulures coniraas
are valued based upon their quated daly sttlement prices, Upan entering
it & fubures confract, @ Fund is required to deposit with its fuhares broker an
amiunt of cash, U5 Government and Agency Obligations, of sdect sovereign
debit, in acoordance with the initial margin requirements of the broker or
cachiange. FUtures confracts ané marked 1o market dady and based on such
mrements in the peice of the conbracs, an Approgiate pryable or recenvable
for the change in value may be posted or collected by the Fund (™ Futuret
Variation Margin®), Futures Variation Margins, if amy, are disdosed within
cenrally deared firanaal demvative instruments on the Statements of Assets
a0 LabiliBes. Gains or bosses are recognized but not considered reglized unfil
e conracts opire of cdote. Fulures CoNacts imeodve, 1o vaneng degrees,
risk of loss in exceds of the Futures Vanation Margin nduded within
exchange traded or centrally deared finandal dervative instruments on the
Statements of Assels and liakeliges

(] Dptions Contrmets Cirtam Funds mdy wite of punthade cpbiont 1o
efhance rebams of 10 hedde an easting posaton o future irvestmaent. Certain
Funds may write call and put options on securities and finandal derivative
instruments they gam of in which they may invest Writing put options tends
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toindrease a Fund's exposure 1o the underying instrument. Writing call
Opions tends to dedredse & Fund s exposure 1o the I.I!'Il’}:h']ﬂl'l';‘iﬂw Ul
When a Rendwrites a call of put, an amount equal o the premium fecened is
recordied and subsedquently marked 1o marke? o reflect te anment value of
the aption written. These amounts e induded on the Statermnents of Assets
aned Lishilites. Premigms recefved from writing options which eapire are
treated &5 reafized gains Fremiyms received from wiiting options which are
exendsed o dosed are added to the procesds or offset agairst smonts pad
on the underhying Rutures, svap, Securily OF currency ransaction Lo determine
the realized gaen or loss. Certain options may e wiitien with premiums fo be
determined on a future date. The premiums for these opBons are based upon
impdied volatility parameters 3 specified tenms. A Fund as 3 writer of an
option has ro contnil over whether the undedying mstnament miny be sad
("cal”) or purdhased ("put ™) and as 3 result bears the market sk of an
unfavarable dhange n the prce of the instrument underhing Se written
option There is the risk 2 Fund may not b= abde to enterinto a desing
transaction because of #n iliquid market

Certan Funds i aluo purchase put and call options P'l.lfﬂ'iﬂf-'l'll; cal oplions
tends to increase 3 Fund's epodure 1o the underhying instrument. Punchasing
pidt oplions tefids 10 decreate & Fund's expodire 10 the uidebang initument
A Fund pays apremiumwhich is induded a5 an asset on the Statements of
Assets and Lisbifties and subsequenty marked 1o market to refledt the
cuirent vaiue of the option. Premiums paid for purdhasing options whidh
expire ae Meated ot realized losses. Certain optaons iy b puanchased wath
premiums to be deterrined on a future date. The premiums Tor these options
are based wpon implied wolatility parameters at spadfied tems. The risk
assodated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the premium
paid. Fremiums paid for purchasing options which are exerdsed or dosed are
added o the amounts pad or offter sgainst the procesds on the underying
imvEstment ransacion 1 determing te realized Gainor |ass when the
underhing ransaction is executed

Credit Delault Swaptions Certan Funds may wite o purchace aedt default
swapsons to hedge exposure to the gredit nisk of an investment without
rzking a comeritment ko the undelying instument. A aredt default swaption
5 an oplica 10 sl or buy credit protedion to 3 speafic reterance by entering
it a pre-gafined svap agreement by some tpecfied date in the future

Inflation-Capped Optienz Certain Fundt iy wite or pur chace inflstes-
capped options b0 enhance refurns of for hedging opportunities. The purpose
of punch aseng infl ation-Capped options & 1o protect 3 Fund from wiflation
enosion above 3 OMMA rate oh 4 ghven ROBonal expotune. A Boor can be
s [0 give downdice proTeCTon 1o ivvesimients in inflation-kn ked products

Interest Rate-Capped Options Cerlin Funds iy wd it of puichase intees
rate-Capped oplions o enhance retums o for hedgng cpportunities. The
purpose of purchasing interest rate-capped opdons is 1o protect a fund from
floatng rae risk above a certain rate on & given notonal exposure. A floor
can be used to give downside profection o investments in interest rate linked
products

Interext Rate Swaptions Cortan Funds may weite of purchase intérest rate
swapiions which are opSons to enter into a pre-defined swap agresment or
to shomen, extend, canoel of othenwise modify an existing swap agresment,
bey some specfied date in the future. The writer of the swaption becomes the
counberparty 1o the svap i the buyer exerdoes. The interest rate svaption
agreement will spedtywhether the buyer of the 9vaption will be 3 ficedrate
regever of 3 Boed-rate payer Upon exerdse

Optiens on Exchange-Traded Futures Contracts Cerfain Funds may wiite o
purchase options on exdhangeraded futures coniracts {Futures Ophon ™) o
hedge an exising pesition or funure invesiment, for speulative purposes of to

manage exposiee o markel movements. A Futures Option is an option
coniract in which the underlying instument is & single fubenes conbrac

Optioms om Securifies Cernan Funds may wiile of purchase opions on
secunifies o enhance refums of bo hiedde an exisling position or fulure
Investment, An option on 3 security uses a spedfied sequity 35 the underlying
Instrument for the option contract

[d) Swap Agreements Certan Funds may imvest in swap ageements. Swap
geements are bilaterally negobated agreements betwesn a Fund and &
Counbenparty 1o eokange of avap imeestment cash flows, Ml fonkign
currencies o marketdinked retums at spedfied, future ntervals. Swap
Agresments may be prvately negatiated in the OTC market o may be deared
through 3 thind party, known 35 2 central counterparty of derivatives dearing
) Zalicn (Ceentrally dearsd Svaps™) A Fund may enten into assel, gedt
default, coss-aamendy, interestrate, wial reum, vanane and other foms of
A0 SONSEENLS D0 Trh S0 (18 eqpotine 10 credit, QUrmemdy, interesl rate,
commodity, equity and inflation risk In connection with tese agresments,
seqxities or cash may be |dentified a5 oollateral or mangin in aooordance with
the terms of the respective saap agreements to provide assets of value and
e in the event of defaultor barkruptoyinsohancy

Centratly cleared Swaps are markoed 1o markel daly based upon walusions a5
determined from the underdying contract or in acsrdance with the
requirements of the central countenparty of derivatives dearing organization
Changes in market value, if any, are reflected a3 2 component of net change
Inurrealized appredation (depreciation) on the Statements of Operations
Daily changes in valuation of centrally deared swaps (" Swap Variation
Margin™), it any, are disdosed within centrally deared financial derivative
instruments on the Statements of Asseld and Liabdites OTC twap payments
received or paid at the beginning of the measurement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Labdines and Fepresent premiuns pad o
received Lpon &nlenng into Bhe swiap FFeement 10 LoMpensate for
diflerénces benwsén the stated térms of the D agreement and prévailing
marked conditions (Tedt spreads, curmency exchange rates, interest rates, and
other relevant factars). Liptront premiums recerved (pand) are imbaly reqonded
& liakalities (assats) and subsequently merked to market to refect e aament
value of the twap. Thise upfront premeums ane reconded 35 realized gaing or
lersges an the Statements of Operations upon bermination of maturity of the
Swap. Aliquidation payment reossved of made at the termenation of the dwap
5 recorded as realized gain or loss on the Statements of Operations. Met
periodc payments receved of pad by a Fund are induded as part of realized
gaing of lasses on e Staterments of Operabons

For purpeees of apphing certain of a Fund's irvestment polices and
FESTTCRONS, Swap A greaments, like otfver derivatve inSruments, may be
valued by 4 Fund at market value, notiona value or full expodure value in the
case of 3 oredt default swap, in applying certain of the Fund's invesiment
polices and resiricions, the Fandwill value the aedin default swap atis
neotional value or its full exposure vaue (e, the sum of te notional amount
for the contract plus the market value), but rmay value the edin defaull svap
at masket vaue for purposes of apphing certain of the Fund’s cther
imvestment pobdes and resrictions. For extample, the Fund may walue gedit
default swaps at full exposure value for purposes of the Fend's aedit qualiy
quidknes §F any) becauss sudh value in general better reflects the Fund's
actual econamec expodure during e termn of the credit default svap
Speimenl As a result, & Fund miay, at times, hiave noticn 3 &xpodune 10 an
agget dass (before neting) that is greater or lesser than the stated limit or
restiction noted in the Fend's Offering Memarandum, In this aonted, both
the notional amount and the market value may be positive or negative
depending on whether the Fund is selling or buyéng protection through @e
aredit default wwap The manner in which cerlain ssamities of other
instruments are valued by the Fund for purposes of apphying invesiment
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polides and restictions may differ from the manner in which thess
imvestments are valued by other types of investors. Eniening inio swap
Agreemenls invahves, tovaning degress, elements of interest, dredit, markes
and documentanon nd in ecets of Mie AMoUnLS redognized on he
Staternents of Assels and Liakilities Swch risks invobve the possibility that
there will be no ligued market for these agreements, that the counterpariy to
the agreements may cefault on its obligation to perform or disagree as to the
g of comracnaal teemes in the agreements snd Hat tere may be
untavarable changes in intenest rates of the values of the asset upon whidh
the avap is based

A Fund's masimum risk of loss from counterparty aredit sk is the discounted
netvalue of the cash flows 10/ be received from the Counterpany over the
contract’s rermaining ife, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
e mriggated by having a master netling arrangement betwedn 4 Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collateral to a Fund 1o cover a Fund's
expiure b the coumberparty

To the extent a Fund has a picy 1o limit the net amount owed to or to be
receved from a snghe counterparty under edsting swap agreements, sich
famitation only applies to counterparties to OTC swaps and does not apply to
centrally desred swaps where the counterparty & a central coinberparty of
dermva trveet. ol earing ofgani Zaticn

Credit Delault Swmp Agresments Corlan Funds may enler mio

aridt defaull swaps of orpedate, loan, doverengn, LS. munkdpa of LS
Treasury issues to provide 3 measure of protection against defaults of te
issuers (i e, 10 recipce risk where 3 Fund owns of has eposure (o the
referenced obligation) or to take an active long or short porsition with respect
oo the fikelibood of 3 partioular isseer's defaut, Credit default swap
agresments invohve one party making a strearn of payrnents frefered to as
the buyer of profection) o another paty (the seller of protection) in exchange
far the nght Lo recéive a spedfied retum in the event thal the referenced
entity, chligation or index, a5 spedied in the wvap agreement, undergoes 3
certain credht event. AS 3 seller of protection on aedit default swap
agreements, 3 Fund will generally receive from the buyer of protection 4 fixed
rate of incomse throwghout the temm of the wwap provided that there i< na
oedt event. As the sefer, 3 Fundwould effectively add feverage toits
poartiolio because. in addiion toits olal net astets, the Rend would be
subject by investment eposure on the noliond amount of the swap

If a Fundis a seller of protection and 3 gedt event ooours, 35 defined under
the tenre of that pariodar swap sgesment, 3 Fund will either () pay (o the
buryer of protection an amount equal o the notonal amount of the wvap and
take celivery of the referenced obdigation, ofher deliverable obligations or
underhing securities compuising the referenced index or i) pay a net
settlement amount in the form of cashor securities equal to the notional
amount af the Gaap less the recovery vialue of the referenced obligation of
uniderbying seourities comping the refirenced index 1 a Fund is a buyer of
protection and a aredit event oocurs, 35 defined under the terms of that
particular swap agreement, a Fund will either i) receive from the seller of
profection an amount equa to the noional amount of the swap and deliver
the rederenced oblgation, other deliverable obligations or undethying
secyrities compiisng the referenced index or i) recéive 4 nel seldement
amountin the form of cash or sequnties equal to the notional amownt of the
swap bess the recovery walue of the referenced obligation of underlying
sequrities cornpeising the referenced inde Recovery valies e estimated by
ket makers considenng either indwstry standand recovery rates of eptiny
spedfic faciors and considerations unil a qedit event ooowrs. If 3 gedt event
has occurmed, the reowery valis |5 defenmined by a fadlitated aucton
whereby a minemam number of aliowatle broker bids, together with a
spedied valiation method, are used to caloulate the setfement value. The
ability 1o deliver ottver obligations may result in & dheapesi-to-geliver opiion

(the Baryer of protection”s right to dhoose the deliverable obligation with the
Icwest value following aaedt event

Creadt cetaudt s a0 sgreements on dredil ndices involve one party makeng a
stream of payments to another pasty in eochande for the nght o recenve a
speified return in the event of 3 write-down, prindpal shortfall, interest
shortiall cor default of all or part of the referenced enBilies comprising the
aredfit index. & creditindex is 4 basket of qedt insiruments or exposures
cesined to be representaine of some part of the aedit market a5 a whole
These indices are msde up of reference aedis that are judged by a pal of
dealers 1o be the most liquid entites in the aadt defaull swap market bated
on the sector of the index Components of the indices may indude, but are
nod limited 10, investment grade securities, high yeld secqunities, asset-badcked
sequnities, emenging maekets, andior various aredit ratings within eadh sector
Credit indeoes are traded uting o edil default Sevaps with standandized e
induding a fxed spread and standard matusity dates. Anindex credit defauit
swap references Al the names in the index, and if there 15 3 default, the dedin
event i settled based on that name’s weight in the indse The camposition of
the indices changes perodically, ususally every six months, and for most
indices, sach name has an equal weightin the index A Fund may wse aedi
et sl waps oh credt mdoed 1o hedge a portolio of credt defwilt swapds of
bords, which is less expensive than it would be fo buy many credit default
owaps 1o achieve a smilar effect Credin default swaps on indces are
instruments for prokecting investors owning bonds against default, and
fracers use them o speulate on changss in aedt quslity

Ifplied credt spreads, fepresented in sbaalute temre, utilized in dé[::ﬂ'r'L!'L'l'l-:_T
e market value of Tedt default swap agreements on corporate, [oan,
soveneign, U S, municipal or US. Treasury issues & of period end., if any, are
disdosed in the Notes to Schedule of Investments. They senve a5 an indcator
of the curent status of paymentiperfonmance risk and represent the lioelihood
of ritk of dedault for the refereniced entity. The implied credit spread of 2

par il referenced entity reflects the cost of buying/selling proteclion and
may indude upfront payments required o be made o enler into te
Jgeament. Wider credit spreads represent a deterioration of the referenced
eflity’s aredit soundness and & greater likeishood of itk of default or ather
arechit event aonuming a5 defined under the tems of e agresment. For gedit
detault Sadp MOPEETRALS 0N 2558 Lbadbed Secuntes and oredl indioes, the
quoted market prices and resulting values sene a5 the indicator of the current
status of the paymentiperformande risk. inoedsing market valiees, in absolute
terms when compared to the nofional amount of the swap, represent a
detenioration of the referenced l?ﬂ'.i‘.fﬁ' et sowndness and a greater
likelihoad or sk of defaidt or other aredit swen? aocurring a4 defined under
e berms of the agreement

The maximum patenfial amount of future payments (undscounted) tat

a Fund a5 a seller of protection could be required to make under 3 cedit
default swap agreement equals e notional amount of the agreement
Metiona arounts of each indvidual credt dafault swap agresment
cutstanding as of pencd end for which 3 Fend is the seller of pratection are
disclosed inn the Mates 10 Schedube of investments. These potential amounts
wiould be partisly offset by any recovery values of the respective referenced
obligations, upfront payments receved upon entering into he agreement, o
et amounts received from the setdement of buy protection aedi default
Lwap agreements entered into by a Fund for the same referenced entity or
enlities

Interest Rate Swap Agreements Certzin Funds are subiject to inferest rate
fisk exposure in the nomal course of pursuing their investment objectives
The value of the $aed rate bomds that 2 Fund halds may decréae if imtefest
rates pise. Tohelp hedge aganst tis nsk and to mainten i ablity o
generale intome 31 prewaling market rates, 3 Fend may enter inko interest
rate awap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exhangs
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bry & Fured with another party for Sheir respective commitment to pay o
reeive intenest on the national amount of princpel. Certain forms of inbenest
rate avap agreements may ndude: () interest rate caps, under which,
Pl f0F 3 Premium, one paty sgnees 10 maie payiments 1o Se ofher Lo he
extent that inberest rates excesd 3 spedifed rate, or "cap”, (i) inlerest rate
flooes, under which, in rebam for 3 premium, one party agrees to make
payments to the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
pate, of "Hoor”, (i) interest rate collars, ander which & padty sells & cap and
punchases 3 B0or oF vice veria in An aftempl b protect itself against interest
rate movements exceeding given minimum of macimum bevels, (v) callable
interestrate swaps, under wiach the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consideration for the right to early terminate the svap ransaction i whok,
AN g ookt and A1 a predetenmined date and time paoe 0o the manaity date,
{v) spreadodes, whidh allow e interest rate Svap users olok in the
farwiand differential {or spread) between the intenest rate swap rate and &
spedfied bendhmark, or () basis swaps, under which two parties can
exnchange wariatie intere rates based on different segments. of money
markets

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

I thve: moemal course of business, he Funds (or Acquared Fund(s), if
applicable) rade finandal instruments and enter into finandal ranssctions
wihere sk of potential loss exsts due 1o wch things a5 changes in the market
{market risk) or failure cr inakality of the other party o a ransaction to
perform (redt and counterparty rick). See below for a detaled desariptaon of
selet pringipal risks

Fiind of Faids To the extent that certain Funds invest substanSally all of their
rESpRCIvE a55eRs in Acquired Fund(s), the ks dssodiated with AVESTNG IR
thece Funds will be dosely related to the rsks asodated with the securities
aned other imvestments beld by the Acquired Fund(s). The atslity of the Funds
1o achieve their respective imestment objectives may depend upon the ahility
of the Acquired Fundis) fo achieve ther respeciive investment objeciives
There can be o assuramos that thie Frestmient objecive of any Aoquired
Fuirsdie) will e scfeeved. The NAW of an Acquining Fund will flecneate in
resporge bo changes in the respective NAY of the Acquired Fund(s) in which it
nvests

In the noemal course of business, Acquined Fund(s) irade Sinandal insmements
and enter it finamdal rarsactons where sk of potEntM 058 edsts due
changes i the market drarket sk, of failure or inabity of the other party b
A transachon o perforem (redil and countemparty ndk)

Markat Rk A Fund's investments in Snancal derivative instuments and
other finandal mstuments exguise the Fund bo vanious s such as, but not
femited to, interest rate, foregn (von-LIS ) qamency, equity and commudicy
rigks,

Interest rabe rek is the ridk that fixed moome secunties and other instuments
et by & Funid may dedme in value because of an increase in intenest rates. If
nominal interest rabes rise, the value of certain foed income securities held by
3 Fund would likety degesse. A nomingl interest rate @n be desaibed as the
sum of a real interest rate and an expected infation rate. Interect rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money if
Ihece chamges are Aot antidpated by Fund managsment A Fund may nol be
able so hedge against changes in interest rates or may chocse not to do so for
oost of other reasons. in sddition, amy hedges may not work as intended

Duration is & measure used 1o determine the sensivity of 2 seuritys price o
changes in interest rates that Incorparates 3 seouriny's yiedd, coupon, fingl
ity a0d call featnes, among offer CRracmensno. Commity s an
addsonal meature psed W understand a secunty’s or Fund's interest rage
sensitivity that meatures the rate of dhange of duralBon in fesponse to
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changes in interest rates. Fed income securities with longer dirations tend
o b2 e Sersitvg 10 chandges in Intefest rates, usually making them more
vl atile than seqritied with shorter durations. A wide vanety of factors ¢an
CaurGe Inemest rabes of yhelds of LS. Tredtury Seountes (o welds of ather
types of bonds) o ree (e g, central bank monetary policies, inflation rates,
general economic condiions, etc). This is espedatly tnse under curent
condBons because interest rates and bond yields are near histonicaily low
leviels This, the Fumds cumenty face & heightened tevel of sk asodated
wath rrsng inberest rates andior bond yields This could be driven by a vanaty
of factors, induding but not Bmited to central bank monetary palides,
dhangnginfason or real groweth rates, general econcimic conditions,
inreasing bomd issuances of reduced market demand for low weldng
Imvesements Further, whibe U5 bond markets have steaddy grown over ihe
past three decades, deaber “market making ™ abilicy has remained relatvely
stagnant Given the importance of intermedany “market making” in Geating
& robust and active market, feoed income securites are qumently

fadng ingeased valatlity and liquidity rides. Al of these factors, collectvely
andior individually, could cause a Fund 10 Jose value: 1f the Fund lost enugh
vale, 1he Fund could face inareased Unithol der redempions, which could
further impair its performance, Alio, the Fund may be adversely atfected
wihen 3 lage Unitholder pundhases o redeerms large amounts of unite, which
can ooour 3t any ime and may impact the Fund in the same manner a5 a high
volume of redemption requests. Large Lnitholder ransacions mey Impadt
the Fund's liquidity and net assat value Such ransactions may also ndnease
e Fund s ransactaon costs o othenaise cause the Fund o perfarm
differently than intended, Moreover, the Fund is subject 1o the ngk Sat
ather Unitholders may make investment dedisions based on the choices of 3
large Unithelder

A Fured pay hisee sigrificant esposine 1o issuers in e Uinited Kingdom. Th
Linited Kingadorm’™s decdon oo legve the Eurcpedn Uinicn mdy imnpact Fund
returns. This dedision may cawse substantal volatility in foreign exchange
markets, fead toweakness in the exchange rate of the British pownd, result in
a sustained perbod of marker Enoenanty, and destabidize some of o of the
offer European Unkon merber couniries andfor the Eurozone

Fargign (mon-U1 5 ) securitees in this report ane dasatied by the country of
incorporation of a holdng. (n certan inslandes, & Leaurity's countny of
incorporation may be different from its country of ecomomic exposure

i a Fund imvests drectly in foreign (non-U % ) aerendies. or in secunities that
track in, and receive revenues in, foreign (ron-Ui S ) oamendes, of in finandial
dimvaina InStuments that proside expadure 1o Tamegn (nof=UL5 ) dermendes,
1wl e subect to the misk that thode ourmendies will deding invales reative
fo the base currency of the Fund, or, in the case of hedging positions, that
the Fund's base cumency will dizcling in value relative to the cumency being
hedged Cumency rates in foreign aounties may fluctuate dgnificantly over
short periods of ome for & number of regsons, indudng dhanges in interest
rates, intervention (or the fakure (o intervene) by U5 o foreign gonvernments,
Central banks of supranational enites sudh & the internatona Monetary
Fund, o bey the impositon of Qumendy conirods or other podithcal develcpaments
in the United $iates or abroad Asa result, a Fund's Bvestments in foreign
cumenCy-denorminated seouriBes gy reduce the Fund's returns.

Thie marked valwies of equities, such a5 comamon siods and |{l".'!l?l fed Secunties
o equaty related invesiments sudh a5 futures and options, have Fstoncally
fren and fallen in periodic opdes and may dedine due o generdl maroet
condtions which are not spedfically refated to a parodar company, such a5
redl or peroeived SCherse econmer condticns, hanges in he general
cutlosk for cofporate eamings, dhanges in nbresl of Cumendy rabes, pudblic
hvealth ermergencies, sudh & te spread of infectious lness or dsease, of
adverse imvestor sentiment generally. They may Ao dedine due bo factors
wihich affect a particular industry of industries, such a5 labor shortages or
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increased producticn costs and competithe conditions within zn industry
Diffierent types. of equity seqmities may read differendy to these
developrnents. Equily seaxities and equity related immstments generally have
greater arket prioe voladlity than foed income seamities

The Funds may invest in certain instruments that rely in some fashion ypon
LIBOR  LIBOH it 2 average interast rate, determined by the ICE Bendimark
Administration, that banks charge one ancaber for the wie of shoet-ferm
rroney The Urkted Kingdom's Fnandal Conduect Authorisy, whidh requianes
LIBOR, has anmounced plans o phase out the use of LBOR by the end of
2021. The wanston may resullin a reduction in the value of certan
instnements held by the Funds or & reduction in the effeciveness of related
Furd transsctions such a5 hedges. There remains uncertanty reganding futuse
utilization of LIBOR and the natere of sy replacement rate (e.g., ®e Sequred
Crvernaght Rnandng Rate, which 14 intendied to replace LS. doftar LIBOR and
measines the oost of overnight bomowings throesh repurchase agreement
transactions collaberabzed with U5, Treaswry secunties), and any patental
effects of the ransition asay from LIBOR on the Funds oron certain
Instnuments in whach the Fumds imest are not known and aould result in
losses 1o the Funds

Beginning in January 2020, gobal finanda markers have sxperienced and
ey continue bo experience significant voladlity resulfing from the spread of 5
nowved coronaings known as COVID-19. The cutbreak of COVID-149 has
resulied in ravel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply dhain
disnuptions, lower consumer dernand and general market uncertainty. The
global econoiy, the econceies of certan nations and indrideal Bsiers hive
Beeen and may continue 0 be adversely atiected by COVID-19, partiailady in
light of the interconnectivity between economies and Snanda markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds' performance. In addition, COVID-19
and governmental responses. o COVID-19 may negatively imgact the
capaklines of the Funds” serioe prodders snd daupt the Funds” operations

Credit and Counterparty Riska A Fund will be expoted tocredit risk 1o
parties with whom it rades and will also bear the sk of setement default
A Fund minimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertaking ransations
with a large number of Qustomers and counterparties on recognized and
reputable enchanges, where applicable. OTC defvative transaions. are
subject to the ek that a counterpanty bo the transaction wall not fulfll its
contracual abligatend 1o the other party, a8 imdfy of the protecions sloded
to cendrally deared derivative transactions might noft be available for OTC
derivative iransactions. For derivatives raded on an enchange or through 3
ceniral countenparty, edif ek pedices wath the creditw orthiness of

thie Fend's deaning broker, of the dearnghouse itself, rather than 1o 3
counterparty in an OTC derivative ransadion. Thanges in regulation relating
to & Fund's use of derivatives and related ins nements coudd potentially Bmit
or impact the Fund's Zbility to invest in derrvatives, imit the Fund's ability to
employ certain strategies that wse derivatives andfior adversely affect the value
of performance of derrvativis and the Fund A Fend could [o%e maney if the
fssuer or quaranics of 3 oved income security, of the Counterpany i &
finandal derivatve insinements coniradl, repurdhase agresmentof 3 loan of
portfolio securiSies, is unable or umwilling te make mely prindpal andior
IMTEnES] PAYEnEs, OF 0 othenwise honor it cbligations. Seantes and
finanda derivative insnaments are sulject to varying degrees of gedit sk,
which iy be reflected in credit ratings.

Sarmalar b credin risk, 3 Fund may be exposed 1o counberparty risk, of the risk
that zn institution or other entity with which a Fend has ursettid or open
transactions will default. PIMCO, a5 the Manager, minimizes Counterpany
ks bo the Funds through & nurnber of wanyd. Priod RO entefing into
transacticns with 4 new counteparty, e PIMCO Coantenpaty Risk
Commuttes conducts an axtensive aredit reviaw of sudh counterparty and must
approse thee use of such counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant o the temms of

the underhing contract, bo the extent that unpaid amounts cwed to 3 Fund
exceed 3 predetermined threshold, sudh counterparty shall advance colateral
e & Fund in the form of cash of securiBes equal in value to the npaid
Araouint cwived R0 & Fund. A Fund may ifvest Sudh collateral in secunties of
other instruments and will typically pay interest 1o the cownterparty on Se
collateral received.  the unpaid mount owed o a Find subsequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be reguired to return to the counterparty all o a
portion of the codlateral previously advanced. PIVGCO'S attemprs 1o minimize
counbenparty ek may, hiowewer, be untudoesshul

Al ransachions in isbed seunties are setdedipaid for upon delivery using
appeoved counderparties, The nisk of default s comsidered minimal, a5 defivery
of securiies sold is only made once a Fund has received payment. Payrment is
made on 3 purchase onge the seaurities have been delivered by the
counterpanty. The trace will fail if either party fails to meet it obligation

Market Disruption Riak The Funds are subject winvesment and operational
risks associated with finandal, economic and other ghobal market
developments &nd disnptions, induding those arising from war, fmonism,
market manipula thon, govemment inteventions, detaults and shutdowns,
poltiCHl dhaniges of diplomanc divelopments, pubdic hiealdh emergences
(such as e speead of infecticus diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalfemaronmental disasters, which can all negatively impact the seaurities
markets and cause e Funds to lose walue These events can also impair the
technology and other operational systems wpon which the Funds” sendice
peronviciers, including PIMCO a5 the Funds” investment adviser, rely, and coukd
atfensise diaupt the Funds’ sendce providers” ability 1o fulfill ther obligation:
to the Funds. For example, the speead of an infections respiratony iliness
caused by a movel strain of coron aanss (nown as COVID-19) has caused
volatility, severe maket dislocations and hquidity consiraints in many
markets, incluckng markets for the securities with the Funds hoid, and may
achviersily affect the: Funds” investments and operations

4 MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Fiends may be sublect 1o varous neting arangements (e
Agreements ™) with select counterpanties. Matter Agreements goven he
tenmes. of certaim transactions, and are intended 10 reduce the counterparty risk
aspodated with relevant ransactions by spedtying credit pratection
mechanisms and providing standardzation thatis intended to improve legal
cetanty. Exch type of Master Agreement Govems cerain bypes of
wansactions. [¥fferent fypes of mansadions may be raded out of different
legal entties of aMfikates of a parscular organization, retulting in the need for
multiple agreements with a angle counterparty. As the Master Agreements
are speafic 1o wmgue operations of different asseq types, they allow a Fund to
diose out and netits total exposure to 3 counterparty in the event of a default
with respect (o all the ransactions govem ed under 3 single Master
Agreementwith 2 counterparty. For finandial reporting purpdses the
Staternents of Assets and Liabelites generally pretent dernaive as4e1s and
lizbilites on a gross basis, which refects the full nisks and exposures prior to
fetting

Master Agreements can 350 help Bmit coumerpadty sk by spedfdng

ool aberal poddng Sangements Al pre-armamded expoure levels. Linder most
Maxther Agresrments, collaneral is routinely trardfired of the total Hel expodne
b certain transactions (nef of exsting collateral already in place) gorverned
ienger the relevant Master Agreement with 2 counterparty in & given account
excends 3 specified threshold, which cypdcally ranges from 200 10 $250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agreement. United
Siates Treasury Bills and LS. dallar cash are generally the preferred forms of
oollateral, athough other securifies may be used depending on the tems
cutlined in the applicable Master Agreement Securities and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected as assets on the atements of Assets and Lisbiliies a5
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gither 2 component of investments at value (seoumities) or Deposits with
sunberparty. Cash oollateral recehved & el I 3 Segregated
Acoount and a5 sudh i reflected as 3 Rabid ety of ARsels and
Leabelities a5 Deposilts frofm counterparty. The mdroet value of any Secinbes
received as collateral is not reflected a5 a companent of MAV. The Fund's
oeer3l| exposune 1o counterparty risk can change antaly withen & shoet

period, a5 it i affected by each ransaction s hﬁ* to the relevant Marster
Agresment

StEr Repurchase Agresments
Master Repa Adgreements ™) govem repunchase,
ons between the Funds and
fi,

; sale-buyba
S0 N IErTes. Master Repo AQreements maintan provsio
g omer things, inidaton, income payments, svents of defaul
ance of collateral. The market value of rarsscnons under the Master
ol abera pledged or received, and the nel eqpasune by
couriberparty a5 of period end are ds fin e Mobes 10 Schedule of
Imvestments

Master Sequrities Forwand Transaction Agreements (" Master Fonward
=1 oneard :-Z'[.lf L nSBCUON, sudh as TEA
; delivery or salebuyback Wansacions by and
betwreen the Funds and select counterpart & Master Forward

Lan provisions for, among other things, initiation and

0, praymient and tramster, events of defautt, termination, and
ance of collaeral. The market value of Torwand 3 transact ons
e, and the fet expostine URTETTarty at aof
'ﬂ.u:-,s.ﬂd are rJur. peed in the Motes to Schedule of rw Lt

omer Accunt Agreements and related addenda govern dleared

deriva fives. fransactions sudh as fulses, options on futures, .*"l"‘dﬁ o QT
derivatives. Sudh ransacions require postng of mioal m
by each relevant deaning agency whidh i5 segregated in an 3
fuhares commisson menchant (T FCMT) regabentd wi

Futures Tradng Commission {TCFTCT). In the United ;
ey be reduced as creditors of an FCM cannot have a daim be Fund assetsin
the seqregated ao B n the event of an FCM

defaudi soensnio furth e )i r|-lc o the Fureds. Vanation margn, of
changes in market valoe, are generaly sodhanged daily, but may not

fietad betwsen fulunes and dedfed OTC

TC dernvalnes
agreed to 3 separabe arrangement in respedt
walwe of aooumlated wnrealized appred ation (depredation), initial margin
,.-.-sl'-.-J, and any unsectled vanation mangn as of penod end ane disdoded in
thie Miaites 8o Schiedule of Invesments

Intesneational Swaps and C
Credt Support d\."-rla.u-r.-lf {
derivative Bransactions entered ingo by the with select counberparties
15004 B .fu:]'-_ AnLEN prosucns fioe L}a-'n_-r.jl- 5
efresenianons, i .||$ codlaterad postng and evenis of defaudt or
von incdude condbons thas may |
elect 1o ‘F'Tl“i B Rar '-, an "".-J'.P setthement of 2l

Jreement, Ay

*.ernnn to terminate ear I-,- 0 '-1 I'-.A rr
freted arourmstances, the 1S0A Master -5-_.'I-.- Lmay conLan &I
rovisaons that add coonienna olection beyond coverage o
e if the counleparty has 3 deckne in aredil quakty bilow 3 pred

level These amounds, if any, may be seqregated wi
The market vakie of OTC finandal derivative instruments,

d net exposne by counterparty as of period e

Schedde of Ervesiments
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund is sulbject 1o thie following fees payable ot the following annweal rates (Stated . 3 percentage of the avrage daily net assers of each Fund, o Class, if
applicable, 1aken separately)

Feag

Furd M anagemant Adwiecry Adsinistratve Agancy Diseribution
PIMCO Bernsada Foreign Lew Deranon Fend 0736% - - - =
PIMCD Bermuda ULS, Low Duiation Fund 0756% - - — —_
PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund - 045%™ 05%" i1k 3 [k
PIMCO Rsal Return Fund - BEE ik nE% %"
PIMCO Shost-Term Steategy

= Al n35%" - - noE%” 03"

» G U = = — = —

s JUPY) — — — — —

. A0 - = = = =

. P o™ - - nme™ ik A

.U 03 %™ - - ng%™ 0™

T PRCACE) o Tl Popests Fradf i a1 10 % oot i B iyl e 5 eidnd il o 0k el it Wl (95 o vierte gl o i Pt LRS00 vt oo B Fucl i e i 0O e dencincs agiloh
ot e it SN SO0 it o Pt Pt ter ittt ol O TS syl ot ol of Dl P A il ettt ot et T LR P il

hnt FURICE o Tl Bipnasty Fiohdl o sutbye?f 0 st Sulbencitvasiivet Vi Dhat st il 2ot Bt scit vl o et it st Pl 50 i e g o o0 Bl et D08 50 ol o i Fimal§n il it 050 oo imviars
Bopis &7 B sonied LR 50 meltana of the R s ut sasitx wad O 1% pux s apdes o o8 oF D Fano™s net pasets sreeces s o ELI ) malien

That FRRACE Far ot Binen Fasoe oy syt 10 B clesirbendion M DO vy Dt v e Bt et oF Dt i v aibows. 8 206 et maausee iy o e st SLR S0 i o S Pl s vt sty €6 208 o v
gt o S St SIS ST it of B Pl i bt s 1 T el erien's sy o A8 oF Bk Fd] AT Bl ot el oF SUR I il

et PRI Sard Sitiam P 3 Scaber £ Y SRy ik SR VBT Sl Y PSSt e O P A By i o0 5 0 e e o B A ) e o D LS O ATARY (S i SR RV o
vk PR e 2ot Fin™s ed ssata pen ) 3T sty oy ol o e Foacs ot marady i amoass of 31 Ballicn

et PRACE) B! Ratuee Pl s solpac 5w pimands i tir Mot S vinees Sl oun B g af kvl of B P a3 Podlowes: 5 058 e s splies aer e et 050 il o Bher Fumnel™s et st 0. 00 pav maosars: Sgpdets o0
By oo’ B5T smalliver of i Foradn cel peniedt: et &) 25 pent sevoate gopslery o o of e Fomas ot areaty i decedn of SO0 malior

Tis FRHEEY e 3 Rt Pl o Sodipie 10 F BT detc® Mt SR8 1S B o0 Dl Bt Lavven! o i P e Moo £ 2T o e ety ot O S5 1 S0 el o gt R it b S, 10, i ietimcate Ilatd 0o O
el SR sl o St Farte s S ians @ TR i it il ot ol of i R T BERHS 0 it o 5 Dllirs

Tt s v ST 0 3 MRl o Dt v Dmsodt o e AL Gotlhenn G St (0 ooy e 7 oo B s’ B ool e 8 iy o’ D vty ety e amscena ey el o5 dasloww 010 e 0 o wd it
L5 of Oer el sty 'S ierosd policy rats v Stwee (0N 0. 5%, thao D e el B {1 1798 of Clwer e vt o the iy poed podicy rte ir Satween 0 S5 10 (e P et wall g ) 0% of (2t oot il of B

o oy vt o it [ O~ 0 Shevy the vow el S 0 S o0 ety oot F e e ey e ot 206 o et e R e il e 1B o (s oot prmats. F e oy e J f (it i o il
B leraony wolf ket e pouined Sty Pt of vy seprpeo
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MNotes to Financial Statements
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The menagement, advisory and adminisirative fees, If applicable, ane pald monthly in arears to PIMCD for providing or aranging for the provision of advisory,
adrindstrative and Shird-party serdces incduding audit, arstodal, Tusbes, portfiolio sccounBng, routng legdl, ransfer agent and printing sendces. The agendy and
distribuition feet, il apgpicable, ate pald monthly in afears 1 b e B and o mtemmedianes that provide terioes and distnbution reatng to the urels of the
applicable Fund (or Class thereof, as applicable) In the case of the FIMCD Bermeda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PIMCO Benmuda U5, Loss Duration Fund, PIMCO,
ot of its manggement fee, will bear the costs assodated with advisory and administrative services, 0.1% of whidh is designated to cover admenisirative expenses. In
exchange for this fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of certain third-party senvices required by the Funds, indding audit, qustodi, tustes, portfolio acoounting, legal,
|msfer agent and |ZI’I|'I|.II'I]‘.-l:'-"I-1' 25 PIMCO, and not Unitholders, wiould benefit from &y prce degresie in the oost of such third=pas ty sendces, nd JI'J‘N;I OdBTeases
resulting from an increase in net assets. b addition, with nespect to Funds that are subject 1o an adminisyatve fiee, FIMCO generaly makes a profiton such a fee

A5 noted i the table above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are nof subgect 1o management, achisory, administrative, agency of distribution fees. PIMCO Japan
Ltd, FINMCO"s affiliate in Japan, is paid 2 fee from the Japanese imestment Trusts or ofher Emestment vehicles that imeest in such Funds of Classes and a portion of
such fee is them allocated to PIMCO to compensate it for i sendoes

The Fund (or Clagses thereot, a5 applicable) may bear othver expenses related bo Sar operation that are not oovened by the man agement, adsory, adrminisrae,
agency o dsmibution fees, induding butnot Brated bo: () taoes and gowernmental feed; () broberage fees and commessions and ofher portfolio ramachion epenses;
(i) coats of barmowi ng maney, indudng interest expente; (v) extraordinary expemies, indudng oots of ligation and indemnification expenses, and i) any expentes
allecated or abocable to 3 spedific Class of units, as applicable. FIMCO has paid, or will pay, the crganizational expenses assodated with PIMCO Short-Term Srategy™s
Imitial sat-up

FRbAC0 andior its afiliates will ini I'Ial'fﬁ-ﬂ\'.il“{t 1o FINCC Short-Term Strategy &1 costs and expenses, II'I'Z-"LI-JH':I legal expenses, manred in connecion with the imod
pubfic oftining of the IPY and LSO Clagses of Unats of the Fund in Japan (TORemng Expenses™). ALof near the commencement of the Fund™s opérations, the Fundwill
reimbarse PINCO andfor its affikanes for the Offering Expenses advanced and will amortize sud Offering Expenses over the first 83cal vear of its operatsons. However,
PIMACO) has agreed Lowanve reimbursement of the Offenng Bxpenses (o the exten? that such expenses exceed 0 05% per annum of te sum of the JFY and LSD

Classes’ Met Asset Value (the " Offering Expense Limitation ™). Any Offesing Expenses waived due to the Offering Bxpense Uimitation may be recouped by PIMCO andior
its affiates for a petiod not exceeding five years from the commencement of the Fund's operations; provaded, the amount recouped by PIMCO anddor its affiliates shall
nob exceed 0 05% per annum of the sum of the P and UED Classes’ MY B exther of the JPY and DS0 Classes of Units of the Furd is tenmanated price 1o the fill
reirbarsement of all Offening Expendes, PINCO andior its affiliates shall not seek reimibursement of any remaning unee mbursed amounts froem that Class
Furthermore, if both of the JFY and LED Clastes of Units of the Fund are terminated prior 8o the full reimbursement of all Otfering Expenses, PIMICO andior it affiliates
shall mot seek reimbursement of any remaining urreimbursed amounts from the Fund. PIMCO has paid, or will pay, all costs and expenses, induding legal expenses,
incumed in connecton with the irtial publec offering of the ALD Class of Units of the Fund in Japan. As of May 31, 2020, there were no recoveratie Offering Bxpenses
1o PIMICO andior s affillates

PIMICO has spposnted SMEBEC Nikko Se0anties nc. b0 »00 a5 Agent Comparmy and Drainbuabor for e distibution and servicng of enits of fe FIMCO Euro Totsl Retum
Fund, PIMCO Beal Return Fund, and the IPY, U0 and ALD Clatses of PIMCO Short-Tem Stratedy ba retail investors in Japan. Mo agent companies haee been
appoented for any of the ather Funds

PIMECO has paid the organizatonal expenses sssocated with e ceation of the Trust. Hfurther Funds are [sunded, such coats dinectly atmbutable to the relevant
Furd may be bome by the refevant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Invesbment Adviser is 3 related party to the Funds and is a majority-owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management AG Fees paid to the related party, if ary, are
disdosed in Mote 9, and aogwed related party fee amounts, if amy, are disdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabilties

Certam Funds are permitted 1o purchase or sell sequrities from or o certain related affiliated funds under spedfied cond fions cutlined in procedures adopted by te
Imvesiment Adviser. The procedures have been Qesngned 10 ensure that any purd a5 of Sae of sequrines by a funed from oe 10 another fund that is or could be
conddered an atfiliate by virlse of hindng 3 common adviser (or affliated imestment advisers), i eflected at the curent madket price. Duwing the periad ended May
31, 2020, the Fundis) below engaged in purchases and sales of securities among affliated funds {amounts in thousands):

_fund Purchmss Seler_
PAMCD Bermusda Foomign Low Doragon Fund 3 03 19
FIMCO Bermuda U 5. Lowr Dorason Feed a 1Ex
PAMCD Emsrging Markes Bond Furd (M 15,008 e
FIMCD Ewsn Toal Requn Fond 1.106 1]
FIMLT Feal Retum Fend a4l 1}
FIMCD SereTenm Susegy S 14,061

ey Bt | py 31, 200N 1]
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MNotes to Financial Statemems o

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS
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Notes to Financial Statemems con:
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13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy

FRNGIRY
EMOUNT

(=]

MVESTMENTS [N 5 1
ORPORATE BONDS & NOTES

Licininid i §
AEH AMPD Bank NV

(1 538% don (TG00 H M
AsrCap Ireland Cagatal DAC

04500 due 120EGTH 4
& S0 o (BTN 1.0
A 6F5% due 107300020 Lie
Al Greup Lid.

| B3E% due (L2000 1.0
Aar Lease Comp.

15000 du (BTN o
2750% due DISGTITD S
35000 due DIVEMGOE [
Aircantls el

S 175% dow (TR 1.M0
Allinate Carg.

10E5% due AT o
Ally Fimancial, Inc.

4 750 doe DRTSTN [lis
7 500% dos DFRT020 B0
Amevican Tewer Corp.

TN due DWIGTI 4
Aorars Dank Lud.

B0 CERTGEN e
Mahae Global Funding

TETS due DELTOT 165
Awail an Holdings Fanding 1id.

2 BTS% due DSOS G
5 500N dus O1LAGHTR ki
Banco Santander (haln

1 571% due 1128300 am
Bk of Americs Carp.

2% due 1000500 e
F104% g (CURRTE 1.5
Beiclay Bk PLE

1 771% due DUTRGEN i
Barelays PIC

256N e (RGN .48
RN s DINAGTH 150
B0 Aveation Lid,

1 BE% dus DR2TEH 1.0
1375% due [RFSATN 1.7
3 TSI doe ANATHIED m
Bevtan Propentins L

4175% dus ISASGN i
Eriomesr (parating Parinership LP

| T3T% due DRELENT 1.0
Citihank M A.

(07T doe (ESANIZ 4m
Crigiaup, les,

1313 dus (RITTE ki
1 A3E% due IITIZ00G FaLL
1 T80M due (B0 130
| B70% due DRVILT0TD 1.500
Conperat eve fabobank WA

1 731% due DIMT0TI 20m
Cradil Ssvse Group Al

L% o (BTN 1.0
Cradi Sguvis Graup Fusdig Guermoy 11d,
1 £50% dye QUG b
Diaecwon B ook W5

1 BN due [RNDG0TT 5
1 B due (NG ¥
A 001% due IR0G0Y G
DES Group Hol dings D

VNS due DRVZSO0E 150
e e L

3 % gz 3

- -
- =

s
24m
1.3
148

159

B
i

BE

Lam

RO
e
[11a1]
DN Bank ASA
(RN dys 12800300 i B
First Abu Dihabi Pank PSS
T126% due DANSTNT 3 000
Ginldman Sachs G reup, e,
1 553% due 11705000 1,30
I due IR £
210 due DRORAR [
L% e REEITTH Bl
Gopdman U5, Finsscn Two 1LC
A 000 due DAT2GTR i
Hitaeh Capital UK PLE
1 DATH due 11N 150
HERE Hel dings PLE
1 Z55% due [BNEETRM (D LE 1
1 434% dus BETLGEN 2000
I Bk Lad,
11758 due D200 1.000
MG Gresp HV
2451% due 10827073 o
3 5T due [OOQHIT T
Inrerratmnal Lesve hinance Codp,
AR5 du DIESIR 1.1
Jackios Matiosal | its Glabal Fading
1 BTN, due DATARAE 5
JPMwgan Chase & Co.
1 833% due 072001 pei il
2. o 1MBAGTITY 15
KLD Wana Bk
T151% e 10800 1M
LexePlan Comp, NY
THFSN due 100071028 LI
Uleyds Banking Gresp PLE
| B35% due IST1GTN 2.7
JOATN d 110000 xn
Mitan Maxet Daewon Ca. L,
1255 due 1189700 LI E
Miinssbeshi UR] Financial Group, Inc.
1 D34% doe D220 1.900
1 2% o (IANLEY S
i 1.
| BI3% due (RGN [
Mnsbashe UFJ Laasn & Finance Co. [
JEEI% e DAL 1.50
2T doe 1010000 [ 1]
Mhizubia Finaneial Growp, Inc.
0930 due DVROTIIN im
100 o [0S0 2800
1 3% due (MG 1,30
1 BB due (BN LGN 1.0
Mg an SEanley
0751% due DLEAE 20
150
. 1
Matsamwnde Bislding Secimry
2000% dp DRI 50
JEIN o DRI 0
MatWest Markets PLC
1TV due DT 1500
Havee Cop
S000% dus 10085100 3o
Momura Hol ding, Tz
JEAEN dus DINEATS am
Maordea Bank Abp
1 3503% due (RO 1.000
ORI Com.
2 doe DRELCTIN 148
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m

1. 38
1
108
an

e

b
Hr

1.3
Ll

kil ]

i
1,50

i)

140
e

1 A8

1510

LU
P
[11=1]
2 000% dys IR0 i 5
1 300% due DIVERGDE m
Park Asiospace Hodings Lid.
JBRIHS due (AN ¢
5.50% due DTRG0 1,30
Pipee Sandler Cos,
A T40% due 1005500 m
000 due 10NSTIEY il
Qatan Dear Finsaca 050
S000% dus D700 1.0
ONE Fisance L.
1 1% doe [0 L
| SSE% due (EENTIR 120
1 7E3% due DS i
Royal Bank of Seoiland Group PLC
| B3% due IVENI0TI il
L THN duw (RSN e
Sanlander Holdags USA Ine.
50N d 128170 i
Santander UK Group Holdings FLC
1375% due DIERA0H 1.
Sontandar UK PLC
09700 due (BGLTUN s
1 [53% dus 1105500 il
2100% due DIVEIE0ZT il
SOA Tower Trusi
LHTTS due ONGATHTH m
Scantio Giowp Trust 1
TATEN s DA 55
Lingehem Owarseas Copal Co lod.
£ 500 dus 11NN i
Shandwarinks Enokilde [ sskes AR
1 A25% due 120 i
%1 fieeen Operating Pannership LP
1 356, e (RNEATN 5
Spningleal Fmanes Com.
150 due 10S17IH I
B0 due 12000 LE
Sismaderd (an mad FIG
2 56% doe DROGOTY L0
AT5N o (BT Fet
Starvessd Prapenty Tiudd, Inc.
TEFSS dys LN e
Lisie Bank ol India
A D0E% dise D1TWTTEY L
Somdiema Mitva Financial Grosg, bae.
| BTo% due 1002022 4
2OE1% dus DN 1,300
A% duw DTG Lie
Swedhank AR
1 4T% disa (VU0 BLE
Spnchreny Hank
RS0 dye (BOUTTH 3000
UES Greup AG
1.303% due [VISA0T] o
| 37E due EVTIG0T) 195
WEA Fasanca LIC
1750 due 100050000 S
Wallx Facge & T
1 0% due TOVITIED 1,400
LI du DVILGOR o
Walls Farge Dank NA.
(156360 o IEBTANIER 1.5
UL TRIAL S 26
Abb¥io. e,
O TH% dus IS 1000
0 B41% due 110370 e 11
1 dus 11 1008

Byl Pt [W oy 3L 2900



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (Cont.)

FINEEY
P
[11si]
2150% s 11N ¥ a0
J375% due 11HGTER 500
Aliria Group, Inc.
14300 A (RNATOT po A
Arveeican Hands Frasnce Comp,
11 T8 e DRI 1400
| GO due DSOS 5
Arow Eleciromos. lne.
3 500% due DASLAOE &
Amaton Cagetal Group LLC
1 35000 dow DRSRATN &
130 doe DR0G0N 1.4
LTSN due DIATIR 1206
0 T30% due DURGGT o
11T5% due 1VPE020 GE
BAT Capital Coup.
1 272% de (NS (D LED
Baper LS, Hnasen 11 LLG
1 T51% dye 12050000 110
| BERS due DEZSGTH i
J500% dus DA &0
EINMW Finance HY
| 5% due DIIITY 1.500
EMWLLS. Capiial ILC
0 EH% due [ANIGTH 247
Broadosm Canp.
L1000 due ISR 1540
Brosdcem Inc.
1175% s DUV 3100
Cmeepillar Finsacial Sesviees Corp,
O THE% dus DR am
Conteal Muppon Exprroway Ca, Lnd,
(L F52% doe DRG0 1000
2105 dun DUTION i
J200% dye INRHIN X
2273 due [AAEOTY Im
1L IHE% due DRI 1000
15T doe 1182000 1.000
Charier Communices s Opsraung LG
T3 due DRG0 im
57 doe G0 110
& A54% due ITVERG0EY 1.000
Cigea Corp.
| A33% due DR AGTN 1,006
L1060 due IPNSTIEY 18m
CRH Induueal Capotal LLE
A BTS% dus DUSLATH 40
Conagra Brands, lnc
3 B30 due 1028700 m
Constellation Brands, lec.
1 IE% doe 1 VAN s
DAL Fundmg LLT
4 D0 due (RGET0N il
DOmimdar Finsnce Morch Ameea UG
(1 B0E due IZRE0N 30
1 211% dioe 1LAESATN K
1 206% due DN in
1 255% due [SGTE 1.0m
Dasana SA.
07T e TR0 e
Dl Imeenasanal LLG
0 200 due DRASTT (0 1300
O Hamen, Ine,
4 375% due [VISONT 50
EMC Coap,
117500 o DESLE0N 16
o, Inc.
1 25% dow (ST 1.000
2300 die DA i
e e L

SR

el

14%
]

1B
L117]

1451

138

]
-
=

= 8 BEE BEuusE

B

RO
e
[11a1]
Foud Matar Crad Cs. LLC
JIT% e O1EIHIN i 4
Freenius Medical Gam 115, Fsancn 11, Inc,
4 175% duw 10050 o
GATX Carp.
| 61% choe 1 1ERGTH 1.8
General Mdls, b,
BB don 10030100 L
Gossgral Mesars Co.
T274% due (A0 e}
Generad Motars Finmeial Go, bes,
1 B31% doe 1RG50 2805
21700 doe DRRECHIN L
TTO0M due 110N 1.0
Habey-Davidsea F Al e
2N due DANSNTN o
Hewrd efi Pac kard Enderpnisa Co.
2T dos 10580 B
Hyundes Capilal Amenca
1 B e (IR (RE
| B35 dus [NETT0 [0
LI dee RGN mn
2AT5% dpe I2MAOTTY i
2T o DOTERTIND &m
500 o (AMAEH i
Hyunda Capiial Semvicas, lac,
RSN due D3A0NN ]
Imperial Brands Finance PLC
250N d I 150
11355 due DRSRTN 1,300
ATHR dow DRI 1,30
Jaba Deges Capial Corp,
1 475% due DRERSNTY S0
Erah Heinz Fosds Ca,
| DEEN die DANAGTT 1.
375N dus DANSTH X0
Las Wegas Sandi Cosp,
2000 do DBOSOTS 20
500 due DANEATTN il
Mamott Intematioeal, Inc.
1 B due (VGRS o
Masco Coip.
500 dus DERLIH 20
Mylan NY
1156% due [SVS00H i
750N doe 1 20T ®
My nimn Motas Acceplasca Caip,
1 1% due DRI B
1 B25% due (RO 1.0
1 981% due DAL 1500
205N due DAY 1.000
NTT Finmnios Ceep.
1 B0 due DRI 1.0
NP By
BTSN de (BRI £
£ 175% doe S1GTH i
HIEN o DATATNTY m
Docsdanial Poianlewm Carp.
T BTN due DEMESTAIEY LE
P e National Financs Pay Lid,
A BS54 duoe DTN 220
Fensln Trock |easing Ca. LP
3300% due JASIRON Ui
B0 dus DRI m
Pentar Fensnce Sad
JEYS% dos DRS00 B
Aeckitt Bencldser Treasury Sernces FLE
| TEIN dioe DRTAGNT B4
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e ]
Shap Acgusmiom vevimants (mland DAL
T 00 e (TN i 100G 2 1,830
SMBC Avatian Capital Finasce DAG
J000% due [ANSO0T 20 5]
10N due DATEVTII 1 450 1453
Spmcira Energy Parmen LP
J014% i DRERATN kry m
Spatit Aeeatiystems, Inc.
1 5A1% due DRTSGIN 1000 ]
Volivwages Group ol America Fimance LLG
2054 dus IREATTN 3900 5
THTEN due 11AGIN 1000 187
Viulesn Matsaali Ca.
1 00 e (VSEIHEH 56 0
Wesnnghesse Air Brake Techuslagies Corp,
20T due DRI S =]
‘Wooleerihs Greup Lid
AN dioe DATAANTND £ i)
Simimr st Holdengp, Inc.
1 B due (PAAHEH i &
Tamis, lae,
QBITS due 02001 L AR
FIERC]
UTILITIES .
ATET, Inc.
1 304% due DRVSG0TT 210 1)
1 9848 dw DRI m i)
2165 due DTSN 1. 1,10
Centrica PLC
121E% due AN &0 L11]
Duke Emergy Coap.
(4% chow (VAT 1 &L 158
Enbeudga, lne
O ET% die DURATER 3500 1HE
1A% dus [S/PT00 80 o
Feraml Elecimn Carp. lid
GATSS doe B0 40 15
Sabiag Paia Ligualacton LLC
SRS due 280000 Lim R
Sempia Enengy
1TV due DIESTIN 5 LY
Surepes Group Dwerseas Develspment 206 Lod,
2THM du (583000 Ao e
St bt Py G
1 BSEN due 1200001000 250 Al
Sprini Commummcalsans, Ino.
BI0RN due 11MGTITY L P i
Sphnl Cacp.
T175% e DRNSTHTM 1 ]
Wi roon Cormemssict ot o, Ine,
1A% due IS0 ERL 1B
141 dus [CNSGTT 1.600 LS
T
Total Carpramie Bosds & Netes o]
[Coxt 272 A06)

Dimephin, Pennsylvasia, Pennsybsasas Hopher | dezanos
Asiamen Agency Heverss Bands, ﬁr-h Fr i

L127% due 1075300 G

Laeraments, Colilemia, Genemal I]hllq.llu Prpssds,
Sene ANy

1 THEM dise DURLT0MT m m

Sali Lakn, ah, Utah Siate Board of Regonis lovews
Bends, Series ANT

(9HE% due DLISERT -] ]
Total Murscipal Bosds & Noies (=]
[Gerst 3057
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (Cont.)

FINCEFR
ST WA
0 [

(1 55EN doe DVZSG0H i % & 1
1 JVE% die DAZSTOTD 1 1
Freddie Mac

1 J35% due BVTST0T7 40 am M
1 335% du 1005077 .15 1340
1 XI5 due DANST0L {0 BiE m
1 395% dus B1 5040 {0 6 i)
25000 doe BS54 U0 1.8 1.7%
2 500 doe 1025706 (0 1B 1547
Ginnie Mas

1 435 due [VRT0N! 8 -]
1 THE% due D006 1) i
1 BUER du D005 (k-1 I

1 B5E e RN ® 1]
| BSE% due 11252065 L} 1
150 doe M0G0 14N 1,080
T 500% dun 1070706 (h 155 M
BTN duoe 11720067 (D M bl
Taml 1.5 & A ety 13,35
(G $13,355)

5. TREASURY DBLIGATIONS

Tresvury Inflaissn Protacied Sac

03754 doe DRSS AN
0700 due DTRG0 U0 1528 16,535
Tatal L5 Traasury Dbl PR

(ot 522 4060
PRIHT GAGE-BACKLD SECURTES 147%

ACE Securios Comporation Hose Equity Loan Toast

DEHEN due DRTSGTTIE u} £
AREIT Trima

1 184% due THIATOES tE i
1 2% due BAGETH S0 i
TEE dye DANLTOTY 110 (]}
Kraum Hotel Peetlalio Trina

1.134% due IBN S0 [ 1 Bar
EBAMILL G | Merigage Seceriies Trust

| T34% due AN 5T036 LN W
| 4% dus LRSI & )
Bascarg Commescal Margaga Tean

1 D3d% due QNSNS L] "
1 4% due BT 80 i
Baywow Dpporiewty Master Fasd fva Tml

AT due DGETM il

Biead Staaini Adjustald o Rt Maitgage 'Hu#

ANTES dye OSO0T 8
4171% due [R2HT0T) i =
Bea Swams Asvvel Backed Seountses | Trust

(T3 dow TS E E. ]
Bles Sinams Seacand Lsen Taus)

1 51E% due M50 58 50
Brass He A PG

1 D5E% due 1TV1E0G6G 305 5
Canterbary Finasce Mo.) PLC

1 5% due BTG GEF 1,00 1.1
Crigmuy Marigaqe Losn Trus

1T due RSO0 H 14 {13
Citigraug Mangage Lo Trum, lae,

(LUES due 11250006 B8 5.}
Commercial Moragage Trust

0 BIE% due EVIDG06G I k)
Countrywode Assel -Backad Corilinates

45E% due RISF0G 1 5
Credil Ssisse Morgags Capatal Cenificates

AT due BTEITS 1w\ £}
Dod wivmmp mpneg wrben

RN
T LI
[11a1] (a1}
Cradit Savsaa Morgaga Capstsd Trang
(9% d NS0T H M ¢ m
T105% due 10277050 BEY 2]
11T b 1075718 1 '@
C5 Fina Bodon Moentysge-flacked Trust
(1 00E% dyn 100501M 1 n
Eurepesa Loan Canduit Na 28 DAC
1 EN0 e (20 T30 BiR 5 1N
Finance America Morngage lnn Tramt
0893% due BI0H 1 In
Finsbury Squara PLC
(1000% due IENHFTON GBF 3000 150
1 457T% die DRNAATAD 148 1540
LT dus 1205005 1550 1800
Farst e et gasgn Funding Trowt Rad
0 538% d EE00N £ &8 AT
Fremant Homs Lsan Trus
08034 dus OIS 1] M
GPMIT Led
1 07T% due THEATDE: 1= 1]
G5 Marigage Secun ies Corporation Trust
1 834% duw ANSTOL 30 i
Hererk oo Momgage fundemg PLC
1 207% dye IROSHED Gap [ ]
Hirek imesed Murmgagis
1 28T% dus RS 108 1A%
Helwas Maitar bt PLE
1 575 due 10150104 : m m
1 R0 due 15T L1 m
HPLY Trad
1 184% s 1IN 5H ke 5
lnpac CHB Tran
Q416N dw IBOONE 1.5% 1440
ORGEN due D3NS 1 1)
JPMmgan Chasa Conwmarcial Mongage Sscunitios Trux
1 CES i (AN ST 1 L]
1 184% du D650 1 8- |
1 E3% due 12507 &0 m
Lonark Master [ssues PLE
1453 do | RTI0N e L1
Lisgacy Misinga ge Asiat Trust
TN due (ROSHEE Bi HE
1750 due (AT5CTE n =]
Lorsfon Wall Mertgaqe Capstal PLC
1 145% dus THNEGOE rid 1 1]
Long Doach Mongage Lean Trex
11474 dye BSOS ¥ 10 ST
WUASTRE A sien B acked Seeuntes Tram
0 B3E% due BT5T0H 158 (L]
MIF1 Lo
1 ZHE% due 12T501TH 4 w
Ihl| Cary Marigage Loan Trasl
2 THER due A5 5
Mletgan Sranley A -Backod Secstines Capaal | Ine.
Trunt
1 [E% dus DSOS £E ]
Meagan Smnley Capiral | Troma
L1848 dioe BI5O00 il L]
A0S do DB 17002 et kL]
Moanl 6 Truny
1 104% due DA 5T 5 m
Morwy Resi dearial Marnigage Loan Trew
2T de RI5OTH 219 218
275N doe 11T Lan3 2an
A5 o 15500 1 ™
Mumara Beecunticanon Tius
24NN du 1021006 1.5% 1.5
HovaSis Morigage Fusding Trest
(I doe MZSOTH i )
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FRNCRY

| LI
-] -]

Pomanmt Master bsuor PLC

1 535 dye DS ¥ M o =

| T65% due [TV ST 30 o

PHP Lid,

1 154% due AT 150 1P

1 2% dge DAL 2.0 288

Praeiin Mengegs Fundag PLC

(ESEM, due 1REATRG GBF 108 1.1

Re dential Morgage Secwitins 11 FLC

| TI7% due DATTRD 1 i

Fipsn Morigages FLC

1 (FSE% choe (BATFUESH 1aa LR

Silwiriton Masief | iees FLC

1 FI5% dye OLHATN M6 52

| 6P dus D1ZVT000 g 12 13|

Stamwrich Marigoge Leas Co. LI

2375 e (BN 5T L |

Stnuchated Aot Invostmen Loan Tres

ATHEN due DRS00 1422 1.rn

Thaw o ds.om el Pardedio Trus

O EIT% dus THHAGDM L [ -]

Towra Peint Morigage Trast

1 T due O7ENTHE GEF 138 151

Taved Pamt Meegage Fandeag

1755 due IR0 553 £

Tawrd Paint Morigage Fanding Grasited PLC

1 61T e 102001 S i

Towd Pamit Mtgage Trmi

11588 dye (905005 ¥ 21 &0

1 16E% die 10250170 5 1)

Trinaty Squara PLC

1 BVE™S dus DAL ri g 12 VR

UDE Bl ays Comeeicial Moy sge Toust

(1 S38% due DRTDGTE = 0

Warsck Finance Resdennal Mongages No One FLE

1 530% dee DA CEP i3 12

Walls Farge Commercial Mangage Trusi

O 9F5% due 12057008 ¥ 1,380 .}

1 041% dus TG00 o 1]

1 234% doe D51 11} i)

L0 dee PN 5088 £ k]

WITRDS Commedcaal M gasja Trust

A% o 125006 (.7 [ 2]

Tatal Meetjags Backed Secariti [=EIT]

(Rt SOSARE)

SSET-BACKED SECURITIES 12.4%
Akt Readry Callmeralived Loan Obligas s L1,

LATIM doe 12050007 50 i%

Arlsor Realry Commescanl Real Estate Notes Lid,

LT due IEGT0Y I i

Arbour CLO VDAL

(ETTRG doe O1STND IR il k]

Atraum X

1 EE% dye DROHITY £ g 1]

BEMCLO Ll

1 EEER doe DRVECTLS Pl i

Bewefit Sereet Parisers CLO ¥ Lud.

1 B15% doa DAEILTY [ a

Mack Dsmmaind 10 Daimgnated Aslwly Co.

4T o 1085 4 o)

Bumpet UK Finsace FLC

(1 G50 e 12DNIT L 180

Cailyle Glabal Mark o Sestege Ewo CLO OAG

QTHA d DA EIR i E.]

Cent CLO 99 10d,

21715 doe 1020005 : -] w

Chasapeake Fusding I 1ILC

1 B do BT 15 e

1200 due DANSON S 1]
Byl Pt [W v 3L 2900 =
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (Cont.)

BN
] LI
(=] ]
LK | Indh | i inssca Corp Fundeng Lid.
1 BT dus 10050307 H o ¢ n
Contage CLO 1BV
DESTS duw 1157006 HiR EEE 1,085
Dimrary Park G0 DAC
QRIS doe T Fe ) -]
Dell Equipmsent Finance Tresi
1 600 due IBTIOTE L4 a L]
Dorchesior Pak CLO DAC
T0T5% due DR 500 ]
Diryden 4 Eura GLO BV
0 B30% duw MIN5T000 BIR hi z
FCMC Group Stedant Laan Trust
QBIEN doe MG B 2 v
1 3TE% due (525T0NT 5 ]
EFS Yolunuer 1L
1 BATS due 10750035 73] Fi]
Evams Growe CLO EWL
1 297% due IR am 1ne
Faw Baks Loan Fundsng Il DAC
1 G0 e RN ST EIR 1.500 10
Figesres CLO Lud,
2115% du OISO ' ¥ i ]
Flsgrubap Crosdit Auts Trust
JHMM d 1NHHIT M Ho
Ford Autn Secutin panon Tren
2% due 105701 CAD 1.0 i
Fond Credi Floseplas Master Samar Tres A
O53% due 151003 H [ ]
11 T s ST = L]
Gadlatn CLO X Lnd,
21550 duw MU0 10857 14T
GMF Flearplan Owner Rewolving Trest
D54 dus DELIR L m
GoldmiTren |osn Mansgemen U5, 20 Lrd
255N due AT (1 13
Halcpon Loan Adwises Fundmg Did.
2IR5% dus DRI 547 b ]
Henr Flest Lewse Feading LP
2300 doe IIIGNTR il ]
Jamevisan CLO Y Lid
1 908% due TVISOTIE m ]
LosCare lssuer Dd
1 304% dus (AN SN e 1]
LP Cradin Casd Asies-Basked Socurntios Mastar Trew
2V duw DROTRHN [ e
Maathea CLO VIl
1 2% die HIGTTY .38 1.HE
Marleiin Fonding Trav
J130% due VRN 1) L)
ATI0N de 1205000 18 1]
Masier Cradi Card Teuw 1l
N FS1N doe TT100M 500 1]
MAMAF Equipmeni Finances LLC
4 MRS due LD 1% L]
Momntain Yeews CLO LLC
L N da 10NETEN e L]
Mesatain Werw CLO X L,
2118 dee 1050 a1 1]
Mawvimi Provwie Edecaiion Loan Teesi
JEIA due 125018 ] B
Mavient Smdent Loan Trest
1000 de 12N = e
Munlmert Stwdon! Loss Trust
(1 E5E% due DA 1.8 LEe
Q858N dus DATESHNS 1% k]
0 B3E% due IBZST0ET 430 i
1 0VEN doe 50 1848 1.8
1 [6E% dos DRODET 1.5% 1A%
e e L

LT T

] AU
) ]

Oeean Trals CLO TV

148 due AN TS H A F ]

OGP L0 L,

T0E% due RS0 56 ]

OneMam Fmancial I3ssmnce Tresa

1370 due A ATOT L ir}

OSCAR IS, Fosding Trest ICILC

150 due AN IFTIN H k']

Dscar WS Fundmqg X LLC

T100% s 007 130 1 Ho

Palser Squase CLO Lod,

1 243% due (871 530705 b1y 1

Penarh Master lsue PLE

0 E12% due BTN 0 im

O TH% dus (RABT0ZY 7000 1586

PFS Finanzing Carp.

0.734% dos UTST026 S0 L]

S1C Saudent Loan Tresa

(1452% due 5002 18 L

QB doe NI L] ]

51 M Provate Edecation loan Tren

LM% da BAEIQ mn in

1M Smdest | nan Trasa

| (7% dye MUTH0A 4 T8

1 200% due FNSTOE7 £ i)

LAGT% e DRI = 1]

Sod Comamer Loss Preqgram LT

1T due (575700 .| . ]

%ok Cemuimer | oo Pregeam T

2000 dua (TS0 5% 35

00 due 4TSI e ]

240% due BTS04 m i

%ofi Prolesamnal | san Program LLE

1 THEN due MZSE0H I 5 ]

AT de VTN L 1

Siofs Prolesamnal Lean Program Trew

I0E0% due M75708 1 1

Sound Paint Cla X1V L1d

2193% dua IHZ3E02 150 1476

SpringCaatle Feading Assat-Dacked Neses

100% due BATE0N 58 g

THL Croshn Wond Frvar CLO Led.

1SN due (A STG i | i ]

Tikhws (10 BW

0 E3E e DRG0 R 148 1608

TR | ssver Lid

1 TH% dus M50 t 1 e

Upstaii Sacuntarsion Trind

BN due DTN an E ]

2T due BODAIN i HE

Woemriure W0 CLO Lid.

2155% due TS0V i LY

Voya C10 Lid

1-TH1% e BNSE w %

Wihislerse KX 1l

1. 355% dus DTN 005 # ]

Tatal Raiet-Backed Sacunies SLAR

[Gor 3520040

Canada  overnmen Bond

1.500% due (591200 CAD 10000 1]

Export -imperi Bank ofinda

1 374% dus R I .

Otar (i aver nment | asations ] B esd

237N due IBAGTIN 1,00 1.z

Total Severmgn |xsmy kL)

[Cost F1R545)
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L el
SNy WA
0 [aii]

SUDRLTERMINSRUMENTS i

Sumeivema Wil v D anbang Comp.

(BT dos 1A E 1R 1 1R

Arerican Hands Fisance Comp.

1 BT due 070 i m i)

1 7% due RSN 4 1.5 146

1% dow DRI ich Mo m

Bayer Corp.

3 65N due (RGN i 14 10

BP Capatal Marketx PLE {o)

1 X doe (R8I0 10m 190

| B e DRI 1,000 1,800

Giemeral Dynamics Cop.

2N due IWOFATND i 1.0 £

HEH Pt nlinman sgrmem Asefl

(777% dow TLAGIN i - 1]

Schlumbangor hva1fmant 54,

1 S e 10T e 1,000 i

Shall Intemanesal Finaee BY ()

2105% due DREIA0H e 15

1.340% due AN o 156

Sypenta Winingios, Iec.

LT dow DERBATINT i 1.0 138

Taysta Matsd Crasdit Ciap.

125 o DRHUTHIRD i i #Hn

Wah Davney Ca

1 88T dys DRI il S bo]
HLE

[ IT { v

5 B0

Aurirabs and Now Fosland Baskmg Graup D,

000 doe DRSLGN ] ] F

Q0% doe DRG0 H 1 1

01750 choe (BTN L) ! i

Bank of Huva Scotia

Q0% due DRS00 H 1 Fy

0 040% due DRG0 CAD 1% o

BRP Pantias Bank

[0 270%) dam D6T12020 ] ] 1

Brovm Brothar Hamman & Ca,

L G]G0 oK 1 ]

(0 2700 dm E6T12020 ] ! ]

00D doe DB r 3 L

(00 duw DRGHLTI (1] i ]

Citibank M A.

Q0ND% due DRGLTI0 ¥ B -]

[R5 Bank L.

001D due DRG0 " ]

JFMorgan Chase Bk NA,

O 0E doe DRSLG0N 1% 1]

MUFG Bank Lid

02 0%) dm BHT 000 ¥ 1Mo n

Maisanal Ausrala Bank Dd

Q0% due [BSLT020 M0 [ 5

A0V due SARIT0I0 ¥ 1 i
iy o Py My FL 25200 2]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (Cont.)

LT
L] LT
(=] ikl
Sumdivama Miivs B anking Cop.
(0270 o DEDI1/20200 ] v i
0 0F0% doe (58 r L1 ki
A Wi arig
w %
k! 1%
1308
0 IBE% -5;.-.-11."-'.'1‘?-]3? W 57
0170% due IRRGI0A0 ik i
p—
Torval S Tt @ Do n s 08
(G TRTT
Tatal loveimants in SeournSes () WHFL 5 4
(ot ST 51}
Financaal Denvative
e st | g4 G155 L
|G or Premauim, nen 3965
i Axseds sad Lialalbe, nat (185§ e
Ml Aoty T000% 5 o8

DULE OF INWESTMIER JEANDE®, EXCEFT NUM

* A pero balance may reflest a2 mial amsunts rounding b bas then one Sousand,

{a)  The allocstion of Tetal InvesEments by geagraphis reglon as of Mey 11, 2020 FLE%S of Net St im the Linited States, 16.1% in She Unied Kingdam, 3.1%
In Japan, 6.7% in the Cayman Ishands and other countries comprising of 17.5% of Net Assats in aggeegate

ib)  Puimelpal amount of sseurity is sfusted Tor inlasen,

(8] Coupon npresents o yied ts makiney,

{dy  Coupon vepaesents a welghted avenage yied to maburiby.

BORAAINGE AND THER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Papwidkise
Agrormes
Calfla baies] Pepardiiasg Frsceeds
Matmny Pronc pad Ratrind LT TR PITiN (117
Nats B mand EalL By al¥alen al Wl [
N R g I g 3 ODU dhan (RS04 & = Me L - IKT 2 I
L] Bl 9 50 @ 5,000
Paryalde ar
P re Repaschoncn
Agre st
i ] 1,00
|7 554}
i maming Conti stfmal Blstarity of e Ageremustn.
Wetomight sadl Greaie Tham
Cmhimum Upte Ilgn'n bl !]Ee !I_'i.!e 1:!
Rowem Hepas chicon Agreemeaty
K- U5 Copieate Deba ] I 14,2531 ] 1} -} 1}
11,5 Comper O (il ] 1]

1.5 Boverns b 1 118411 1]

Tatal Reveza Fagrerchass Aruemans ¥ [ L] [} N1 0413 ] o

Tatal Borosing ¢ [ L] L] N1 13 L] ]

Py for Feverss Fapurches: Agemmans

Tod s mmp mpang wolen iy i Regmiy M 31 25210 n
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (Cont.)

The dolowang & o summany by coonserparsy of e mad o vibos of Bonoseng. aed Dder Franong Treactens and collrsral pledgedfrecesed) & ol My Y1 3000
i Gacuritles with an aggeregate msrkst wadus of 226,719 have been pledged as collateral under the termes of the insg master ag vbs s of May
a1, 20240,
Bejmibse
Agresmeni Pwialkie lar Tatal
Procerin Farenrun Fayaliin fnr Buerrenagn amd
(1] Erpurchane Sale-Brybock Paryale e O Fmswcing (Enilatmeal
R g Aginematy e mad heany Shael Sakes Tomruadiein  FedgediRocenods Rl Fl‘-lr’"

b Mgream ans

2 R ] oot I ] oy 8 MneE 2 191
o { ] ] ) 1.5 ]
5,000 113,288} 0 0 a.367 L]
Tatsl Boroeirg sad Other fireecing T iors [] 5000 ¥ 065N @ [N ] ]

N et wrresd etaet

2 Tre e nmen o Berv e FeRDEe] dorve] 1 porod wnoled Vng 11, 000 e 51001 00w vt of S e £oaTm 00k 6l | ST Rewige barmimenig my i hedn 1 byl 1w e S cvere repetios s

g
by | o v B dm et e e 0
s iivamand weth e s g ety Sew bivta B Wdni haSog drdeganers o ile b 1 Feasi

o} FIRANCEAL [ RIVATIVE INSTRUMENTE: EXCHANGE - TRADED OR CENTRALLY CLEARED

P LRI R
T D R TR

4 g ey ol dabat D poere 1o bommangs e e Tranc g 10eRE e (A ey e eI WA [RRTHe e pader i

cammd (o man el

e 2 1o drg s iy woseneh

inemalired
Agpindatnen’ Wonabes Bargs
(Depincmting

B Ly
& i E n
riscds Band aorep oo Wech Foure i 32 &
iy Eurodole: Deoe mter Fuims 1] kil 1 1]
g ETnar Nomi 4 H m (k1]
U5 Treumury S¥aar Hose 1 5 ] i} £
U5 Treasary B-Yest re %y ] a g
1.5 Treasary 30Ye I : 3 H L] ]
Tatsl Funrms Covrc [] £ ] [ ] BO
Waswaliced
Frnwd Daad sy Matsmasl Marksi Approcastisy Fanam B igpe
Iodga T usnclhies | Parjt Rate A Walw'™ (Daprecaihnas Anagr Lshilkry
COX HY-23 lrucier [N H [k 7 - =] ] T g [1] i W=
CICHY-H lrder (=20 1] 17,365 I 357 U]
3 £l ¥ & 557 T
Uneralired
Fuaed Dl Hersiasl Bartir Appin sy’
Recerar Dute Amama” li-"I I[Illr"-hld- Asint Luhil
1. % ] [ ] N B 1] [ [1] B 1]
Uargatined
FayHecene arir Appreciatiog’
L] | fDiprsiation Aot Ladiby
Fiacera™ 1-Mloreh E0H1EOA H i [] ] [I51] [ 1] ] ]
Facipn™ Hlo OHIH0A w I ma
Fackin 1 [ i} 1%
L s 2 & 1] L]
Tl Swap Agrees sr [ [LEE] [ [ 1]
Tod wr memp mpang woben v i Regmiy M 31 25210 r
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (Cont.)

wasvs lnmmemani s ol May 31, 1D

The dolowarey & o dummany of 1he marben vabes exd varmson maign of Eechange-Traded or Cenmally Ceaced Finarcsal 0

{hi  Cash of 84 370 has besn pledged as collateral for suchangeraded and centrally dearsd inancial derivative Instruments as of May 21, 2020. See Note 8,

Mlaster Noetzing Serangemants, in the Flotes to Fi il & Tt rrar s i ion regarding master neting arrangements,
T noaad D rrva I e Aty Hbingd B imalive Liabsiie
Karahes Hargm Widistvin Maiga
[T ] Marke Yales Lushility
Swap Wi 1]
Fatmien Agresmen Tukal At Agieamsao Tuisl
[] [ ] 85T ¥ ] [T [N N 8 1]

A i e e Tl e fap
i fampiu e e e ed mdon o fol e 1 de o TReren] e
e i Ee e

Hha o of i i o o g 5 My et el it o b ot e b ey it ol B

&

ot el vt of e 1t
e g Lt oty ks of

AusiFurd in
Syl by

1o gy i Bl 1) Bt

i Eetil SADG BTHSETS e PECAE o
sedoni an o the pared wnd b ns
dabilt o stbar cradt et e
vawn e b 1%

el g Bt Vgt B e e IRy B i
& bt weasnl of ha- T, FRYSEN b dETennE of

AR e b

= gt B ok
Thin msramtat b 3 Forwasd iartng o i

G} FINANCEAL DERSATIVE INSTRUMENTE: OWER THE COUNTER

t cama: o (ha Mot e 1 F o nd Fatemants tor fartler indemat wa

Satlmen Camsry Usiaadrs & B e pras Lt g
ba Recaied Bkl [T
] 35 ] b B [¥il]
ALD E D i}
L] D
2 4 ||
[ {1}
D 45
D mn
ALD o [/
2 0 1
AUD L] ]
§ 0 i
)
AL [
CAD L
] B I
] gL L Rk
Comcy s Cmmacys Ilnrwul"qmlun*n-muuq
bet Dplremnd bk Bgpareed l-iIH
Al 1] § & | D 2 [1]
w3 & 1
D il
5 [ ] 1 ]
Al § b
AlD - D
e s L] iy Py [My FL 25200 r
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (Cont.)

Ewmpacyin Cmmaryw Hnrwicrn f op powc uodin s D pra-c sy
Comuimparty b Dinliee b Brcers =] Raakiory
T ] [T3] ] E [ ]
(21
Eii Al [ [
e L]
S0 ' Az 1 B
- 3 1K n '-_
3 ] ui
i Rk
AlD ¢ M Al
I3 i =T
Lottiemend Cormezy Cmmscy s Unrsalees f Apporcishinn¥ e pracistiag
Crmblniparty 211 ] b Dot e e Brcarsed Aot by
! ¥ 1P i & t C [FLi]
1 L 5495540 [
1,00 4 . ]
IFT # 1] B ]
1E [ Q
] L 1]
1P # i
$ ) [EEL)
IPT ¢ 1]
| 3 i
IF¥ E: b
3 # LT

Ery'Sall Exeiina Faprteen Fakeaa Pirmums it
Camsleipirty Dese Prateatas Rals D A gt ETTT Wt
BOA Put 2 11500 1im g [ H 4]
EF al [ 4,10 ¥
DLE 5 1} 7.0 12 1
et ol n 1
T P 0 7.4 I 1

T : o B S

T feilogang o i s iy By congaipur ty of B s pllo] valkon o OTC Inanaul deraasve v wusgnel aod codanirl pledoe o s el 8 ol My 1311

{i}  Securites with an aggregate market value of S358 and cash of 300 have been pledged as collatwal for financal deriveSve instruments & governsd by
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MNotes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fund discussed in s vepodt (each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds™), which alvoinduded each dass of umits of that Fund {each a "Class™ and colleciedy,
the "Clarses™), B a enies tust of FRMCO Bermuda Tnst ithe “Trust™), a0 open-ended unit it estabiished under the Laws of Bemmuda as o multi-Senes fust pursiant
1 & must deed enequted by Windvester Global Tnast Company Limited on August £, 2001 (a5 amended from time o Sme, te “Trust Deed™) Efective 2 of the dose
of business (Eastem Sme) on Novernber 28, 2006, Winchester Global Trust Company Limited retired and was dischanged a5 trustee of the Trust and Browsn Brothers
Harrinan Trust Commpary (Capman) Limited was appainted a5 rew mustee of the Trust for the owners of units of the Funds (e “Unstholders™). Effective &5 of the dese
of buseess (Eailem Se) on September 79, 2007, Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Compay (Cagman) Limited refired andwas dicharged a5 insttee of the Trust and
Maglas Trustee Senvices (Bermuda) Limited was appointed as new trstes of the Trust As weed in this report, 30 references to the "Trstee” shal mean the person
ey Servirbg a5 Wurbee 10 1R Trust, Pacific Imvestment Management Commpany LLC {TFMCD, ™ ke "Manager™ of the "inesiment Adviser™} i3 the sponson of sndwas
respodnsitie for stnucturing the Trust

Thie Trusd is ssbject to requiation and supenddon as provided for in the investment Funeds Act 2006 and related nies relating to standand finds

Thie berriis of the Trust Desd conder upon the Trudtee, with the canient of the Manages, the power, in ®ie Ruture, bo establish Turther fundk m addon 8o the Funds
arendy in operation as of the date of this report

The Fumids presented in this report ase listed el ow

| !J-.ﬂl ! i Forengn Low Dioratos Fumd Dfarad only 15 lund s walh 3 Trind dlmd&' struchre, & defead i the nibes of Ba

PRACE Beemaada 5. Low Duration Fund Tratment Trusts Assocmbon, Jugas, of o funds with @ amelar sTuctoe m ey o

PIMCD Emengmg Markots Bond Fusd LITR e bon

PR Emerging biarkots Bord Fusd (Yan-Had ged)
| PEMDD) Emanging bartots Bored Fund (1

PRAACTE Eure Totsd Resturn Fund Liftered to rets] imesirs  Jspan by vy of public offenng thieeh 3 deobetal &
| PR Raal Retun Fund Japan, and may ba ofienad 1o other swastors a1 e discabon of tha Manager
| TR Shoxt-Toam Swategy™ CifFan i Lo FeRal 1195 1003 I JBpan Dy Wy -0f PUDIIC cRTenng 1000 8 Bisrbetor waior 8
sl bl o ccenguiny in Jagen, and meny b ollénsd 1o other invastons at the dudreton
af the Managa
i PR Ernergg Vdartists Bond Fusd (M) Dfarisd oaby 1o other Funds 1 Serve oz unddrlying nvastment wehedes o such Funds

e ST el S UER anwrr e FCE S e Soirgy e e Soad b b ety w0 i o/ Ve~ rerwt oy, o el v o ot dreteed Dty door e Siwa o (e S o £ i el it i asiy oSty el S

Linits of the FRMCO Eure Tofal Retum Fund, FIMOC Real Rehem Fund, and ALUD, JFY, and USD Classes of PIMCC: Shoet-Temn Strategy have been registered under the
Finandial instruments and Bahange Law of Japan. Units of esch of the remasning Funds and the | (IFY) @nd § (USD) Chavses of PIMGCO Shor-Term Stratedgy have nat
been and are not aimentdy xpected (o be regrtered under e Anandal struments and Exchangs Law of Japan . Accordingly, sich Units of these Funds may not be,
directly or indirectly, offered in Japan or to any resident in lapan, except in compliance with apgplicable lapanese Laws and regulations

2 SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

Thee fellowing Is & summary of signifcant sooouting polces consintently foll cweed by the Trust in e preparation of is Anandal statements in oonfonmity wish
acoounting prindphes generally soephed in the United States of Amerca (TU.5 GAAPT). Each Fund s treated as an investment compeany under the reporfing
reguirernents of U 5. GAAF The preparation of frundal Sutements i dcoordance with LS. GAAP féduires Management i make ¢50mates and Ssumgtions that
attect the reportied amounts of assets and lisbilities and didodure of conlingent aisats and lialdlities 2t tee date of the Bnanaal Uatements and the reported amounty
of inareases and demeases in net assets from operations during the reporting period. Acnual results. could differ from those estimates

i) Undadylng Fasd The Trustee and the Manager may apply dl or a postion of the assets of PIMCO Emenging Markets Bond Fund (ITF), PIMCO Emenging Markets
Eond Fund (¥ en-Hedged), and FMC0 Emenging Markets Bond Fund 1l (each referred to herein as a “fund of Funds”™ or the " Acquinng Fund ", which invests in ofher
Fuans) s the pespective credil o the FIMOD Eménging Madoets Bond Fund (M) {refesred to hetein o 30 "Undirtying Fund™ of the ~Acquired Fund™), Ay sisets 5o
applied well be Beld in fuch Acquired Fund 35 if recepesd dinectly. Wheee Jesets dre 50 Jpglied, the Acquired Fund will recond e e of wning 10 the relevant Adquinng
Fund 3t the isme peice per unit of such units andwill repurchase sach units at the repurdhase price perunat of sudh units at the Sme of repurchase

b Securitien Transactions and Investment lcome Securities Yansactions are reconded a5 of the frade date for fnancid reporting purpoies. Sequnities purchased of
ol oon i w550 of deliged-didwiey barsid mary be Sefed biyond 4 standaed settdement period Sor e secuiny aftir te trde dane. Realized gand. and kg
from securities sobd ae recorded on the identified st basis. Dividend income is recorded on e ex-dividend date, except certain dividends from forsign seomities
where the ex-dhidend date may have passed which e recorded a5 soon & a Fund is infrmed of the ex-dhidend date Interestincome, adusted for the acgetion of
discounts and smortization of prermiumms, i reconded on the aacrual bass fom settlernent date, with The exception of securiBes with 2 fonwvard aning eflective date,
wihere interest inoome iz seconded on the aconal basis from effectve date. For comertible sequnities, premiunms amributable ro thee conversion featyee ane pot
amortized Estimated tax lighiites on certan forsign seaarities ave recorded on an aooual bass and are reflected & composients of interéstincome or net change in
unrealized apprediation (depredation) an investments on the Statements of Opérations, & appropidte. Tax liabilities reafiped as 3 resull of sudh Sedarity sales are
refiecied 35 & component of net reakzed gan (oss) on investmenis on the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and ksses on morigagereaned and other aset-
backed seourithes; if any, ane recorded 25 components of inferest income on the Statemsnts of Operations

Brveasl Ragord | Muy 37, 2000
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Dreltet ctigations may be placed on non-asoual status and related interest
imcceme iy b reduced by ceasng qurrent acaals and weiting off interest
receiv e when the collecion of 1 or 3 poeticn of interest has become
doukitful based on consistently appiied procedures. A debd obligagion is
remived om non-orual Status wien the Bsuer resumes inBenest pnmments
o whren collectatility of Bnterest ks probable

(e} Cach and Faredgn Cusrency The financal statemnents of each fund are
presented ysing the cumency of the primany economic ervinonment in whidh it
Operaties (Theé “Tumctong] cumency™)

The: muarkced values, of fofeign sequntes, qumency hobdngs and other assets
and Babihties are ramdated into-each Fund's funcional arrendy based on the
urrent exchange rates edh busness day. Purchases and sales of sequiives
and income and expense e denominated in foreign armendes, if any, ae
translaned into ench Fund’s respecn: ncional currency a8 e exchange
re in et on e triedacon dite, The Furds do mod sepanatedy repon he
ffects of changes in Boreign exchandge rates from duanges in markel prigss on
securities held Such dhanges are induded in netreaized and net changes in
unredlized gamn of larss from Enestments on the Statements of Operations

The: Fumnds. may imeedt in Boreign cumenicy denominated securities and may
endgpage in foreign asrency ransachons either on a spot (Cash) basis at the
1 presaling in the cumency exchangs marker at the dmeof trough a
forey & foreign amrency contract Realized foreign exchange gains or losses
wnsng fromm Sales of Spaot Rofeign Qmendles, Qamendcy Gar of ksss reailed
betwigeen Bhe rade and semement Gates on SeuiBes Marsacons and te
difference batween e recorded amounts of dvidends, interest, and foreign
wathholding tioes and the hancbonal qurfendy equivalent of the smounts
actuaity neosved of paid are induded in net nealized gain of bess on foragn
QUM Transactions on the Statements of Operations. Met unsedized foreign
exthange gams nd Bossaes anising trom changes in foreign exdhange rates on
foreign denominated assets and Babiltes other than imesiments in seomites
hebdd an the end of the repdetng pecd ane incuded in net changs in
unredlized appreciation cr depredation on foreign qumendy assets and
Eatuliges on the Statements of Cperatons

Theee Mt dissel Value ("NAV™) 2nd total retures of cenain funds (or Chayses
thereol, & applicable) are presented in the ourrency for which the NaY is
reported (She “NAY qirency™) as detadled in each Fund'’s Offering
Memcrandum (the “Cffering Mamocandun™). For The purposes of the
presenitation of the MAY and the todal retum in the HAY cumency, the
beginning and ending NANS are cofverted using the period bignaing and
engding exchange rabes, recpectively, and distibations are comeerted wing the
exchange rate at the fme of the datribution: See the following tatde for the
MAN currency and Rincional qurendy of eadh nespective Fund:

Furmrsonl
Fard Claer: WAV Doy Ky
PARACE] Hervmsds Footmge Lows Dharation Fusd Japaress van L5 dollar
PINECE] Barmnds 1 5. Lovws Duration Fund Japaniga yan W5 dallar
PINKCT] Emergeeg Markas Bond Fund LITTFI Japansa yen U5 dollar
| FMCD Emerpng Madieg Bond Fund ) U5 dollan W5, dollar
« iED
| PIMCD Emargesg Markae Bosd Fund (TesHedoeeh | Japarssa yen 5 dollar
| FIMECD Emergeng Marka Bond Fund i s e pan U5, dctur
= JBR]
& J[H
*  JINA
s (MUK
] J [TRT
| & J AR
MACI Eueio Todad Plesors Fund [T Ewe

] Fraructrord
FuonalCuss: WA Curany s
P} Raal Ragatn Fuasd L5 dollsr US dodar
FRCD Stoit Torm Sramgy
= A0 Fasirsin doly U dodee
. JUM Japanase yn LS. doder
= JEm Jipan s yan S dulla
. Y Japanesa yn US doder
. ED LS doller L5 dulle

{d) Malticlass Operatiens. Exch Clacs of & Fund offered by the Tnast b
rights bo the asets of the Fund eqgual to that of other Clastes of the same
Fund, except for spedfic assets and oains and losses desgnated to 3 Class
relating b aurency hidging operations. Inoome, non-Class spedfic mpne,
anvd non-Class speafic redized and unrealized capital gains and bosses are

Al ccated to each Class of wnits based on the relatiee net aveets of each Cass
of the repective Fund Chags spedfC expentes. amenty indiwde
management, advaory, adninisratee and demnbubon fees, whene sgpboatde

{u) Distribaution Palicy The fofowing table shows the antidpated fequency
of disributions for each Fund. Distributions fom: each Fund mary be dedarned

and distributed o Unitholders cnly upon the authorization of the Manager,
which authorization may be withheld at the Managers dsaetion

PG Eueo Teotal Rann Fund

Daalured sred Puid Monthly:

PIMICY) Erranging Miarkats Bond Fund LIITE)
PN E e gung Marlosts Bond Fnd [Yin Hadgad)
FIACI) Ernarping Markets Bond Fund 1|

PN kst Tarm Stralegy

= JUM
- J RS
Declured and Peid Quartarky

PR Barrasds Fetoign Low Duration Fand
FINCT Barrmoeda U5 Lo Duraton Furd
FAMCT) Fandd Hakem Fund

PG Shot-Tam Siraiegy

= Ad
- I
= G0

Tha Munager doss ma? mepsct to declare distribuliaem wits resgect to thin

Fund |or Cluwsas theenal, if upphe ablel, But may. inite diseretson, daclure srd
ey & wivibations to tha Usitheld imin.

AMCD Emarging Marksts Bond Fond W)

Distmibenions, if any, wil generally be made from the relevant Fund's {or
Class’s, if applicable) net mvestment income. In addition, the Manager may
apthornize the pagment of net realived capital gains. avalable for dismbution
acdiional dismbutions may ke dedared & the Manager deams appeopriane
Listributions paidwith respedt to any Fund for Clats shereof, if applicable)
will reduce the NAV of sudh Fund {or Class thereof, if applicable). At the
discredon of te Unatholders, cash distributions from a Fund (or Class thenedd,
it applicabie} may either be reinvested in additiona wnits of 2 Fund {or Class
thereod, (f applicatde) of paid 10a Unitholder = cash Cath payments vall be
paid in the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund {or Class therec!, if

3ppl catie) may decare further desibations if considensd neessany in ofde

Ervenil Fagord | My 30, 200@ 1
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lo maintain a reasonable level of distributions for a Rend (or Class theref, if
applicable) in the event that these isinadequate net income and net reaiped
capital gaens o pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereod, if applicable)
requined by the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
cortising of & posticn of the cigital of such Rand (or Class thenea, it
applicable) Destributions not ooll ected within sé years from their due date
will Lapie andwall accae 1o the benefit of the rélevant Rand (or Class thereal,
if applicablie)

1] Neww Accounting Pronguncements in March 2016, the Financial
Acoountng Standards Board (TFASE") iswsed an Accounting Standands
Update (CASUT), A%U 2016-05, wihich provides guidance refated o the
irtact of dherivative CoNTACT Novaliond on certan nelamondhips under
Acoounting Standeeds Codfication Toplc (TASCTY 815 The ASLH S effective
for annusl pericds begnning after December 15, 2017, and interim periock
within fiscal wears beginning after December 15, 2018 The Runds have
adopted e AL The implementation of te ASLHEE not have a0 impect o
amy Fund's finandal statements

In Aurgust 2016, She FASH issued an ASUL ASLN2016-1 5, which amends ASC
730 o clany guaidandce on the dassification of certan Cash receipts and cash
payments on the Staterment of Cash Aows. The ASU s effectiee for annial
perinds beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods beginning
after Decerrber 15, 20019 The Funds have adapted the ASLL The
implementation of tee ASU dd not have an impadt on any Fund's financd
shatements

In Mowernber 2016, the FASE soued an A5, ASL 2016-18, which amends
ASC T30 1o peroedde quidance on the dassifcaton and preentation of
changes in rastricted cash and restricted cash equivalents on the Statement of
Cish Rows. The ASL IS effecive for snnusl periods beginning ARer Decimbes
15, 2018, and interim periods beginning after Decercber 15, 20019 The Funds
have adopred the A5U. The implementation of the ASU did not have an
iFngact on arry Fund™s financal statements

In Adgurst 2008, She FASE issued & ASLL ASLY2018-13, which demends ASC
20 bo moaddy the disdosure requirements on fair valse measurements The
ALl is efective Tor annual periods begnnng afer December §5, 2019, and
interim peiods wathin thote arnua peniods. The implementation of the ASU
remavies or modfes cenain dsdosune requirements AR this time,
management has elected to early adopt the A5U and the changes ane
imcorponated in the finendal statements

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMEMNTS

1n) lnvestsent Valuntion Policies The price of a Funds units is bed on
the Fund's WA The MAV of 3 fund, or each of its Classes, as applicable, is
determiried by dividing the total value of portholio investmnents and ofher
assets annbatable o that Fund or Class, less any labilithes, by the total
numbet of units cutstanding of that Fund o Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Diary (s desiribed in e currenit Cferdng Memoranduem of the Trus),

Fuand units are onchegity vatued a5 of the dose of regu o rading on the Hew
Yook Stock Exchange ("NSE Close ™) information that becomes known to
the Funds or their agents afier the fime a3 of which MAY has been caloulated
of & partild diywall not generally be ubed (o rewodctively adjust the peice
af 3 sequrity of the NAY detesmined earfier that day Each Fund reserves the
right to charge the time 55 abwhich its NAY is caladated if the Fusd dodes
elies

Fior puwpecrses, of caboulating a MAY, portfolio sequrites and other asseis for
wihich market quobes are readiy available are valsed at marketvalue, Market
walue i Qenerally desermined on he batis of affiaul dosng prioss o fe Ll

reported <ales prices, of if no sales are reported, based on quotes obitained
froen established market makers of prices (ndudeng evalpated prices) supplied
by thee Fumds” apgwoved pridng serdices, quolation reporting gysteens. and
other thind-party sounces {hogether, * Pricng Senrices”). The Funds will
ity wse pricng dia hor dormestic equiry seduities reoeived shortly lter
the MYE Close and do not nommatly tale into aomunt racding, dearances of
setdements shat take place after thie NrSE Close. f market value pridng is
wied, & foreign (non-LLS) edquity security Traded on 3 Torsign exchangs of on
more than one exchange b oypecally valued using pricing informaton from the
enchange conzidered by the Manager to be the primary enchange. A foreign
(nen-L15 ) equity seturnby will be vialued i of the dose of trading on the
foreign exchinge, of this NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close coours before the end
of rading on the foreign exchange. Domestic and foreign (non-15 ) fxed
T Senanitied, mon-tud i tracksd derbviiives, and squity opfions are
norrenally walued on the buds of quotes oblained from broker snd dealens o
Pricing Senioes using data refleding the earfier dosing of the prindpal
markets for these securiies. Prices obtained from Pridng Seraces may be
barsed on, among oter things, infoemation prosdded by markel makers o
estimares of marker values obaaned from yield data relaging to investments o
seuities with simifar characterstics. Certain fived income: Sequrities
prchated o B Gelayed-delivery Busls ane manked 1o markoet daly eatl
Letderment at the iofwiand sertement dale Ex Il:-n‘-_'p:--‘.'.ui‘l‘l oplce, excepl
equity options, futures and options on fistures, are valued at the seidement
perice: detiermined by Hhe relevant oching Swap dgreements st vilued on
the basis of bid quotes obtained from brobers and dealers of marker-based
prices supptied by Pricing Services or other pridng sources. A Fund's
innestrmenits in open-¢nd management imdesiment companies, o than
enchamge-raded funds CETR™), ane valsed an the Navs of sudh mvesments
Open-end management invesiment coempanies may ndude atfliated fnds

- foseign (non=L 53 equity security’s value has materiafly changed after the
dose of the sequity’s primany eochangs of prndpal market bt before the
WYSE Close, the sequriny may be valued a1 far value based on procecures.
established and spproved by the Manager. Foreign (non-Ll 5 Jequity
Lesutithes that do nol trade when e NYSE i3 open ane 380 wiheed a1 fa
value, With respedt Il'n‘e:.‘_:l (nan-L 5. ) egqaity decunties, 4 Fund may
determine the fai value of investments hased on infoamation prosided by
Pricing Sennces sond other Thind-pasty vendors, which may recommrmend fae
vakie or adjustments with reference 1o other securities, indices or Jssets In
considering whether £2r valua®on (s required and in determnining far

vatlues, & Fund iy, among olher things, corsder Sgnficant events (which
may be considensd o indude changes in the value of U5 seounities of
seaarides indoes) that oo ter the dose of the relevant market snd befiee
the MY5E Close: A Fund may uilfize modeing tools provided by thind-party
weridors v denermine Tar values of foreign inon-105 ) sequiBes. For thess
pupcres, any movement in the appficable referemoe imdex of instnament

(" 2er0 Irigger =) between the earfer doge of the applcable forsign market
avd the NYSE Close muy be deemsid 1o be & Sgnificant event, prompiting the
appdication of the pridng model (effectivedy resulting in daily tar

valaatoond) Forengn exdhandgis may perrat fradng in foregn {non-L5 )
equily Securities on days when the Trust is fot open Tor bsiness, which may
result im a Fund’s portfolio invesimenis being affected when Unitholders are
unatde to buy of sell units

Senior secured oatng rate loand for which an acive secondary market edss
1 & redtable degree wil be valued an the mean of the last avalable bidtk
prfices i thee muarket for moch loares, 35 peovided by 3 Pricng Serde. Senbor
secured Soating rale haans for which an active secondary market does not
et b & relighde degree wall be valued an fair vilue, which is interded bo
appiodmate market value. Invaluing a seniod seured floating rabe boan at
fair value, the Tactors tonsidered may indude, but are not lmited to, the
Tollcwinng (30 e creditcrthiness of the Dodrower and any intermediate

Ervenil Fagord | My 57, 2000 )
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participants, () the terme of the loan, () recent prices in the market for
similar loans, if any, and (b recent prices in the markes for instrumenss of
similar quality, rate, period il next inteest rate resat and maturity

Imepstmens valued in qurendes ather than the funchional aamendy

of & Fund ane comverted o the funclonal currendy using exhangs rates
orbazmed from Fricing Sendces. A58 result, the valise of sudh imestments and,
im B, the NAY of the Fund's wnits may be atiected by changes in the valoe
al qurendes in retabon 10 the Tuncion sl qurency. The value of iInvestments
traded in foreign matkets or denominated in aurrendes other than

the fumctional osmensy may be affected significanthy an a day that the Trust is
not open fof busness. As areudl, to the exdent that a Fund holds Reeign
{noe-U 5 ) investments, e valee of those Fvestments may change at times
wihen ywoi cannot purchase, redesm of exchange wnits and the value of such
irrvestments will be reflecied in the Fund's next caladaned Hay

Irroearnen s Toe which muarkeed quotes of magke] based valuations e nol
readly sailatle e valued at far vdue a5 determined in good faith by

tive Manager of pefains acng a8 their direction. The Minager has adopted
e thods for valuing secwides and ofher a55ets in deoemstances where
markel quites ane ot readdy avallable, and has delegated o PIMCO the
respoarsiblity for applying the fair valuation methads. In the ewent hat market
Quoies of markel based valuatioen are not readdy svadable, and e security
oF aset cann ol be vaiued pursuant 104 Maneger approved vallition
method, the value of the security or 3sset wil be determined mn good faith by
the Valuamon Commities. Marke quobes &fe congidered not readily svalibie
in cinoumest an oes where thene is an absence of cunrentor refiable market-
based data (e g, Trade information, bidfask information, indcative market
quiotations (" Encber Quates ™), Fridng Sendces” prices), induding whee
events cour after te cose of the rebevant market, but prioe 10 the NisE
Clorse, that materially atfect the walues of the Fund's seumities or atels in
additicn, market quotes are considered nod readily available when, dee to
exmraordnany drame Lances, the exchanges of maekets on which the

secur ies frade do nof open for trading fior the entire day and no other
market prices are gvalable The Manager b5 responsible for monitoring
sigrificant ewentd Tt moy materidly stec e values of the Fund's secusiied
of assets and for determinineg whether the value of the applicable sequries or
assits should be reevalizated in light of such significant events.

When & Fund wies B vilagtion 1o deteming Se vl of 3 portiolio ety
o gthver aseet for purposes of cabaulating its MAY, gach investments will not
e priced on the basds of quotes from the primany markoet in which they are
trached, Eunl rather migy be priced by anather method that Se Manager o
peersodns acting 1 thelr direction Belleve reflects farvalue Fair valuation may
require subjective deserminasons about the value of 2 seourity. While

the Trust's policy is ntended o result in 3 caboulation of a Fund's BAV that
Tairly refects Saamny valines ot of thee tme of pricng, tee Trust Caneal ensne
that fair values determined by the Manager or persons acting at thesr
diraciion wiowkd acosrately reflect Hee paice that a Fund aould obtain for 2
Lscurity i [ woere 1 dispose of that seauity a5 of the ene of pang (for
irvstanice, in & foroed or dsmessed sale) The prices used by a Fund may ditfer
frorn Thie valoe that would be realiaed if e seosiBes were sobd

) Fair Valwe Hierarchy |15 GAAR disoribes Tar value a5 the price thil

& Fundwiould receive to sell an asset of pay to transfer 2 Babdity in an onderdy
transaction between market parddpants at the measarement date. It
eutablishes a fair walue hierarday that peoditoes inputs & valuation methods
and requines dacdosure of the farvaliee hisrandvy, separately foreach maor
canegony of assets snd Habiltes, hat segreganes fair value measuremenis into
beweds (Lewed 1, 2, 06 3) The inputs o metheodlogy used for valuing secunties
are rob mecestanly s indcaton of e dsks maocated with inestingin S
securities Lewels §, 2, and 3 of ghe fair walue hietardey are defined as foflows:

* Leved | —Cmated prices in acive markets or exchanges for identical astets
o] Babeites

* Level 7—Significant other observable inputs, which may indude, bo are
il lirmited bo, quited prices for sirrdar assets of Babilites i makets that are
active, quoted priices for identical or simiar assets or Rabalitles in markets thar
Benor acive, inputs ather than quoted pioes thial ane obserable for the
asels of liabilities (sudh & interest rates, yield ainves, wolatlifes, prepayment
i, bodd Seventiel, Credl adkd and dedault rates) of oSher market
codroborated inputs

= Lol 3=Significant uncbsenvabile inputs based on e bestinformation
v ulatle i e droumELances, 10 e extent oldenvabiz MO A nol

v ail b, wihech may indude asmptions mide by the Manager or perions
acting at their direction that are wsed in determining the fair value of
It

In acoordance with the requirements of U5 GAAF, the amounits of ransfers
i amd ouf of Level 3, if material, are disdoted in the Nodes to Schedule of
Ivvestments for each respective Fand

For fair valuations using sionificant unobaenvable inputs, 1S, GAAT tequires
1o cisdiose ransders into and out of Lewel 3 of the T value hierarchy and
purchiases and issoes of Level 3 assets and Babilities during the pericd
AddRionally, LS, GulAP requines quantitstve informuasion regardng the
wgnihcant unobdervatde imfu s uied in the determination of Tar value of
axsels of liabikes categorized as Leved 3 in the fair vale Herardwy, In
socordance wath e requnements of U5 GAAR, & 1as viloe hietardny. and it
mateial, details of significant unobsenable inputs, have been induded in the
hotes 1o Schedube of Imvessments for each respecive Fund

{e} Valuntion Techuiques and the Fair Valwe Hiemichy

Lewed 1 and Level Z trading sssats and tading labilities, ot lair value The
valuation methods for "lechriques™) and dgnificant inputs used in
dhetearinmng the fair values of Tl S minbed oF oliver gsets and hiabdities
categorized as Level | and Level 2 of the fair value hierardhy are a3 follows:

Fooed imoome SecuwriBes mduding oorporate, corvertibe and muniapal bonds
ad notes, US givemiment agendes, U S, measuny obligations, soversion
{ssaess, bank |oand, coreentible prederred sequrities and mon-LES. bonds are
normaly walued on e basis of quobes obtained from brokers and dealers oo
Pricineg Services than use beoker-cesler quotatons, reported rades of
valuation esfimates from ther intemal pridng modets. The Fridng Sendces
ingemal modds use inputs that ane obaervable such s issuer detalls, intersst
ranes, yisd curves, prepayment speeds, oredit riskstipaeach, default rates and
quated prices for similar asets. Seourithes that use simllar valation
techrigues and inpuils 5 desaibed above are categorized as Level 7 of the
fair value hieranchy

Fiooted] irocimet: Scun B purdhirsed on 2 delayed-diiwery bases of 34 2
repurchase commitment in & sabe-buybad: ransacion are marked 1o markeg
dabyuntd setfement at the farward settiement date and are categonined a5
Lewvel 2 of the falr value hierachy

Wortgageselated and assetbacked sequnfies e pardly issed as weparate
tranches, of dianes, of seomities within ety deal. These searities & also
norrally walued by Pricing Sensces fat e broker-deder quotations,
regorted trades of valuaton estimates Fom ther intema pridng modets. The
pricing maodels for these securities wsually consider tranche Jevel atiribules,
cumrent marker data, estimated cash fiows and market-based yield gpreads for
each rande, and inooporane desl collaters performance, a5 avalable
Mortgagesalated and assetbadked securithes that use similar valuason
techricueed and inputs 55 desobed sbove dne Categonized a3 Level T of te
i walge hierarchy
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Cornman sbodks, ETFs, schanige- traded notes and finandal derivative
imsErumens, sudh & futures conwacts, rights and wamants, of opUons on
futures that are raded on 3 national securites sachange, are stated at the
farst reported sale or settlement price on the day of valueation. To the extent
1heae securities ane Sctively traced and vituation adusiments are nalapplied,
they e categosized a5 Level 1 of the fair value hierardy

Imeestmaents v alued (denominated) in curendes other than the funcBonal
curmency of 3 Fund e cometed i the funcoomal OFTENCY LN G exdhange
rates (oumency spot and Sonvard rates) obtained from Priceg Services. As a
resuft, the NAY of 3 Fund’s umits may be affecied by changes in the value of
qurte e i el ation 1o the fundional curmency. The walue of sedunbies iraded
I foresgn markets o denominated in cumendes other than the funciona
cunrency may be affeced dgnificantly on a day that he Trustis not open fo
business. Waluation adustments may be applied o certain SeouniBes that ane
solely raded on a fodeign exchange Lo sccount fof the market movement
biebwein the dose of the foreign market and the N SE Close. These semumities
are valued using Pridng Sereices that consider the correla®on of the trading
panterms of the feregn edurity 3o Bve inmrady wadng in the L5, market; for
irvestments. Sequrifies using these valuation adiasiments are Categorized as
Ll 7 0 thee Lar value feerandhy. Prefermd secun Bl and other equbes
Iradched on inzchne markess of valued By reference 1o smilar imsuments ane
alsy categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Equaty-finked seqwities are valsed by referending the last reported sde or
sellerment price of the linked referemnted squity on e r,l1:|--:_|l waluaion
Foreign exchange sdusments are applied o the (a5t reported price (o
convert e linked equty™s tradng aurendy to the contract's satilng cumenoy
Thiete Ervestments ane cabeqorized 26 Level 2 of the Rair value hierandhy

ImeEstmen i in reguilened open-end irvestment companies (Dther than ETFS)
will be valued based upon the MAVS of sudh inves ments and are categuized
a5 Ll 1 o she Tair value hisranchy, Invetmenss in unrsgistened open-end
irwestment comganies will be cabaullated based upon the Navs of auch
Irwestments and are considered Level | peovided that he NAWS are
wbssreable, cabalated daby and are the value atwhich both purchases and
ales wall b conducted

Equity eschange-raded options and over the counter fnandal derivatve
instruments, sudh & fonsard foreign cumency contracts and options @nads,
drivee their value from undéshing asset phices, mdices, reference rates, and
atter inputs of 3 combinaton of tese factors. These Contracts e nommally
valued on the basis of quotes obiained from a2 quotation reporting system
estathished marked makir of Frscing Sendces (nomaly determined a5 of the
NYSE Chorg). Depending on e product and the tegre of e ransaction,
finandal derivative insmaments can bevalued by Pridng Senices using a
sefied of techiniues, induding dmislytion padng modds The prdng models
uie inputs that ane obrerved from adively quated markens such 5 quoted
porices, issuer detalls, indices, biddack spreads, mterest rates, impled
wilatiities, yield curves, dividends and exchange rates. nand al denvatve
[mssruments that use Similar valuaton tedniques and inputs & desribed
Above are categurized a8 Level 2 of the Talr value herasdy

Cntrally deaned swagd and vt the counfér svaps difive their value from
undertying asset prces, indces, reference rates, and oshes inputs or 2
comianation of these factors. They are valised wiing 2 beoker-cealer bed
quotation of on market-bated prces provided by Pricing Sendces (nonmally
determined as of the NYSE dose). Centrally deared swaps and over the
COUler g can b valued by Pr.l:un;l LA G 8 Seres of fechniques,
induding smulation pricng models The pridng modals mayuse inputs Sat
A olrienatd Trom ddively quated markets sudh 38 Te dvermight mdex Swip
rae (TOI5T), London interhank Cffered Rate (TLUBOR™) forward rate, inferest

ranes, yiehd curves and cedi jpeeads. These seourities are categonized 25
Level 2 of the fair vilue histachy

Leved 3 trading assets and trnding Finbilities, ad bair value Vher a f2ir
valuathon method is applied by the Manager Sat uses sgnificant
tsnobsenvable inputs, mvestments will be priced by 2 method tat

the Manager of persors acsng at ther direction befieve refleas far value and
are categoized as Leved 3 of the fair value hierardhy. The valuasion
techniques and wagn el g e s wsed in chetermniee e T values of
portfolio assels and Rabilities categorized a5 Level 3 of the fir value hisrandy
are g folows:

Pocory pricing procedures 461 the base price of & Kosd inoome seouing and
sltvecuentty sdust the geice proportion ally 1o marken value changes of 3 pre-
determined sequnty deermed 1o be comparable in doration, generallya L%
Tredsny OF stner agh note bired on country of istande. The base phce
bt brober-dealer quite, ansaaion price, of am inMemal value 55 dermeed by
analysis of market dafa The base price of the secuity may be reseton a
peviodic burds based on the aailablity of markel data and procedunis
Sppioved by the Valuaton Commitiee. Sgnificant changes in the
ungbeenvable inputs of the ey pricing proscess (e bage price) wiondd result
in direct and proportional changes in the $air value of the teaurity These
Ainies are Calegoried as Lewvel 3 of the Rar valus hisrarchy,

o hird-party evaluated vendor priging B not avafable or not deemed 10 be
incicative of fair vale, the Manager may dect to obtain Broker Quotes
direcEy from the brober-deaber or passed shrough from a thind-party vendor
I thee evenit thaat fake walue 15 baded wpon & sngle sousced Broker Quide,
theesa securities ame catlegonized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy Broke
Cuaones e Typically reenved from e tblished market particpants. Although
||'-;,'|-_1'.-_-c".|}_-r‘|ll:|' fecrved, the h'.arm-_m s mal B the IFERSpEErICY 10 view
thee underking inguts which support the market quotation. Sgrificant
changes in the Broker Guote would have dinect and proporfional change in
the fair valize of the seomity

Sheort-ferm debt instrumenits (such a5 commendial paper) having a remaining
maturity of 60 days of less may be valued at amortized cost, so bong a5 the
amcrtzed ol value of fuch shor-benm debd s muments is sppradamabely the
same a5 e falr value of the instrument as detenmined without the e of
amartized cost valuation. These sscurilies are categorized 2 Lewd I or Lewd
3 of the tar value hierandyy dependng on the source of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

in) Delayed-Delivery TransacKons Cevtzn Funds may purchase or sl
et on & delayschdelivery badis. Thise ransactions involve a
codrrnimment by @ Fund to pundhase o sell seqiniBes for 3 predetemmined price
o yield, wath payment and defreeny taking place beyond the qustomany
setement period When delayed-delivery fransactions are culstanding

& Fund wall designate of recene as collatenal liquid Zoets in & anoln
safficient to meet the purchase price oo regpecive obligafions. When
pewchasing a sequiity on a delayed-delfvery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and rigky af ownership of the seaunty, indudng the ek of prce and yeld
fluchaations, and takes sudh fuctuadons inbo acoount when determining its
HAY A Fund may disporte of o renegotiate 3 delaped-delivery Iririacion
Mot it 5 enteded indo, which iy eyl f an g redlided i of Borst. When

& Fund has sobd @ sequrieg on 2 delayed delivery basis, the Fend doss not
particpate in future gains and kosses with resped bo the seauity

b} Inflation-Indeced Bomds Cortirn Funds muy imedt inin®aion <ndeoed
bond. inflation-ndeed bonds are fooed i noome seqriies whose prinopa
vahe i periodically adusted by the rate of infation. The interestrate on
thiese bonads is generally foced atistuance at a rate Jower than typical bomd
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Crver thie life of an infladon-indeced bond, however, interest will be paid
based om a principal value, which is adusted for inflation Ay ingrease o
decrease in the pindpa amount of an inflation-indeed bond will be induded
as interest income on the Statements of Operations, even thowgh imvestors do
G0 recei Their frnapal uniil Ty H-:ﬁarﬂ-_r.-l of e {pi!_;r:.j! Bl
pimcipal upon matority {35 sfusted for iflation) s guaranbesd in the case of
L5, THFS. For boneds that donotprovide a similar gquarantes, She adustisd
principal valie of the bond repasd a8 rma burity may be bets han he aigingl
perincipal

{¢} Lean Paricipatiens, Assig ke and Onginations (=rtan funds may
ienedt N diiect debl instrumen s whech afe imlenests m amounts owed 1o
lenders of lending syndicates by corporate, governmental, of other bomowers
A Fund's srvestments in boans maybein the form of partidpations in loans or
assigaments of all of a portion of loans from third partees or imvestments in o
cficEnations of Ioans Dy e Fund A koan is often ademnks ered by & best: o
ather fnanda nshtution (the "lendsr”) that acts a5 agent for 3l holdérs. The
agent adminishers the tems of the Boan, a5 specfiedin te loan agreement

A, Fuind iy ifrvest in radtiphe senies of randhes of & loan, which may hive
wanging tenme and camy different assodated ks, When a Fund purch ases
assignmen s Srom benders it aoquires dired fights agaenst e bomowers of the
baans: Traese boans gy ndude partidpations i bridge laar, whidh ae lcans
taken cut by bormowers for 3 thort period (ypecally bess than one year)
pending amangement of more permanent Bnanan g through, fior ecample, the
imsuande of bonds, frequently high yisld bonds issued for the purpose of
A0

The types of doans. and related investments in which the Funids may imvest
indudee, among cthers, senior leans, wbondnated ko (nduding seoond
frem Iovams, B-Motes and mezzanne Joans), whole kans, commendal real
eslate and ofher commendal loans and snactured boans. A Fund may

o ginbe boans of aoquine direct interests in hoass throwgh pimany loan
dismrbutdons andfor n private ransactions. i the cide of subondnaed loans,
there may be sgnificant indebledness ranking ahead of the bornower's
obdigation to the hobder of such a loan, induding in the event of the
borrower's insohancy. MeZzaning loans ioé fypicily sedumed by a pledge o
an eqaly inferest i e modtgage borrower that owes the real estate rather
than & inerest in 4 mortgage

|iregidmen s i loans ay incuacke unhanded lodn commetments, which e
contraciial obfigations fr funding Ununded loan commilments may induds
revotving qedt fadlities, which may obligate 3 Fund to supply additional cash
b thee b on demand. Uniburscd bodn commilments represent 4 fatrme
obligagon in full, even hough a percentage of the committad amount may
ot be utdi zed by the borower When investing in 8 loan partdpation,

a Fund bus Hee right to medeive payments of princpal, nberest and any fees to
wihech it i enstied onby froen the lender sellng e baan agresment Jnd only
upon meceipt of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
receive 3 comemiiment fee based on the undrawn portion of the underlying
firvir of crecit pontion of.a loan. n dertain Groammiances, 4 Fund may e 3
penalty fiee upon the prepayment of 3 loan by 3 bomower. Fees eamed o
pawdd are moorded 4% 4 component of nterest iNCome of iNternest apenie,
respactively, on the Staternent of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
are reflected a5 3 Hablity on the Statements of Assers and Liabiliies

{di Mortgage-Relaied and Other Aset-Backed Securities Certan funds
iy irvst in morhgage-nelited and other assel-badeed Sedqunities that dnectly
o Enclrecsly represent a partidpation in, of are sequred by and payabie from,
Toans on real propenty. Morogage-related seoarifes are eated from pools of
residential of commendial morigage baars, induding mortgage loans made by
Lanirags aid [Oan Insrmunons, moegage Bankers, cormmendal banks and
athers. These sequrities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
imbarest aned princip#. Interest may be determined by Ged or adustable rates

Thee rane of prepayments on underying mortgages will atiect the price and
vidatility of & monage-relased secunity, and may have the etiect of
shortening of extending the effective duration of the sequrity relative towhat
was anticpated at the Sme of punchiase. The Smefy payment of prindpal and
Inlires Of CertaEn imar 1gage -Tel led Securitiés is quaraniesd with the ful 1sth
avd ekt of dee U4 Gowernment Pools areated and quaranbead by non-
govermrmental idu e, nduding govennmen t-iponsoned corpanations, may b
supper tied] bry varricans Torms of suranoe of quaranbees, Bul there can be fo
SEsUance hal private inrurers of guarantors can meet teir oftigations under
the insrance pafdes of guaranites arangements. Many of the risks of
invstng in morigage-related searites seaared by commencal mongags
I e the effects of local and other eConamic condiiions on real eipe
markets, the abiity of tenants so make lease payments, and the ability of a
progarty [0 JUFact and fetln lenants. Thed soafides may be e ligad snd
iy eadbal greater price volatlitg than othér By of morgage-related or
other asset-badved seourities. Other asset-baded seounes are oreaned from
marry bypees of assets, indudng butnotlimited 1o, alo [oans, sccounts
regervable, such 35 oredit card receivables and hospital account recefiabes,
Porne equity knans, student loens, boat laans, mabdle home [oans,
rereational vehide boams, manufadured housing kaans, ainaatt leases,
computer leges and sndcaned bank koans. The Furd may invet in amy beel
of the Capital sruciune of an esaer of morigege-basdiosd of sase Haddoed
seqarnifes, induding the equity or “first loss™ randhe

{u} Collateralized Morigage Oblgations: ("CW00™) o deb oblicatonz of a
Tyl enmty that are collaterdized by whole mortgage leans of peivite
morgage bonds and divided info dasses. CMGOs are stimachared into mudbiple
s, often refermed o a5 "ranches”, with each dass Dearing 3 different
staned imananny and enbted to & dthient schedule for payrments of prrcpal
and interest, induding peepayments. CWO0s may be tess Bouid and may exhibit
greater prce walatlity Tan other types of momgage-related of Ssel-backed
Lot

i Swripped Morigage-Backed Secarities ("5MES) 2re denvative muli-
dlass morigage sequnities. SMES are wsually strocured with two dasses tat
fisirvt Cithisnent proportions of the interest and pindpal distibuticns on J
pood of momgage aswets. An SMES will have one dass that wall receive dll of
the interest (e mlerest-only of "0~ dies), while the other dirs will recsie
thee entire principal ($he prindpal-only or "PO" dass) Pagments received for
¥ors ane included in interestinoome on the Harements of Operations Because
o prinecipal will be received at the mawrity of an 10, adjusiments ane made
0 thee coit of thes Security o monthly uakis untd ma ity Thiste
sdusrent ace ncuded in mbEresTincome on the Statements of Ofer g
Payments. received for PO are treated as reductions to the et and par value
of the Securlies

{g) Collaternlized Debt OblignSons "0 000" ) include Collatenihized Bord
Gibligations {805 ), Collateralized Loan Obligatons ("CLOS™) and other
similarby stnachured seqmiies CBOs and CLOS are types of asseb-backed
yiscurifaes A CEC) s & trus which i baceed by 3 diverafied pood of hegh sk,
bedpws imvestment grade fied income seourites. A CLO s 3 tnust typacally
collateralized by a pool of |oans, which may indade, among atfsers, domestic
and forsign senior secured loans, seniior unsetured loans, and dsbcndinate
corpoeate hoans, induding loans that may be rated below imvestment grade o
equivalent wrrated Joans The risks of an investment in a C 0O depend langely
o the type of the colateral securities and the dags of the 0O in whidh

& Fund imveats in addton 1o the noemel s assodisted wath foed ncome
seqarnifes disaysed evewhiere in this report and the Funds’ Offering
Mermorandum (g, prepayment fisk, arodil rid, Bgueding ik, markel risk,
struciural risk, legal nsk and interes) rabe ik (which may be exacehbated if
the interest rae payable on a smacured finanding changes based on
rrrltiplies. of changes in inberest rates o inversely to changes in intenest
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rates)), CBOs, CLCk, and ather € D04 camy additional ritks induding, bulnot
Tirnited to, (F) the possibility than dswibugons from collaterd sscurties will not
b adrquate bo make interestor other payments, (i) the quality of the
oollateral may dedine in walue or default, ) the sk that a Fund may invest
ir CBCs, CLO, of ofher CDOA that are suboodinate 1o other dasses, and ()
the comples: steuctne of the sensrity may mot be fully understood at §e time
of et trnent and many prodiecs disputes with the issuer of unexpectid
iFnos et results

i) Payment In-Kind Securities Ceriain Funds may imvest in paymentinsond
saufies (“FIES™) PIKs may ghve e jssuer the opfion at ead interest
prgrrend date of mak ) MbEnesl PNt N sther cash andior sadditional
debt securities. Thowe addifonal debt seourides usually have the same bemms,
niduding maturity dates and intefest rates, and ssodated risks a5 the
crigprial bondt The daly market quotateons of the onginal bonds may induds
e sonaed interest freferred 10 a5 4 "dinty grice ™) and require & pro rata
adustment from the unrealized appredation o deprediation on investments
to interest receivable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites

(i} Restricted Securities Certam Funcs may hold Frvestments that sre
subfect oo begal of coniraci resrichons on resale. Thete saquriies may be
sold privately, but may be required o be regitened or exempbed from sudh
registration behone being sobd to the public Private pacement seourities e
-genr-f.‘:ll:,' oo sicensd o be restricted Dispoda of retmiched invettmen il nty
irwolve Gme-corsuming negotiafions and expenses, and prompt sale at an
acoeptabie price may bk ooy o achieve. Redncted imvestmishts held by
the Funds at May 31, 2009, as apphcable, are disclosed inthe Motes o
Schedule of Investments.

{1 Structwrad Notes Cettan Funds may imeett mostruciuned mone and osher
reelatend irvSirumen 35, which & priviassly .'||,-|;|,-!':.j:|:=¢ bt Dl_‘&l;,al'l-:r‘lg i which
the principal and’ of inkerest is determined by reference to the performance of
abenchemark desel, market o interest rane (an Tembieddied indix”), such
sedected sequnties, an index of sequrities of spedfied inferest rates, or the
differental parformance of ao assels of marbets, sudy a5 indexes refecting
bonds, Stnuctured instnaments may be issued by arporations, induding
banks, a5 well & by goverrmental agendes, The s of sudh stucueed
irvsruments moemally peovice that thelr prind pal andior inferst paymen s g
10 be adjusted upwards or dowemwands (but ordinariby not below rero) o
refiect chinges in the embedded index while the Snactuned insiruments ie
outstanmding As 3 result, the interest andfor prindpal payments that may be
maide on 3 structured product may vany widely, depending on avariery of
factors, inchading the wolafility of the embedded indix and the effec of
changes in e emibedded indexon prindpal andior interest payments

ki LS. Gevernment Agencies of Government-Sponzored

Eslarprisas Certan Funds mayismeest in secunties of U S Givemment
Agenies of govemment-sponsored enterprises. L% Govemment seowities
A cbigations of and, in certain cises, guirantéed by, the U5 Government,
ts agendies of msrumentaslities. Some L3 Government sequnifes, sudh as
Treasury balls, nates nd Donds, and sequribes guaranteed by the Government
Magonal Morigage Association TGNMA™ or "Ginmie Mae"), are wupported
Loy thes tudl taith sned crechin of e U5 Gowsrenen, atfséry, tach a6 thode of
e Federall Home Logn Barks, e sagparted by e right of te i to
borrows from the U S Department of the Treasury (the “U 5 Tressury™ and
cifvers, such & thote of the Federdl National Momgage Asuod ation (T HaMA™
or “Fannie Mae"), are suppoeted by the disoetioneey authonity of the U5
Govemment 10 puechase the agenoy’s obdgations. U5 (Govemnment securities
mray inchadie Tend coupan secuniies which do not detmibute inberest on a
urmen? basis and tend 10 be subject i a greater msk than interes-paying
securities of similar matunities

Govemment-talyted guaranton (e, not badved by the Gl fath and cedit of
the L5 Gowernment) incdiade FUMA and the Federal Home Loan Mongags
Corpaoration {"FHLMC or *Freddie Mac™). FHMA i 2 govemmentsponsored
corporation. FHbA purchases comentional §oe., not insusred or guarantesd by
My QiEneri Jg:ll-’_‘rflrt:.h}-_nl‘i,_: rn{r:l:;,ju;:'j.‘.ln_m a5l o apprioved
sellen'senvicers which indude state and federally chartered savings and foan
asodations, munral savings banks, cammendal backs and areditunions and
moipage bankers. Pass-throwgh seaarites Paued by FNMA are guaranieed &
1 timely payment of principal and interest by FNMA, but are nof baded by
the full faith and edt of the U 5. Govemment. FHLMC isuses Particpation

undivided interest in 3 podl of residental mangages. FHLMC guarantess The
fimedy payment of interest and uimate collection of princpal, but PCs are not
Erdchoesd oy thee Rl Ttk devcd creclit of the LIS, Gowvermimen!

Under the direction of the Federal Housing Finaroe Agency, the Federa
Hational Mortgage Astodation ("FNMAT) and the Federal Home Loan
Miortgage Corporation {“HHLMC ) have entered into a joint initiatve 1o
disnslo i OOMITON Sedunraton plathomn Toe B sy rance of B unilonm
miongege-hacked searity (the “Wngle Secrity initiatve ") that digns the
characterstics of FNMA and FHUMC cirticates The Srgle Seasity mitiatve
was implernesited on hune 3, 2019, and the effects it may hine on e market
for mongage-hacked sequrites e undertan

Foll-fming sirategies can be used where a Fund seeks to exiend the
Egaration of sty of a poditon, wech a5 2 TBA secunity on an underying
assel, by diging out the position befone expiration anvd opening a new
position with respedt to wbstantally the same underhing asset with a laker
epiration date. TBA sequriSes purdhased or sobd are reflected on the
Stanements of Assels and Liateliies 55 an asset or Habditg, respectively

1) Wihen-lzsned Transmetions Certan Funds my purchiie o Sl securilie
on @ when-issued bads, These ransactions are made mndtonaly becaye a
sedanity, afthough authonzed, has nod yet bien issued in the

maker. Transactions 1o putchase or sl sequrities on 4 when-ssusd basls
imvobve & commizment by & Fund 1o punchaze or sell tese seouriges for a
predetermined price of yield with payment and delivery taking place beyond
the o gty setdement pefod. 4 Fund may sell whenTisued seamines
brefore they ane deftvered, which may resultin a realized gain or loss

{m} Bank Dbligatians Eank cbigations inwhich & Fund may invest indude
cestificates of deposit, bankers” acceplances, and fixed fime deposits
Certificates of depodt ane negotiable cerifcates issued aganst funds
deposited im a commerdal bank: for a definite period of ime 2nd eaming a
speditied retum,  Bankers' sO0eptances iee negotale drafts or bills of
exnchandge, nofnally drdwn by a0 iMDOrTEr OF expofie 1o pay for ipeathic
merchandse, which are ®socepted” by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bk uncondtionaly agrees to pary the face vaioe af Se Bitument o
maturity Fxed Sme deposits are bank obfigations payable a1 a stated
maturity date and bearing interest an 3 fooed rate. Fined Hme deposits may be
withudrawm on demand by the imvestor, but may be subject to eary

i thdrawcal penalties whoth vary depending pon marke conditiors and the
refamning maturity of the obligaton

£ BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The folkowing disdodunes contan mnbormation on the Funds” atality tolend or
borrowy cash of securities bo the extent permitted under e Crifering
s an chur, whidh may be viessd 36 bomossanc of fimandng Wansacmons
by thee Funds. The focation of these instruments is described below. For a
detaied description of el snd countenpary risks that cin be ssaodiated
with bomowings and other finandng ransactions, pleate tee Note 7,
principal Rids
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0] Repurchase Agraements Cortan Funds may engage in repurchass
agreements Unckr the tems of 3 Gypical repurdhase agreement

2 Fund purchases an underhying debit obiigation (ool aseral) asbject o an
obligation of the seler to repurchase, and a Fund to resell, the obligation at
af dgpeed-upon price and time. 0 J0 open MBIy repundiase SFeement
there is no pre-detemmined reporchase date and the agreement can be
terrninated by tie Fand or counterparty 41 any time: The market vitkee of the
ool aterisl must be equal b o excesd The o5 amount of the repurchise
obligatons, indudng Interest Repurchase agreements, induding acaued
intenesl, are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. interest
eamed i recorded & & component of inderest income on e Satements of
Operaiong In pemic of incmeissd demand for oollaterd, 3 Fund msy pay &
tee fior receipt of coll ateral, which may resull in interest expense to the fund

b} Reverse Repurchaze Agresments Certan Funds may enter mto reverse
repurchase Sgreements. In 3 reverse repurchase agreement, & Fund delivers a
sacurty in eochange for cath o 3 finandd Eatitution, the counterparty, with
A simultaneous agreement Lo repunchase the same o substanSaly the same
SeCuri by AU an agreed updn pce and dane. I e Open malurity reverse
repurchase agresment, there is no pre-datemined repurchase date and the
agreement can be terminated by the Fend o counterparty Atamy e

A Fund is enfithed bo reciset prindipal and internest payments, i any. made on
the sequriny delivered o the aeunteparty during the tarm of the agreement
Cash recerwed in exchange for secunties delivered plus aarued interest
payments o be made by 3 Fund to counterpartses are reflected & a Eabdity
on the Statements of Asets amd Lisblites Wlenest payenents made by & Fund
to counteparfes are recorded a5 3 component of Etheredt expense on the
Srasernents of Opesatons. In period of indeated demand Tor tie Secumity,

& Fuind ey fecenst & e fof ude of e Security by the countemparty, whidh
may result in intenest inoome bo a Fund A Fundwill segregate assets
determinied ta be liquid by PIMCO o wall athensise aoeer it obdigations
under reverse repundnace agreements

{c) Sale-Baybacks Certan Funds mayenter into finandng ransactions
refermed 1o 25 "sale-buybads” A sale-bunvbade finandng ransadion consists
of & sbe of 2 security by & Fund 103 fnandal nsBiution, She Countemary,
with & dmultaneous agreement o repurndhase the same of substantally fe
e S0ty at an agresdupon price and date. A Fund is nod entiled 1o
receive prindpal and interest payments, if amy, made on the seaiity sold to
the: copneparty dunng e tem of the agreement. The ajeedpon
proceeds for sequnities to be repurdhased by a Fund ane refledied a5 a liablity
on ghe Staements of Asets dnd Labdines. A Fundwall Pecogride net indome
represenied by the proe diferential bebween the pnoe eecenvied for the
ransterred sequrity and the agreed-upon repurchase price This is commonly
federred 1o & the "price drop’. A price drop comsitts ol () the horegone infetest
and inflationany income adusments, if any. & Fund would have othensise
recetved had she seouity not been sofd and (i) the negotiated finandng tems
bertweeery & Fund and countemanty. Foregone interest and inflafionary incme
adustments, of amy, are reoonded a5 componenis of interest ingome on the
Stanemnents of Operations. Interest paymnents baded upon negotased finangng
terms made by a Fund to counterparties. are recorded 3% 3 component of
FiliEresl expente on the Stmements of Operabond. b penod of indregsed
demand for the sequrity, 3 Fund may recefve afee for use of the sequrnity by
the counderparty, which may result in interest income to 2 Fund. A Fund will
segregate assets deterrmined 1o be Bquid by FINKCD or will othensise cover its
cbligations under sale-bunybade ransacions

{d) Shart Sabes Certain Funds may enter into short sales ransactions. Shon
S dne transacion s inwhich thee Fund Sel5 . security BT ILmay pol cwn
A Frund rruay make short Sales of secunbes to §) offsel potential dednes in
hong posdtions in simila seauities, () W ingease the Sedbility of te Fund,
(i) for imees tmenil fefurn, (v} 2 pan of a fisk arbitrage strategy. and {) 25
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part of jts. cverall portiolio management strategies imvolving the use of
derivative insinamenis. When 4 Fund engages in a short sale, it may borrow
thee sty sold shaort and deliver it to the counterparty. The Fund will
ondinarily have to pay a fee or premium 10 borrow a sequrity and be cbligated
b Pesry B Bedier of the Security ary cdvadend of Rileresl That aodues on the
sequity during e period of the lpan Seourities sold in shoit sale ransadions
aned the dividend o interest payablic on such securities, it any, are nefledied a3
paryade for Short sabes on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites. “hot sales
enpose e Fund to the risk that i will Be reguired to cover (15 shoet positon
at a S when the seounity or ather asset has apprediated in value, Sus
resultng in Bos5es 1 the Fand A short sile 5 ~against the box™ if

thee Fund Bodds in its portiasa o has e night i aogure B Uity wld
short, or securifies identical to the sequrity sofd short, at no addifionad cost

A Furd wall B subect 1o sdBmonl Fscs o e extend hal it engages in shon
sbes thad ane Aol " agaenst the b = A Funds e ona shorn sale aould
theoretically be unfimited in cases where the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, 1o dase outity short position

6 FANANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Sotkowsarn o el e nes, Con b affonma e on howe andwhy ghe Funds use
finandal dervative insruments and how finandal detivative insumenis
aftfect the Funds' finand al posifon, results of operations and cash flows. The
Ication and far value amounts of e indtruments oo $he Slatements of
Assets and Liakilides snd the net realized gain (oss) and net change in
urrealized appredation {depredation) on the Statemants of Operations, eadth
categorized by type of finandal derivative contract and related sk exposure,
e induded in a tabde i e Notes 1o Schedele of Imements. The financa
derivative instruments cutstanding a5 of period end and the amounts of net
reabzed gain (oss) and net change in unnesined Jppded aton (deprecation)
on fininda derieatied indtruenenty duding the period a4 disdcied in the
kotes to Sduedule of Ivvestments, serve as indicators of the volume of
fnandal dervvative activity for the Funds

{n} Fervenrd Foreign Comency Contracts Certan Funds oy engage m
forward foreign cumenicy conEracis in connection with setfing planned
purchases or sales of securiies, to hedge the ourency exposure assodated
with some of Al of 3 Fund’ securities o &5 part of an irestiment stralegy. A
fionward doregn curreny contract fs an agreement bebween o parties 1o by
anvd sell & ernency at a set price on a future dane The market value of a
forward Soreign cumency confract Sucheates with dranges in foreign aorrency
enchamae ranes: Farwand foreign oumendy coniacts are marked 1o markel
daity, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund a5 an unredized gain oo
lorss. Realized gains o bosses ane equal to the diference between the value of
thes coniract At th e 1w s opened Jnd the value 1 e tims it was dosed
and are reqorded upon delivery or receipt of the ouerency. These contracts
may imvolve markel dsk in entess of the unceaized gain or loss reflected on
i Seatements of Astets and Liabilites in addition, & Fund uld be expoded
10 risk if e counterpanies ae unable 1 meet the temmes of the contracts or if
the vahee of the amency changes unfaiorably 1o the kmdional ammengy, To
mratigane such rigk, cath of seauities may be exhunged & oollatersl puraant
iy the benrns. of the underhing coniracts

Certain Funck having a hedged Class may also enber o fonwand forsign
Uy condracts designed bo offset e effect of hedging at the Fund level in
oficder 1o beiee the hedged Class wath o0 expdrne 10 oumencies ofver than the
functional cumency. There can be no guarantes that these Class spedfic
forward foreign qumency confracts will be successhul

i) Fatwres Comtracts CeTain Funck may ener inl fulares confracs. &
funres coniract 5 an peement 10 buy of sell 3 se0sntyor ofher a8 for 2
setprice on 3 future date and are traded on exchanges. A fund may use
Ul QONIFRCES 00 MAnage i1 exposure B The Seoarntes makets of 1
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mdremenls in inbenest rates and currency values. The pimany risks ssodated
wiith the use of futunes coniracs are the impertect cormelation betwesn he
change in market value of te securities hedd by 3 Fand and the prices of
fusures contracts and e possibility of an Miquid market Futures contracs
ate vilued based upon ther qaabed dady serament prices. Upon enring
imbo a futures condract, a Fund is reguined 10 deposit with iits fubares beoker an
amcuntod cash, 5. Government and Agendy Obligations, of sdect sovreign
dedit, in accondance with the inilsal margin requirements of thie beroker of
exchange Fubwes conmacts ane marked oo marke? dally and based on sich
mdrements in the price of the contracts, an appropdate payable or receivable
for the change invatue may be pomed of collecned by the Fund ("Futisees
Vagiation Margin™) Funres Vanaton Marging, i amy. are dodosed withn
cenirally deared finandal desivative instruments on the Statements of Assets
and Liaalties. GHEnS OF [obes ane Fecogried butnot conridined nesliped unal
st cOniFaCTs expure of dodte Fubures contract sl B vaning degress,
risk of boss in eecess of the Fubares Vanation Margin induded within
exchangs traded of centrally deared finandal derivaltive instruments on The
“natements of Asets and Liabdlifies.

{c) Optioas Comtracts Certain Funds maywrite of purchase options to
Ehance feElum s o § I|-_-|_'l_]-f.-_'rn:w:.:.:nl._;I pmition of futune investment Certan
Futki sy werine Call and put options o decuriBes and finanoal detvative
Irvstruments they own of inwiich ey may vest. Witng put options tends
lomndexie a Fund's eposure to the underbing instrument. Writing call
opfions tends 1o deease 3 Fund’s exposisne to te underhing indmament
When 3 Fund writes 4 call of pul @n aeunt equal 1o e premium redsned is
recorded and subsequently marked to markel to refect the aement value of
ke iy written. These amoun s are induded on the Statements of Auses
and labwines. Presiaicnd recereed from '\.\Tll,illlg ophonl wlech expire bie
treated & reakized gains. Premisms received from writing options which are
emefcised of dored Se added 1o the proceeds of offiel against smdaunts paid
on the underyding fitures, swap, security of Cuency Tansaction 40 detemne
the realized gain of bss. Certain ophbons may be weitlen with premian to be
determinied on & futwre date. The premsums for these options ane based upan
el woll gty pararmeters af specifed temrs. A Fund & 3 weiter of an
Qpaan has n contrd over whither the ',|Mv'-:|lr‘|5|rr:‘:|u'nfﬁ‘. gy b sold
("cal "} or purchased ("pait ™) and &s a reustt bears the market risk of an
wnlyaratie changt in the phce of the intiument wdshing e wallen
opdon. Thene is the risk a Fund may not be able to enterinto a dosing
transaction because of an iliguid markes

Cortin Funds miy 30 puechise put and Cill options. Punchasing call opaoi
tenadts 1o mwiredse § Fund's exposure bo the underying sntmument. Furchasing
put opsdons tends fo deqease a Fund's exposare 1o the underking insrument
A Fund pags 3 presreumywhich is nduded a5 an et on the Statements of
Assats and Liatalses and satsequenty madeed to market 1o reflec the
current value of the option. Fremiums ped for purchasing options which
eapire are freated a5 realiped hosses. Cortain opfion: may be purchased with
premiyems 1o be determined on a fisture date The premiume for these oplions
are based wpon imgdied volaslitg parameters al spedfied seems. The risk
assodated with purdhasing put and call opons is Brited to the premium
pad. Premiums paed Tor punchadansg opSon s which are ensraiied of dosed ane
added to e amounts paid o offset against the proceeds on the underlying
Irrvestment Iransaction 1o determine te redized gain of |oes when the
undhting ransacion i ewduted

Credit Default Swaptioses Certan Funds maywite of puichase ol defadt
swaptions to hedge exposure to the gedit risk of an investment without
riaking 4 comimisment 1o the uhderking insnament A credi defill saption
i an cgrtion 10 26l or buy credil probdion 10 3 speaBe refenence by enteing
into a pre-defined swvap agreement by some specified date in the fue

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Fereign Cormency Optiens Certain Funds may write o purchase foreign
CUETENCY Optaons 00 be used a5 3 short of ng hedge aganst porsible
vanafon in foreign eachange rates of to gain exposure 10 foreign cumences

Inflstion-Capped Optieas Cortain Fund may waite or punchase inflation
capped options to enhance retums of for hedging opporiunities. The purpdse
of purcharsing inflation-capped options is 1o protect a Rand fom inflation
efdriion Fhowe & Ceran e on 3 geven notional exposure. A flood can be
wsed bo give dowrsitde probection $o imeestments in inflaBon-firked products

Interest Rate-Capped Opliene Certain Funds may wiite of purchase intenest
rate-Capped optons b enhance reburmns of for hiedging oppar unities. The
purpose of purchasing intefest rate-capped opgions s i prosect a Fund from
flosatineg rane fisk above 3 CerTER rate on 4 gven notonal expedae A focr
can be used bo give downsade prodection bo imeestments in interest rate linked
prodicts

Intecest Rute Swaptiona Certan Funds maywrite o pardhase interest rate
raptions whith are opsons 10 enter ito & pre-defined swap agreement of
1 shirten, extend, cancel of ofeane Mty 3 SENHMG DA MSEmEL
bry somee spedified date in the future. The writer of the swap$on becomes the
COpan BEr Ty 10 thee: s i the Birver #odtes. The inerest fale dwaplion
agreernen il specty wheghes he buyer of the Swaplion will be § Sedrite
regefver of & fimedrate payer upon exercse

Dptions on Exchange-Tiaded Futeres Coatracts Cottan Funch maywiite o
purchiade cpos on exdhange-traded futures contracts (" Futures Oplon ™) i
hedge an exdsting position or fulure imeestment, for speoulative purposes or to
e expbune 10 muaskel mowsments. A Futunes Cpion 15 an oplicn
Contract inwhich the undedying intrument it 3 sngle fulures omiract

Dptions on Secwrities CirLan Funds may winle of pundhase oplioes
sequnifes 1o enhance retums or i hedge an existing podifion or future
InvESITERL AR OpI0A 0N & STy e 2 spedBied seunty o the wndilying
instrument for tee opion contrad

{d) Swap Agreemente Certain Fundt may invest in swvap agreements Swap
sgreements are balaserally negotiated sgreernents between a Fund and 3

QO MEFT Ty 10 enchisne oF SeuD vestment Cash Bows, viets, Toreign
ourences of marked-linked retums at spedfied, fuhee intenals. Seap
FFEETHnE My be privately negatiated in e OTC marked of may be deaned
thraugh & thind party, known a% 4 entral counterpanty of dirivatives deaning
organizxtion entraly deared swape™) A Fund may enber it asel, Tedt
detault, cross-cumency, inberest rate, total retum, vanance and olber fonmre of
SNAD ATERMENLs [0 Manage it exposure (o gedin Qiemency, interest rate,
comredity, equaty 3nd inflagon sk i connecion with Bese agreements,
seamities or cxsh may be idenffied a5 collateral or margn dn accordance with
the DiTrs of Bhe fespeClive Dwdp agresments b provide Jidens of value and
recoirse in the event of default or bankmupiognsolvency

Centrally deared swiaps e marked to market dally based upon valzations a8
chetearrined Srom the underhying oontract o in socoedance with the
Fequiremnents of the Ceniral counierpaty of devatret dearing ofganization
Chiamges in marbel value, if any, are reflected a5 .2 component of net dhangs
in unealized 3ppreda ton (depredation) on the Salements of Opérations.
Duaily changes in walsabon of enirally dedred swaps ("Swap Vanation
kargn®), if any, are dsdosedwithin cenbrally deared nandid denvative
Instruments oft e Staternents of Assets and Lisbilides OTC swap payments
recerved o paid &t the Degnning of the measurement perlod are induded on
the Statenents of Assers and Labilines and repeetent prermiomes pad of
received upon entering into the svap ageement 1o compensate for
chiflsrenci betwesn the stated teme of the Swap Jgreement and prevaling
market condifions (gredt spreads, oumency exchange rales, inberest rates, and
other relewant factorsh. Upfront presmiems recesved (paid) are initially recorded
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as liablities (assets) and subsecuenty marked to market So reflect the aument
walue of the Swap. Thess upront premmiurs s recorded a5 realized gans of
hosses on the Statements of Operations upon termination or maturity of the
vwap. A liquidation payment received or made at the terminasion of the swap
i recorded &% nealiped gan of oS on e Statements of Operations. Nel
peiocc payments received of paid by a Fund are indisded as part of realized
gaing of lostes on the Stasements of Operatons

o pustpeirtest of .lxﬂ'ri‘n_; certan of 3 Fund’s inves imend policies and
restrictions, avap agreements, like ofier derivative insruments, may b=
walued by 3 Fund at market valse, notienal valise of fll exposure valioe I the
cawt of & redit default swap, in appidng certain of the Fund's i iment
podices amd restrictions, the Fundwill valie the medit default avap at its
riothonal value o it full exposure value § 2, the sum of te nodona smount
Tor the contract phus the market walue), but may value the oedit default wwap
at marker wabue for purposes of appdying certan of te Fund's other
irvestment polides and redridions. For exampde, the Fund may value dedil
default svaps atfull eposure value for parposes of the Fund's medit quality
Quiddines (1 army) Decause wch value in genera Bemer refedls the Funds
attual economic exposune during the term of the cedit defa swap
agreement. As 3 et 4 Fund may, a1 Bmes, hive pational exposone 1 an
Assel s (betore meting) That i greater of lesser than the gated limit of
restriction nated in the Fumd's Offering Memorandam In tis comtea, both
the notional amount and the market value may be positive of negatie
depending on whether the Fund is selling or buying protection through the
aredit cdefanlt swap. The manned in which certaen securities of ather
imsfruments are valued by the Fund for pupodes of applying investment
prolicies and restnctions may difler fom the rmanne in whidh thirse

iEve s e vikaed by o ther Bypes of ifne3300. ENSEANG ind0 Svap
agresments invobves, tovanging degrees, elements ofinterest, aedit, marker
and docurentation fisk in extess of the mounts redognided o e
Sratements of Assets and Liabelities. Sudh risks ivove the possibdity that
there wall b o Boued markel dor these agresments, tat the oounterparty t
the agreements may defslt on its cbligation to perform or disagres as to the
eneneng of contracnad temms in te aoreements and thal there may be
uniasratie changes i inlenest rates of the wilues ol the asser o whtadh
the swap is based

A Funds e mum sk of lods. fnom oosnterpaity gredit risk is the discounted
et vabue of the cash fows to be receved Fom e counterparnty over the
contract’s remaining Fe, to the mxent that amount is positve The sk may
I mriragated by handnga master nesing Mrangernent Detwesn 4 Fand snd
the: counterparty s by the poriting of collatera b0 & Furd oo o & Fund's
exposwre (0 e Counteparnty

To the extert a kund has a policy to lmit the nat amoumnt owed 10 or bo be
received from 2 sngle counterparty under edsting svap syeements, sudh
lirrwlaton only Spgiies 10 Counlerpartes 0o OTC weapns and does nol iy o
cenirally deaned syaps where the counterparty is 2 cenfral counferparty or
derivatives dearing ceganization

Credit Delault Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enterinto

credt defaadt swaps on corporate, boan, Sovereign, LS, mumidpal of U5
Treasury issues to provide 3 measure of protecion against defaults of the
imsuers e, to reduce rigk where 3 Fund owns or has exposare to the
referenced obiigation) of to ke an scte 10Ng OfF thort podition with respect
to the likelihood of a partiodar issuers defaut Credt default swap
Agresments invialve one pary making a smeam of payments fefered o as
the biryer of protechion) bo another party (fhe selles of protecion) in exchange
for e eight Do receive 2 spedfied retum in the event that e referenced
enlity, obdagation or index, s spediied in the svap agreement, andengoes 4
cerkain gedit event. & a selfer of protection on medl defaull swap
agresments, & Fund will gemesally negive from e buyes of protecion 3 fed

rate of income throughout the serm of the swap provided that there i no
credl event, A5 the seller, & Fund woukd efectvely add leverage tits
porifolio becaase, in addtion loits botal net assets, the Fund would b=
sibject 1o irvestment exposure on the nofional amount of the swap

i & Fund is 3 seller of protecton and a credin event oonws, a5 defined under
the restrs of Siat paioular swap agreement, 3 Fund will either ) pay 1o the
baryper of prodection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and
take detiyeny of the rederenced otligancn, othver delverstie obdiganons of
undettying securities comprising the refersnced index or §i) pay a net
setement amaont in the form of cash o sequrities equal to the nofiona
amount of the swap bess the recoveny value of the reterended abligation of
underying securities comprising the referenced indesx IF & Fund is 2 bayer of
protecton and & credin event oonar, a5 defired under the temes of fat
paticular weap agreement, 3 Fund will sither {i) recehe from the seller of
prcdecion an amount ecuat 1o the noSonal amount of e seap and deliver
the referanced obligation, other defverable obligations or underying
seamifies comprising the referenced index or (1) receive 3 net sttiement
SOOUNE N e form of Cash o Seounites equal 10 the notionsl amdent of cthe
swip bess thie recoveny value of the referenced obligadion or underking
sblrites comprsing the neferenced index. Recovery values ane estmated by
markel makers considering sithes indusiry standand recossery rabed o entity
spedific fachor and consderations untl 3 credit event ooours. i a edit event
has ooowred Ehe redovery value is determined by a fadlitated anction
wiverebey 3 mirimum number of llowable broker bids, 1ogether with a
apeified valeanon memhod, sre used 1 cakoulane the sentement valig. The
ability bo deftver other obligations may resultin a dheapest-to-deliver opfion
(e baryer ol prodection™ nighl o dhaose B deliverable obligation with the
Dopmredd vilioe Tellowang 4 credil event)

Credit defalt swap agreements on aedt indces invole one party making a
siream of payments bo anodher pary in emchange for the right 0 recehe a
specified retunm en the esent of 3 vanne-dosn, prindpal shortal, interess
shortfall or defaultof Al or part of the referenced entities comprising the
oeditinder A oediindex &5 2 basket of credit instruments o expoeunes
detigned 1o be fepretentative of some puat of the aredit market 45 2 whole
Theese Indbces are made up of reference cedits that are judged by a poll of
dedlers 1o be the modt Bouid entities in the aedl defaull svap markel baved
oo e sechor of the index. Components of the indices may indusde, bul are
it lirrabed o, imeestment orade sequnties, high yeeld secuntes, Jsset-bached
se0ities, smenging markeds, andfor vanous aedi ratings within each secior
Crecit inchoes e whded wsng oredit delaudn ewaps valh SEandaidized tems
Inchading 3 foed speedd and standand manirity dates. An index oredy defil
seiap references all the names in the index, and if there §s a default, the oedt
el i settied bated on That name's weight in The index The composition of
the incices changes pericdically, usually every tix monitte, and for mast
Inddces, each name has an equal weight In the index. A Fund may use aedi
dedault wwaps on aredit indices to hedge 3 portfiolio of aedit defadlt seaps o
borks, which is less expensive than itwiould be 1o buy many cedit default
awapns 1o achieve & Sl eflect Credt defaulll swaprs on indioes ane
insinsments for probecting imeestors owning bonds against default, and
vraders une them i ipeadate on dinges in edit qualing

implied qredin spresds, represented in sbaoine rerms, wiilized in determining
the market vaue of cedit default swvap agreements on corporate, lean
souereign, U5 maniapal of LS Treamny isuwes 34 of period end, if any, are
drsdosedin the Kates 1o Schedube of vestments. They sene a5 an mckoatos
of the cument status of payment/performandce ride and repeesent the likelibood
of Tk of et for the rebsenced entity. The implied aedt spread of 3
paticular reteremoed entity neflects the aost of buying'seling protecion and
may indusde upfront payments required 1o be made o enter into the
syeement Wider oredit spreads represent & deterioration of the referenced
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enlity"s credit soundness and a greater likelbood or risk of defaglt o other
credt event oocuring & defined under the rems of te ageement. For gedt
default awvap agreements on asset-badbed seamities and gedt indices, the
quoted market prices and resulting vahses serve as the indicator of the oument
sEatus of the pymenlperiommane ik ndeasing marker values, in dbsolute
terrns when compared o the potional amount of the swap, reprasent a
detericration of e reherenced snity's aredin soundhess and a greates
likefihgcd of risk of default o ather cradit event occuming 5 defined under
thee teerres of the agpeement

The madmum potental amoant of fulure payments {undisoounbed) that

& Fund a4 2 seller of progection oould be necuined S0 make under a gedit
default svap aoreement equas the notonal amount of the agresment
Netional amaunts of each indvideal aedt default swap agreement
outstanding a5 of period end forwhich a Fund |5 the selles of prateciion are
dischosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of Inesements. Thiese potental amounts
weould be par Bally offeet by ay recovery values of the regpactie referenced
obligations, uptront payments received upon emtering into the agresment, o
el SN B hecebyed feom thi serdement of buy protection credt delaull
Fwap agreements enfersd into by 3 Fund for the same referenced entity or
enlifies

Imizrest Rate S‘qr Agresments Cértain Fynds are sulyedt 10 intefestrate
risk exposure in the nomal course of pursuing her inves iment objecties
Thie value of the fooed rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease itinberes
1aes e To help I|-—_|;ig-_- AL ghis ek 0 d %o mdinian is slility to
generate income at prevailing market rates, 3 Fund may enter into intenest
rae svap agreements. Interest rabe swap agresments involve T exchange
Iy 3 Fumnd with andthver party Tor thelr nespecive oommitment to pay of
peceive intprest on the motiond amount of prindpal Certain fors of inenes
raie Seap agréemen s may indude: (i) intenest rate caps, under which, in
retum for 3 prersum, one paty agrees bo make payments to Se other b0 the
entent Ehan interest rates exceed & pecred rate, of “cap”, (i) interest rate
floors, under whidh, in retum fior 3 premium, one party agrees bo make
payments o e ober to he etent hat intersst rates fall below a spedfied
e, o “Roof”, () indenesl rate collars, under whadn & paty Selis a cap and
purchases a fooror vice versa in an atemgps to protect itself agaimt interest
fte miements exceeding ghven minimurm of maximum keeek, (V) callable
interest rabe Svaps, under whidh the buyer pays an upfront fee in
onndsicheraten Tor ghe night (o early Termenate te Svep Fansacion in whils,
at a0 cost and af 3 peedeterrnined date and time prior bo the maturity date,
() spreadocks, widh abow e mIERel TalE S users 10 [odk in he
Toreedrd difterennial (or spread) beteeen the interest rate Swap rat: and a
spedified berrchmark, or (M) basis swaps, under which hwo pares can
eorhange varable mlerest rates based on citfienent Legments. of money
rarket

Total Aeturn Swap Agreements: Certain Funds may enter into 1023l retumn
wap ageements 1o gan or mitigate exposure Bo the underlying reference
Total relumn Swip Sgreements imiohe cormmatinen b whine nge of mulliple
@sh fows are axchanged bazed on the price of an undirying reference assat
and on a fined or wanabde inberest rate. Tolal refum Sedp agresments may
iFrvehve ComPTRtmEnts 10 pay imderést in eodhange $or & marketinked retum
Qe counierparty pays out the wotal retuen of & spedfic underying reference
asset, which may indude a smgle secunily, a basket of seawities, or an indes,
and in retum receives 3 Sooed or variable rate. A the maturity date, anet cxh
B 15 {-J:l'l'lﬂlx?-’j where e 1008 retam 14 equivdlent to the returm of
unierfying reference asset less a finandng rate, if any. As a revefver, a

Fuand wiould redenve purgments b sed on amy positve 108 fetum andwould
e payments m o the event of 2 negative tatal retum A5 the puper, 3

Fusnd wioidid owe panyTrents on any positive tota rearn, and would recene
perpmients in the sventof anet negatee 1otal retm

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

i b recrrrial Sourse of Business, the Funds jor Acquired Fands, 3 applicable)
trade finandal instnerments and enter into finandal trarsactons where risk of
potendal boss exisis dae 1o such hings & changes in the markel {market risk)
or fadure or inabiity of She other party to 3 transaction 1o perfarm (oredit and
counBerparty k). See below for & detaled description of select peincpal
kL

Fund of Femda To the extent that certain Funds imest substantidly all of their
respective adtets in Acquined Funds, the nidks stsodated with investing in
these Funds will be dosely relaned to the riks assonatedwith te seqrides
and other imestments held by the Acquired Funds The ability of the Funds to
achieve Their respective investment objectives may depend upon he atslity of
the Acguted Funds o achieve theaf reipedive imvement djecias There
can be no assurance that the vestmentobjective of amy Acquired Funid w

b achieved. The NAY of an Acquinng Fand vall Histuale in reponse b
dhanges in the respective MAY of the Acguined Fund inwhich it Fvests

In the poemiad course of business, Aogired Funds frade fnandal inssuments
anvd enter into finandal transacions where ridk of potensial foss exists due o
r,‘.l.px"c;m the murkel imaeket k), of Taiure o inability of the othver party 1o
& tramsacton bo perform {medit and counberpasty iskh

Mariod Risbs A Fund’s ivestments in finandd derivative instruments and
ather hinanda insuenents eguote te Fund 10 vamous o duch a5 bt not
irvikesd b, interest rate, foreign (non-1 5 ) qurmency, eduity and conmmodity
fisks

interest rate sk is the sk that fieed noome sequities and other insruments
P by’ & Fund miny decime in valug Beciuse of an inCredle o interest rales
As, nominal inferest rates ise, the valse of certain fived income seamities held
bry'a Fund i By 0 decreasi. A mormenal innenest rate can be detaibed x
the surn of & redl interest pabe and an opetted inflation rate Intecest rate
dhanges can be sudden and ungredictable. and a Fund may bose money if
Thiese changes are nok antidpated by Fund mansgement A Fund may nof be
abde 10 hedge agaimit changes n milenest rabes of may chosrse not 1o do 0 Tor
oSt of ather rejsons. In addition, any hedges may pot woek 35 intended

Duragon is & meaume used to determine fhe sensitityof 3 seanitys pce
chandges in inbanest ratis that incorportis & seaantys ywild, doupon, find
maturity and call features, among ather charactenisie. Comvesdly is
additional mexiwe wed 1o understand a sewnty™s or Fund's interest rate
sermsitivity that measures the rate of change of deration in response to
changes in inleres) rates. Fosd ingoms seourines with |ongsr duratons end
oy ber o sensitive fo changes. in interest rates, wualy making Hhem more
volatile than seurities with shoeter durations. A wide variety of factors can
G interest Fanes U fise (&g central bk mond Ly polick, infation
ranes, general egonomic anditons, 8ic). Under qunrent ecomomec cond tons
indienesl rales ane rear histodcally bow bewsts. The Funds arrently lace a
hesghibened level of infenest rate nisk, espedally ande the Federa Resens
Beand has ended i1s quanii tative exsing program and has begun, and may
continue, Bo raise intérest rates. To the exdent that the Federal Resene
CONKNUES b ralse interest ranes, thire is &g thar rates aonods te fnandal
Syilerm iy rite. Further, while bond markets have Stescly grown over thi
parst three decades, dealer "market making™ akility hasnot kept pace andin
sorne Carves hat decredied. Given the importance of intermrediary ~marke
mking” in areating 4 mobust and sctive markel, Sosd ncome Seaunlies are
ourenty facimg incresased volatlity and ligquidiry nsks. All of these factors,
oodectively and'or indradually, could cause a Fund 1o lose value, if e Fund
It emousgh value, the Fund oould face indreased Unithodder redemptions
winch could force the Fund to Bgusdate investments # 1 disachan Lageous Eimes
of prices, thereby adversely sffecting the Fund. Also, the Fund may be
Sdvertely aflecied when & Liege Unitholder purchases o pedeens Linge
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amounits of units, whidh can cotur at sy time and may impact the Fund in
the same manner a5 & high volume of redemplion reqeeits Lange Unitholder
transactions may impact the Fund's Rquedty and net asset value Such
tranzactions may o inmease the Fund™s ransacion costs of othersise
g the Fund 1o perlomn ditferenty then ntended Moeoss, The fund is
subgect ko the risk Hrat other Unithodders may make imes ment dedsions
based on the daoices of & large Unitholder

The Fanid my inesl "Jl_'n|1::.u'|'."|r:|'| securies that e scomammically tied 10
Argenting and thuss subjedt bo vanioms risks, sudh as polifical, economic, boa,
market, and ourrency risks Curmently, investments in Angentina are
particdary subject to efeas tram the countrys high inflaticn, econamc
imstabelicy, and polidcal wnrest

A Fund may have significant exposure toissuers in the Unsted Kingdom The
Lnibed Kinigdoen's. dedriacn bo leina Shie Buropean Union iy impact Fund
e, This decaion may cause lkatintd vwolabity in foneign excthan e
markets, lead o wegtness in te exthange rate of the British pousd, result in
& surstained pedod of marke L uncertainty, and dedtakilize some of all of e
other European Unicon member countriss andior the Eurozons

Foreign {non-U 5.) seqmities in this repoet are dlassfied by the country of
incorpocation of 3 hobkdng. In ostain instandes, & sequnity™s coundry of
incorparation mdy be ditherent from its country of economec expodune

IF & Fund srvests ciresciby an Tosiagn {mon-L0 S ) cumrenges of in Sedufite:s that
trade in, and receive revenues in, foreign (non-U0S ) aurendes, of in financal
difhvitive mAuments that provide epodurs to Bagn (Ron-U 5} asmendes,
it will be subject o the risk shat those cumendes will dedine in value relative
b the base qurency of the Fund, ar, in e case of hedging positions, that

the Fund's bate cumencywdl dedine in walue rdatve 1o the cuméncy being
hedged Curmendy rates in forslgn counimies may fuctuate sionricantly over
short perigd of Sme for a number of reasors, induding changes in interest
rates, intervention foe the fadure to imenene) by LS. or foreign govemnments,
cenral banicd of swprangtional entiles wdh &5 the nlemancnal Monelany
Fund, or by the imporsition of asmency controls of other political devebopments
im Bhe United States or abroad . A5 a result. a Fund's investments In foreign
cunrEncy-genoman ated securitles may recice Th Fund's ety

Thoes muarheen vilues, of equites, such a5 oomemon stodcs and preferred seowites
o equily related investments such as fufures and options, have histoncally
fideh i Sl in periddic Cpched i iy deciae due 1o Geerll skt

comd Bons whidh are not spedfically related (o 3 parficular company, such a5
real or pencehed adverse economic concitions, changes in the generd
oulack fior dofporabe edmnings, dhanges in mlenedl of QurTency rabes of
Adverse imeston sentirment generaly. They may also dedine due 1o factors
whoch affedt a partioular indistry of industries, such & labor Shortages of
intresded produchon costs and competithve conditions within an ndustry
[fferent types of equry seauites may resct diferenty 1o thes
developments Equity secmities and equity related investiments generaly have
greater market price volatility than eoed inoome seaurities

The Funds may imvesl in certan s muments thaf relyin some fashion upon
1k Lomdon interbank Offered Rate (UBOR™) LIBOR is & average interes!
rate; determined by the KCE Benchmark Administration, that banks change
o arother for thee se of shom-tenm iy The Linniged If.m-j-;‘nk‘u':. Finandad
Conduct Authority, which regulates LIBOR, has annoenoed plans to phase out
the wse of UBOR by ®eend of 2021 There remains uncertainiy regandng
fusure utiization of LIBOR and the nansne of afy ceplacement rate, and any
posential effects of the ransiton asay from LIBOR on 3 Fund or on centain
Imsrruments in which a Fund imeests ae not known

Credit and Conmterparty Riska A fund will be expoted 1o credit righ ta
parties wath whom it trades and sl also bear the nsk of Settiment delault

A Fured minémi 2 concentrations of credit risk by undentaking transactond
with 2 large rambet of cusaomers and Coun Lepartes o recognized and
repuiabde exchamges, where apglicabde. OTC derivative ransactions are
subject to the risk that a counterparty to the ransaction will not il it
coniractual obligatons b the other party. 4% many of the protections afianded
o ceniirally deared defivative transactions might not be avalable for OTC
deérivative rantactions. For deratives traded on an exchange of thrgugh 4
cenilrdl counberparty, redit sk retides with the credivorthiness of

the Fund's dearing broker, or the dearnghouse itcelf, rasher than 1o a

coumn terparty in an OTC dervate wansaction. Changes in regulaton relating
1o A Fund's use of dervathves and related instrunents could paten by bt
of irmpact the Bund™ Sbdity 1o imvest in dervathees, limit the Fursds sbaling 1o
emmpdoy certain strategies that wie devatives andior adversaly affect the value
of perfomance of dervatiwes and the Fund . A Fund could lose money if the
it of Quaranior of 3 feed income seaqurty, of e counterparty 1o 3
finandal derfvative instruments contract, repurchase ageement of 4 loan of
portficlio Secutitied, is unablie or urwilling S0 mabe Gmey prindpal andior
ingenect payments, of 10 othensse hanor it obigations. Secuwities and
finandal derivative mnsmuments are aubject 1o vandng degrees of aedit sk,
which may be reflecied in aredit ratings

Sirvilar 10 areditrisk, a Fund may be expcded o ontepay sk, of the sk
that an institution of other enfitywith which a Fund has ursetted of open
tracsactions wall defaudt. FIMCO, as the Manager, minmies oounter party
risks b0 the Funds through a number of ways. Friod bo enbering into
rariacions with & new countelpadty, the PINCO Coumeparty Risk
Committes conducts an extenshee dedt review of sudh counterparty and must
oprone the wie Of Sudh Counteparty, Furthemode, puriasnt W the terms of
T uderlang coADiRcL 1o B extent Sat unpaid Seoants ovwed 10 4 Fund
exieed 3 predetemmined tirechold, such counterparty shall acvance milaterdl
W &t Furd it Fonm of crsh o securites equal in valoe to e unpaid
amount owed t0 8 Fund A Fund may invest sudh oollateral in secunities of
other imstruments andwill sypically pay interest 10 the counterparty on the
collateral received. If the unpaid amount dwed to 4 Fund subrequenty
denreases, & Fumd would be eeguared 0o retum o B countepamy Mo a
portion of the Collaterdl previoutly sdvanced PIMCO'S d1tEmits i minimipe
U derpar by risk may, howpever, be ouooesshul

Al transactions i listed seamies ane settiedipaid for upon dethreny zing
pproved counterparties. The rede of defaulf is considersd renimal, a5 delivery
of seaurities sold is only made once a Fund has received payment. Payment i
ke on 3 purdhase onoe the seoanites huve Deen delivered by he
counterparty. The tradke will Tasd il either party Tais to meed it obligagon

8 MASTER METTING ARRAMGEMENTS

Thee Fianels mupy e Gabject 0o varkas netting arangements (T Maste
Agreermnents ") with select counterparties. Master Agresments govem the
termres of Cerlan ransaceons, and e intended 10 reduce Bie countematy sl
Fsodated with relavant ransactions by spedfying qedi protecion
mechanisms and providing standandzation that is intended to imgrove legal
cestanty Each type of Masher Agneemment 9o Cirtaen Bypes of
mrarsactions. Diferent types of ransactons may be traded cut of dfferent
legal entities of afiliates of a pariodar ahganimtion, resulting in the need for
multiple agrésments with 3 single counterparty. AS the batter Agreementy
are spedfc o unigue operations of different soet types, they Mlow 3 Fund o
diose cut and metits botal exposure 1o 3 counterparty in the event of a default
with respect bo all the ransactions govemed under a single hlaster
Agrserrent with 3 counterparty. For Srind sl teporting purpasss the
Statements of Assers and Lisbdkties generally present denivative assets and
liabiities on a gross basks, which reflects the full sk and sxpasunes proe bo
AEtling
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4. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Furd s subyect 1o e

il owineg fees payable ar the following annual rates (stated as a percentage of the average daly net asets of each Fund, or Clans, if

applicable, laken separatel’
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MNotes to Financial Statements

The management, acvisory and administrative fees, if gpplicable, are paid monghly in arrears to FIMCO for providing o arranging for the peovision of advisory,
adminiscragve and thind-party sendces indwding audl, usiodd, musses, pormiodio scopunting rousng begal, ransber agent and printng senvices. The agendy and
distribution fees, if applicable, are paid monthlyin amears to reimibwse Enandadl intermedanies that provide senvices and distriburion relating 1o the units of the
applicable Fund {or Class thereof, a5 applicable). in the case of the PIMCO Bemmoda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PIMCO Bermoda U3 Low Duration Fund, FIMCO,
ot of 5 ManagemEn S, el e 1 coat asioaded vath idwioey and s ingve dervices, O 1% of witich i des grued Ty coner adiminisanatiee expindes n
exchange for this fee, FIMCO will bear the costs of cerain third-party sendces requined by the Funds, induding asdit, qustodial, frustee, portfolio accounting, begal
fransier agpent and printng sendoes. FIMCO, and not Unishobders, would benedt from any price decrease in the costof such third-party services, induding decreases.
feawlting from a0 indedse innet absels i addtion, with respedt 1o Funds that are abged b0 an admintirative fee, PIMCO gererally makes a profit on 4ach a fee

A5 nofed in the table sbove, cetain Funds and Chasses of Funds are not subject to management, advisory, administrative, agency or distribution fees. PIMCO lapan
L, PRMCO" affiliate in Bapan, is paid a fee from the lapanste ivestment Trusts of other investment vefides that imvest in sy Funds or Classes and a portion of
sapch fet 1t Hhen alocated 1o PINKCO 10 compendate i Fof il sendoes

The Funis (of Classes thereol, g6 applicatie) may Dear other expendes related 1o thes operation that 4re nol covered by the management, adwiony, dministate,
agency of disibutdon fees, indwding butnot limited $o: () taxes and governmental fees; (1) broferage fees and commisgions and other poetfolie fransaction espenses;
Erit ol BT i monsy, .'u'_l:,-_ﬁ.-.l._; ihERER] expedrie: (v Axiradidnuey fxfe e, |nJ|,:'.|||-‘_: ot ol i -_j.:lil,':f. wadd i i cation expenied; Bd (v) My dapendes
dted of dlocatde 1o & wpedhic Class of umits, &5 applicable. FIMCO hi pid, of wall pay, the organizational expendes piasdated with PIMCO Shert-Term Stasedy’s
nibal sat-up

FIMKCO andior its. affiliiates will initialy advance to PINKCO Short-Term Sbrateqy all costs and expenses, induding legal expenses, inoured in connection with e initi
pukblic l_-1T-_n.':; of the JFY and LD Clasees of Urats of the Funed in Lipan ("0ffering Expenies™). A1 of near the commencement of the Fund's operations, the Fursd wil
reirmise PIMCD sdior itd affiutes for the Offer g Exgmnies ddvandid and will smorgie Sich l.}l.'Hrrn; Expo s cot (e first fiscal yedr o 1S Copeer B8icaS. HiGwari,
FINKCO has agreed towaive reimbursement of the Offering Expenses to the extant that such expenses exceed 0 05% per annum: of the wm of the JFY and LSD
Clarsses’ Wet Acset Value {the =Offering Experse Umitation™). Amy Offering Expenses waived due to the Offering Expense limitation may be recouped by FIMCO andior
ity affikates for 4 pericd not eeceeding Sve years from the comeencerment of the Fund™s aperstions; provided, the amount recouped by FIMCO andfor its affikates shall
nod imteed 0.05% per annum ol the sum of the 3FY and USD Classes” NAY. I either of the JFY and LBD Classes of Units of S Fund is terminated paice 5o the full
reimbyrsement of dl Orffering Expenses, FIMCO anddor its affiliates shal not seek reimbursement of any remaining nrelmbursed amounts om thal Class
Furthermicee, if both of the 1P and USDr Classes of Units of the Fund are terminated price 30 he full reimbarsement of ol Orffering Expenses, FIMCO anddor its affliates
shl not Seek resmbrsament of ay remaning un ramibirssd amoonts from the Fursd. PIMCO has pasd o wall pay, Jll oosls aod expensss, mdyding begal expenses,
ricurmed in conrechon with e mehal pubhc oferng of the AUD Class of Units of the Fund in Japan, A% of May 30, 20019, thene wiee no recoverstie Oflerng Exgpeies
bo PINICD andfor it affliates

PINKCE has appointed SMEBC Nitioo Seaurifies Inc. 1o act & Agent Compary and Distibutor for the dstibution and senadng of units of the PINCO Euro Total Retum
Fuafd, PIMCON Reall Retams Fund, and the IPY and VST Clasies of PIMCO Shoft-Term Steatedgy 10 fetad imvestoes in Japan . PIMCO has sppnented SMBC Nikko taopine
Inc 10 act a Agent Company for senviding of units of AUD Class of PIMCO Short-Term Srategy. Mo agent companies hawe been appomnted for any of the other Funds

FIMKCC) has pad the organizationdl expenses assodated with the areation of the Trust If further Funds ane launched, such oosts deectly attributable to the reélevant
Fiand may e home by the relevant Fund
10. RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

The Imvestment AlMser 15 3 related party o the Funck and (5 & mapon ty-owned subsbdany of Afang Asset Management AG. Fees patd w0 the related party, if any, are
desdgsed in Mote 9, and acoued related padty fee amounts, i any, are dadosed on the Statements of Assats and Liabilises

Alkanz Asset Management AG, a relaled party of the Tnust, cwned 0 064% of the net assats of the FIMCO Short-Term Sirategy as of May 31, 2009

Certain Fuends ane permitted bo purchase or sell seawities from or 1o ertan related affiliated fundk under spedfied conditions outlined in procedures. adopfied by the
Imvestment Adviser. The procedires hawe been designed 10 ensure that any purchase of sale of sedurities by  fund from or ko another fund that is or could be
contidered an affilate by virtie of having a common adviser (o affiliated imeshment sdvisers), is effected at the cument market price. During the period ended May
21, 2009, the Fandis) below -n-_].n-_'p--‘iw punchases snd salet of secunbies among siMlianesd Tunds (Smounis n Eousand)

Fund Purfme ol
I Bewrresda Faresgn Lovw Doreoon Fend H o3 115
PPN Bawrrmad UL 5 Lowiy Dt Fund a Pl
FIME Bsegprng Mkt Bond Fundl 148 oEs L ]
PIMDD Boro Toes! Retum Ford E]] om
FIMED Fisal Aetues Fund a 08
AL ShorrTerm Sarnsegy b4 TEAs

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMMIFICATIONS

Uiner the Trust's organizational doasments, certain parties (induding fe Trustes and PMIMOO) are indermnified against certam lisbilites that may aise out of
perfarmanie of teir duties 1o the Fundt Additionally, in the nomal course of business, the Fundt enber into confracs that contain 3 variety of indemnification dauses
The: Funds” maximum exposwe under these amangements is wnbnown a5 this would irvobve future daims that may be made against the Funds that have not yet
cooumed. However, the Funds have nothad paor daims o losses pursoant to these contraces

Brvenil Fapord | My 50, 2@ W)

269/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to Financial Statements

12, UMITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2020
501,698 52,858,901
71,499 7,533,135
430,199 45,325,767
1,830,922.977
623,411.872
671,835.000
106.12 11,181
9,902
100.86 7,817
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2020
941,473,871.63 991 9,369
850,000
58,608.02
850,000
250,000

2016 338,413,044
2017 308,558,334
2018 302,158,349
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
Managing Member
agreement

Ooooooooooooooooooad

150,000

150,000
1,250,000

limited liability company

2020

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Joshua Anderson

Andrew Balls

Jamil Baz

Ryan P. Blute

Philippe Bodereau

Andrew Bosomworth

David L. Braun

Geraldine Brigliadori Walsh

Erin Browne

Elizabeth Cantrill
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Rick Chan

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Joshua Davis

Craig A. Dawson

Pramol Dhawan

Chris Dialynas

Dragesic, Anna

Jennifer E. Durham

Mohsen Fahmi

Feigley, Patrick

Joachim Fels

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

Alessandro Gandolfi

Russell Gannaway

Stuart T. Graham

Granger, Nicolas

L
Gubner, Adam L.

(Sachin Gupta)

(Gregory W. Hall)

Brent R. Harris

Jonathan L. Horne

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

Andrew R. Jessop

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

(Alec Kersman)

Mark R. Kiesel

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

Kimberley G. Korinke

Ryan Korinke

Richard R. LeBrun
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Dirk Manelski

Sudi N. Mariappa

(Rene Martel)

Scott A. Mather

Ravi K. Mattu

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

Mohit Mittal

Eric J. Mogelof

Alfred T. Murata

John W. Murrary

Lorenzo Pagani

Stephen A. Rodosky

(Emmanuel Roman)

Jerome M. Schneider

Marc P. Seidner

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Greg E. Sharenow

Adam Shukovsky

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Jason R. Steiner

Christian Stracke

Peter G. Strelow

John J. Studzinski

Sung Hee Suh

Eric M. Sutherland

(Eve Tournier)

Qi Wang

Weinstein, Jamie

Whitten, Candice Stack

Frank Witt

276/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
ooooodoooiooooooodod

Robert 0. Young
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1940

BMA

BMA

BMA

BMA
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2020 316
756,134,525,314

110 432,282,969,481
21 11,826,904,761
12 23,182,295,631
65 210,527,754,578
9 9,743,068,747
31 9,034,921,807
34 20,279,288,243
13 23,333,250,384
1 267,250,248
5 2,334,060,291
15 13,322,761,143
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2020 31
105.36
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
2(c) 422,556,446 44,520,547 429,220,995 45,222,724
2(d),4 30,623,395 3,226,481 32,459,901 3,419,975
2(e) 698,851,736 73,631,019 552,952,116 58,259,035
2(e) 282,546,439 29,769,093 254,081,349 26,770,011
36,373,824 3,832,346 32,694,941 3,444,739
2(e) 25,219,844 2,657,163 25,166,878 2,651,582
2(j).8(e) 19,239,181 2,027,040 15,657,169 1,649,639
7 13,010,339 1,370,769 7,382,210 777,790
60,915,714 6,418,080 43,846,429 4,619,660
1,589,336,918 167,452,538  1,393,461,988 146,815,155
2019 12 31
325,786,180 2018 12 31
292,930,004 2(F).6 144,839,482 15,260,288 146,862,606 15,473,444
2(i),10 209,441,754 22,066,783 -
2(j).8(e) 669,472,591 70,535,632 460,075,450 48,473,549
2(h) 30,865,176 3,251,955 -
2(9) 24,413,103 2,572,165 -
2(b) 16,086,963 1,694,922 13,463,668 1,418,532
9 33,253,757 3,503,616 29,821,480 3,141,991
1,128,372,826 118,885,361 650,223,204 68,507,517
2,717,709,744 286,337,809  2,043,685,192 215,322,672
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153,400

850,000
150,000
2019 12 31
2018 12 31 45,705
2019 12 31
2018 12 31 143,858

2(i),10

7
8
5
)
7

2(r),8(e)

2(r).8(e)
2(i),10

8

2(i),10

8(a)
2(0)
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2019

2018

409,454,573 43,140,134 433,350,570 45,657,816
228,000,000 24,022,080 212,000,000 22,336,320
208,752,447 21,994,158 155,868,165 16,422,270
124,895,219 13,158,960 102,698,345 10,820,298

30,057,351 3,166,843 -
21,460,619 2,261,091 20,488,078 2,158,624
19,239,181 2,027,040 15,657,169 1,649,639
11,190,145 1,178,994 8,230,351 867,150

1,053,049,535 110,949,299 048,292,678 99,912,117
669,472,591 70,535,632 460,075,450 48,473,549
220,717,637 23,254,810 -
164,382,884 17,319,381 130,404,396 13,739,407

- 42,013,112 4,426,501

3,022,510 318,452 1,550,631 163,374
1,057,595,622 111,428,275 634,043,580 66,802,833
2,110,645,157 222,377,574  1,582,336,267 166,714,949
(683,902,349)  (72,055,951)  (792,957,184) (83,545,969)
1,288,040,853 135,707,984  1,267,204,122 133,512,626
28,952,832 3,050,470 23,722,086 2,499,359
32,591,945 3,433,887 28,576,118 3,010,780
(58,618,694)  (6,176,066)  (65,196,217)  (6,869,073)
607,064,587 63,960,325 461,348,925 48,607,723
2,717,709,744 286,337,809  2,043,685,192 215,322,672
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018

2(e) 3,801,610,877 400,537,722 3,699,085,263 389,735,623
2(e) 1,011,008,189 106,519,823 897,932,904 94,606,211
2(e) 1,152,533,169 121,430,895 1,121,459,653 118,156,989
2(e) 380,555,089 40,095,284 400,632,761 42,210,668
2(e) 23,903,886 2,518,513 21,116,690 2,224,854
6,369,611,210 671,102,237 6,140,227 ,271 646,934,345
8 2,125,025,461 223,892,683 1,921,490,575 202,448,247
5 857,070,964 90,300,997 814,837,039 85,851,230
2(s) 637,010,892 67,115,468 625,372,554 65,889,252
214,712,229 22,622,080 246,110,361 25,930,188
6,10 159,176,036 16,770,787 152,147,106 16,030,219
2(n) 120,596,262 12,706,022 116,090,003 12,231,243
50,264,299 5,295,847 54,856,322 5,779,662
27,702,379 2,918,723 61,327,125 6,461,426
4,191,558,522 441,622,606 3,992,231,085 420,621,467
2,178,052,688 229,479,631 2,147,996,186 226,312,878
57,347,069 6,042,087 24,051,878 2,534,106

2(i),
10 (10,703,929) (1,127,766) (2,267,772) (238,932)
2(b) (1,278,635) (134,717) (1,873,076) (197,347)
2,223,417,193 234,259,235 2,167,907,216 228,410,704
9 98,821,295 10,411,812 105,979,276 11,165,977
2,124,595,898 223,847,424 2,061,927,940 217,244,728
2(0) 6,577,523 693,008 (19,376,611) (2,041,520)
2,131,173,421 224,540,432 2,042,551 ,329 215,203,208
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850,000 (721,216,276) (75,987,347) 150,000 1,290, 399,100 135,956,449 45,705 28,660,677 3,019,689
(17,852,184) (1,880,906) (3.319,784) (349,772) (959,921) (101,137)
850,000 (739,068, 460) (77,868,253) 150,000 1,287,079,316 135,606,677 45,705 27,700,756 2,918,552
1,523,328,377 160,497,878 450,997,001 47,517,044 87,602,562 9,229,806
(1,595,853,856)  (168,139,162) (470,872,195) (49,611,094) (91,581,232)  (9,648,999)
18,636,755 1,963,569
850,000 (792,957,184) (83,545, 969) 150,000 1,267,204,122 133,512,626 45,705 23,722,086 2,499,359
1,556,133,972 163,954,275 472,136,883 49,744,342 96,325,043 10,148,807
(1,459,197,453)  (153,741,044) (451,300,152) (47,548,984) (91,397,156)  (9,629,604)
1,444,428 152,185
10,673,888 1,124,601 302,859 31,909
850,000 (683,902,349) (72,055,951) 150,000 1,288,040,853 135,707,984 48,876 28,952,832 3,050,470
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2019 2018 12 31

122,972 30,984,305 3,264,506 (45,819, 606) (4,827,554) 583,008,200 61,425,744
(22,131,889) (2.331,816)
122,972 30,984,305 3,264,506 (45,819, 606) (4,827,554) 560,876,311 59,003,928
2,061,927,940 217,244,728
(2,158,307,283) (227,399, 255)
16,228,568 1,709,842 16,228,568 1,709,842

(18,636,755) (1,963,569)
(19,376,611) (2,041,520) (19,376,611) (2,041,520)
143,858 28,576,118 3,010,780 (65,196,217) (6.869,073) 461,348,925 48,607,723
2,124,595,898 223,847,424
(2,001,894,761) (210,919,632)
1,444,428 152,185
14,992,574 1,579,618 14,992,574 1,579,618

(10,976,747) (1,156,510)
6,577,523 693,008 6,577,523 693,008
153,400 32,591,945 3,433,887 (58,618,694) (6.176,066) 607,064,587 63,960,325
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
2,124,595,898 223,847,424 2,061,927,940 217,244,728
14,579,559 1,536,102 15,754,902 1,659,936
65,882,645 6,941,395 45,224,698 4,764,874
10,703,929 1,127,766 2,267,772 238,932
1,278,635 134,717 1,873,076 197,347
59,310 6,249 7,685,839 809,780
(99,913) (10,527) 173,827 18,314
28,852,954 3,039,947
14,132,707 1,489,022 4,011,361 422,637
(11,771,410) (1,240,236) (19,366,964) (2,040,503)
(133,320, 387) (14,046,636) (104,148,954) (10,973,134)
(10,822,134) (1,140,220) (2,258,750) (237,982)
(168,718,254) (17,776,155) 59,695,625 6,289,531
(28,864,869) (3,041,203) 8,957,270 943,738
175,692,797 18,510,993 116,569,743 12,281,788
3,895,278 410,406 (5,043,030) (531,334)
2,086,076,745 219,789,046 2,193,324 355 231,088,654
(51,884,452) (5,466,546)
(30,357,371) (3,198,453) (30,106,393) (3,172,010)
(4,017,970) (423,333) (15,013,633) (1,581,836)
(86,259,793) (9,088,332) (45,120,026) (4,753,846)
2,239,000,000 235,901,040 2,211,000,000 232,950,960
(2,223,000,000)  (234,215,280)  (2,203,000,000)  (232,108,080)
(2,001,894,761)  (210,919,632)  (2,158,307,283)  (227,399,255)
1,444,428 152,185
(28,608,691) (3,014,212)
(2,013,059,024) _ (212,095,899) _ (2,150,307,283) _ (226,556,375)
6,577,523 693,008 (19,376,611) (2,041,520)
(6,664,549) (702,177) (21,479,565) (2,263,087)
429,220,995 45,222,724 450,700,560 47,485,811
422,556,446 44,520,547 429,220,995 45,222,724
233,931,730 24,647,047
(274,626,538) (28,934,652)
40,694,808 4,287,605
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2019 2018 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2019 12 31 48,876
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PI LLC
FINRA
2019 2018 12 31

0.00190 0.00181
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PIMCO

FINMA

1ASB IFRS

IFRS

2020 24
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PIMCO

PIMCO

AAM LP

2019 2018 12 31 179.1 180.9
2019 12 31
27 2018 12 31
620

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO
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PIMCO PIMCO
30

2019 2018 12 31

IFRS
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IAS 19

2019 IFRS 16 IFRS 16
IAS 17 IAS 17
IFRIC IFRIC
IFRS 16
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2019
2.59
274.6
IFRS 16
1AS 17 IFRIC IFRS
16
2018 12 31 206,586,026
2019 12 31 (96,826)
106,291,903
90,806
2019 (38,245,371)
2019 274,626,538
2018 IFRS 15
22.1
IFRS 15
IFRS 15 2018 12 31
2018 IAS 39 IFRS
1AS 39
IFRS

FVOCI FVTPL

295/386



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IFRS

2019 2018 12 31 30.6 32.5

2019 2018
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2019 2018
2019 2018 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
P1 LLC

Pl LLC 2019 12 31 2018 12 31

51.4 30.6
PIMCO

PIMCO
P1 LLC 2019 12 31 2018 12 31

2.0 3.5
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2019

PIMCO

2018

11.1

90
PIMCO

2.3

2019 12 31

2018
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( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
(7.685,840) (7.685,840)

(35,360,085) (9,864,613) (45,224,698)
62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606
19,601,796 12,515,207 32,117,003

(358,633) (358,633)
(25,869,200) (7,912,294) (33,781,494)
55,556,965 88,261,081 1,021,436 144,839,482
2018 12 31 33.8 45.2
AAM LP
2019
36.1 50.4
AAM LP PIMCO
PIMCO
2019 2018 12 31
LIBOR 0.2
AAM LP PIMCO 2019 2018
AAM LP
2018 12 31 PIMCO
228.0 212.0
2019 2018 3.7
724.1
2019 2018 12 31
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2019 2018 12 31
8.6
PDG
PDG
PIMCO
2019
PDG PDG 40.3
PDG 2019 PDG
30.8
2019 12 31 9.8
PDG 10.3 2018 9.8
AAM LP 2020 11 600.0
LIBOR 20 2019 12 31
2019
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
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AAM LP EDCP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2019 2018
12 31 153,400 143,858
48,876
OPAD
2019 2018
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2019 2018
14,519 15,528
3.84 3.84
17.9 21.0
13.2 11.8
2.4 2.5
2019
2018
( )
2017 12 31 122,972 122,972 14,486
49,595 49,595 15,528
19,084 19,084)
19,084) 19,084) 23,594
9,625) 9,625) 14,954
2018 12 31 143,858 143,858 13,606
39,751 39,751 14,519
23,492 23,492)
23,492) 23,492) 16,178
6,717) 6,717) 12,618
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 11,319 16,587
2.87
14,622 2019
15,487 2018 2019 23,492
2019 29
3,171
2019 12 31 48,445
431 AAM LLC
2018 19,084

2018
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2019 2018 12 31
14.6 15.8
2019 12 31 2024
12 31
20.1
PIMCO
2019 2018 12 31
13 12
LTIP
2019
2018 12 31 LTIP 50.5
52.6 LTIP
2019 2018 12 31 LTIP 111.1
106.4
AAM LP PIMCO
401
100
21
2019 2018 12 31
15.4 13.3
AAM LP
1974 201 301

401

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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688.7 475.7
167
2018
12 31
2019 2018
11,770 6,278
2,022,507 856,534
100,158,160 108,644,006
102,192,437 109,506,818
(3.371,142) (3,527,542)
(3.371,142) (3,527,542)
98,821,295 105,979,276
36.7 39.7
2019
21.4 17.7 2019
61 21
2019 12 31
29,146,041

6,961,811
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136,753
671,976
2,192,653

2019 12 31 38.6
12 31
2020 37,196,686
2021 36,018,999
2022 34,857,028
2023 33,003,033
2024 19,746,963

124,158,997
284,981,706

34,206,718
250,774,988
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13
Pl LLC 1934 15
2019 12 31 Pl LLC 15
2019 12 31 Pl LLC 57.5
250 57.2
2018 12 31 Pl LLC
15 2018 12 31
PI LLC 49.7 3.8
45.9 2018 12 31 Pl LLC
1.14
14
2019 2018 12 31
535.5 178.2
2019 2018
493,340,219 289,027,697
170,996 131,786
15
2019 PIMCO
Gurtin Municipal Bond Management
51.9
27.4

30.9
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Note 2019 2018
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 422,556,446 429,220,995
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d),4 30,623,395 32,459,901
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 698,851,736 552,952,116
Private accounts 2(e) 282,546,439 254,081,349
Prepaid expenses 36,373,824 32,694,941
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 25,219,844 25,166,878
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j),8(e) 19,239,181 15,657,169
Receivables from affiliates 7 13,010,339 7,382,210
Other current assets 60,915,714 43,846,429
Total current assets 1,589,336,918 1,393,461,988
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $325,786,180
and $292,930,004 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively 2(f),6 144,839,482 146,862,606
Right-of-use assets 2(i),10 209,441,754 -
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j),8(e) 669,472,591 460,075,450
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 -
Intangible assets 2(g) 24,413,103 -
Investments in associates 2(b) 16,086,963 13,463,668
Other noncurrent assets 9 33,253,757 29,821,480
Total noncurrent assets 1,128,372,826 650,223,204
Total assets $ 2,717,709,744 2,043,685,192
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 409,454,573 433,350,570
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 228,000,000 212,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 208,752,447 155,868,165
Commissions payable 5 124,895,219 102,698,345
Lease liabilities 2(i),10 30,057,351 -
Payables to &ffiliates 7 21,460,619 20,488,078
Deferred compensation 2(r),8(e) 19,239,181 15,657,169
Other current liabilities 11,190,145 8,230,351
Total current liabilities 1,053,049,535 948,292,678
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r),8(e) 669,472,591 460,075,450
Lease liabilities 2(i),10 220,717,637 -
Other accrued compensation 8 164,382,884 130,404,396
Future lease obligations 2(i),10 - 42,013,112
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,022,510 1,550,631
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,057,595,622 634,043,589
Tota liabilities 2,110,645,157 1,582,336,267
Capital:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (683,902,349) (792,957,184)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,288,040,853 1,267,204,122
Class M members (48,876 unitsissued and outstanding as of December 31,
2019 and 45,705 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2018) 28,952,832 23,722,086
Class M unit option holders (153,400 options issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2019 and 143,858 options issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018) 8(a) 32,591,945 28,576,118
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 2(0) (58,618,694) (65,196,217)
Total capital 607,064,587 461,348,925
Total liabilities and capital $ 2,717,709,744 2,043,685,192

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Revenues: Note 2019 2018
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) 3,801,610,877 3,699,085,263
Private accounts 2(e) 1,011,008,189 897,932,904
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,152,533,169 1,121,459,653
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 380,555,089 400,632,761
Other 2(e) 23,903,886 21,116,690
Total revenues 6,369,611,210 6,140,227,271
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,125,025,461 1,921,490,575
Commissions 5 857,070,964 814,837,039
General and administrative 2(s) 637,010,892 625,372,554
Professional fees 214,712,229 246,110,361
Occupancy and equipment 6,10 159,176,036 152,147,106
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 120,596,262 116,090,003
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 50,264,299 54,856,322
Other 27,702,379 61,327,125
Total expenses 4,191,558,522 3,992,231,085
Operating income 2,178,052,688 2,147,996,186
Other income 57,347,069 24,051,878
Finance costs 2(i),10 (10,703,929) (2,267,772)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,278,635) (1,873,076)
Net income before income taxes 2,223,417,193 2,167,907,216
Income tax expense 9 98,821,295 105,979,276
Net income 2,124,595,898 2,061,927,940
Other comprehensive income/(l0ss):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trans ation adjustments 2(0) 6,577,523 (19,376,611)
Comprehensive income 2,131,173,421 2,042,551,329

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trand aion Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2017 850,000 $ (721,216,276) 150,000 $ 1,290,399,100 45,705 $ 28,660,677 122972 $ 30,984,305 $  (45,819,606) $ 583,008,200
Impact relating to adoption of IFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (17,852,184) (3,319,784) (959,921) - - (22,131,889)
Restated balances at the beginning

of the financial year 850,000 (739,068,460) 150,000 1,287,079,316 45,705 27,700,756 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 560,876,311
Net income 1,523,328,377 450,997,001 87,602,562 - - 2,061,927,940
Distributions (1,595,853,856) (470,872,195) (91,581,232) - - (2,158,307,283)
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 16,228,568 - 16,228,568

Reallocation of basis on vested options 18,636,755 - - (18,636,755) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (19,376,611) (19,376,611)
Balances at December 31, 2018 850,000 (792,957,184) 150,000 1,267,204,122 45,705 23,722,086 143,858 28,576,118 (65,196,217) 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 - - 2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) - - (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 - - - - 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 14,992,574 - 14,992,574

Reallocation of basis on vested options 10,673,888 - 302,859 (10,976,747) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 $ (683,902,349) 150,000 $ 1,288,040,853 48,876 ¢ 28,952,832 153,400 $ 32,591,945 ¢ (58,618,694) $ 607,064,587

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,124,595,898 2,061,927,940
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 14,579,559 15,754,902
Depreciation and amortization 65,882,645 45,224,698
Finance costs 10,703,929 2,267,772
Equity inloss of associates 1,278,635 1,873,076
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 59,310 7,685,839
Unrealized and realized (gain)/loss on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (99,913) 173,827
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 28,852,954 -
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 14,132,707 4,011,361
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,771,410) (19,366,964)
Income taxes paid (133,320,387) (104,148,954)
Interest paid (10,822,134) (2,258,750)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable (168,718,254) 59,695,625
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (28,864,869) 8,957,270
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 175,692,797 116,569,743
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates 3,895,278 (5,043,030)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,086,076,745 2,193,324,355
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (51,884,452) -
Purchases of property and equipment (30,357,371) (30,106,393)
Purchases of investments in associates (4,017,970) (15,013,633)
Net cash used in investing activities (86,259,793) (45,120,026)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 2,239,000,000 2,211,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (2,223,000,000) (2,203,000,000)
Cash distributions paid (2,001,894,761) (2,158,307,283)
Cash contribution received 1,444,428 -
Principal elements of lease payments (28,608,691) -
Net cash used in financing activities (2,013,059,024) (2,150,307,283)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6,577,523 (19,376,611)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6,664,549) (21,479,565)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 429,220,995 450,700,560
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 422,556,446 429,220,995
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Initia recognition of right-of-use assets $ 233,931,730 -
Initial recognition of lease liabilities (274,626,538) -
Derecognition of future lease obligation 40,694,808 -

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2019, 48,876
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financia statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by
PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00190% interest and 0.00181% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUSL P. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branchin Italy.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) Limited (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll servicesto
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Global Services LLC isaholding company, with branchesin the United Kingdom and Hong Kong.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is in the process of registering as an investment advisor
in China

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.

After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 24,
2020.

(b) Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to
determine whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under
the equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in PIMCQO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or
loss primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses
from changesin fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement
asto whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the
Company from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities,
including the power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the
structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only, and key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities
and a narrow and well defined objective.

() Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions,
nonaffiliated money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by
Allianz SE. There was $179.1 million and $180.9 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. As of December 31, 2019, cash equivalents deposited in the cash
pool with Allianz SE totaled $27 thousand, and $620 thousand was deposited in the cash pool at December 31,
2018. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various federally insured banking
ingtitutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federa Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar foreign federal programs), and as a result, there is a
concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading
business model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a
short-to-moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(e) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned
in exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative
services for the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing
costs. The performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are
substantially the same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under
management and recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided
in other periods. As the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of
assets under management, the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the
dependence on unpredictable asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is
generally once these values can be determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company
may also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles.
Such fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually
at the end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and
the fees are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutua Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the
performance obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue
amounts are based on percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the
consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset
values. The constraint is removed once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Revenues related to investment advisory and administration is included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Revenues related to distribution and servicing fees are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in
the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. The impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers was inconsequential. There are no
contract liabilities related to these contracts.

(f) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three
to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the
related leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets relate to amounts acquired in a business combination and consist of customer relationships,
developed technology, and trade name. The fair values of the acquired assets were determined using the multi-
period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost method for the devel oped
technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible assets are amortized over
their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to 3 years, using the straight-line method. Certain
contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible
assets.

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely
than not that a goodwill impairment exists.

(i) Leases

As explained in note 3, the Company has changed its accounting policy where the company is the lessee. Our
leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. For the year ending December
31, 2018, these leases were classified as operating leases. Payments under operating leases were recognized on
a straight-line basis over the lease term and included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. From January 1, 2019, these leases were
recoghized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability.

The Company has measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or
market rate of variable lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market
rate result in a remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of
lease liabilities that is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current
liability in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K} Income Taxes

PIMCO is not subject to United States (U.S.) federal income tax asit is organized as alimited liability company
and is taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their
proportionate share of PIMCO's taxable income. PIMCO is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the
u.s.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

() Distributions
Although there is no contractua requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after

the end of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably
necessary or appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital,
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As
the Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the
Company’s management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public
entities, discounted cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the
Company’s historical and forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promotional

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandlated primarily at the exchange rate on the date
on which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with
a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income/loss. The
cumulative trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency
other than the U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statementsin conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts
of revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current
economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actua results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where
judgment is necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the
Company’s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to
the Company’s future earnings; and
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(e)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation
of such entities.

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future
events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision
where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is
expected to be reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r) Défarred Compensation
The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the
carrying value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred
compensation trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative
General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under
the administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to aobtain or fulfill a contract. The
Company is considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

() Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(3) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Leases

The Company adopted IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach;
therefore, any comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under 1AS 17 Leases
(IAS 17) and IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease (IFRIC 4). Under IFRS 16, the
Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for al leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the right-of-use assets.

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initially
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538
Revenue

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized on the date of initial application. Upon
adoption, the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings was $22.1 million. This adjustment relates to sales
commissions paid to third party intermediaries in connection with the sale of shares of affiliated mutual funds sold
without a front-end sales charge which were previously capitalized. These commission costs do not meet the
criteria of incremental costs of obtaining a contract and are, therefore, expensed as incurred under IFRS 15. Any
sales commissions that are recaptured through contingent deferred sales charges are recorded as other revenue.
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The most significant impact of the adoption to the Company relates to the presentation of certain distribution costs
gross within commission expense that were previously netted within investment advisory fees - pooled funds
revenue.

There was no other impact to revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018, as revenue recognition and timing
of revenue did not change as aresult of implementing IFRS 15.

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which fully replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement and provides a new approach on how to classify financia instruments
based on their cash flow characteristics and the business model under which they are managed. Furthermore, the
standard introduces a new forward-looking impairment model for debt instruments and provides new rules for
hedge accounting.

Financial assets such as the following categories included in IAS 39 are no longer available: held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available for sale. Rather, under IFRS 9, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") oninitial recognition based on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics.

This standard did not have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements. There was no impact to
opening retained earnings aresult of applying this standard.

(4) Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financia
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financia instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.6 million and
$32.5 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2019 and 2018.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust primarily consist of mutual funds
and equity securities, which are classified as Level 1 instruments for 2019 and 2018.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2019 or
2018.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(5) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed asincurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at a rate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. The contingent deferred sales charges
are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an applicable exemption applies such as if the
redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested dividends or capital gain distributions or
appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. Pl LLC incurred $51.4 million and $30.6 million
in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively, which is included in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generaly 1% if redeemed during the first year
following purchase for applicable PIMCO Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain PIMCO Funds Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares,
if theinitial purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $2.0 million and $3.5
million in contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively, which is included in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(6) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture,
fixtures, and Leasehold
software improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2017 $ 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
Additions 28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
Disposals (7,685,840) - - (7,685,840)
Depreciation and amortization (35,360,085) (9,864,613) - (45,224,698)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606
Additions 19,601,796 12,515,207 - 32,117,003
Disposals (358,633) - - (358,633)
Depreciation and amortization (25,869,200) (7,912,294) - (33,781,494)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 55,556,965 88,261,081 1,021,436 144,839,482

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $33.8 million and $45.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP for certain overhead, administrative services, and occupancy
costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These expenses
generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for finance, information technology, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $36.1 million and $50.4 million
during 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
aliability to be paid to AAM LP in connection with these services and payables to other affiliates in connection
with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of PIMCO over the
ordinary course of business, totaling $11.1 million as of December 31, 2019 and $10.7 million as of December 31,
2018.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2019
and 2018, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, PIMCO had outstanding short-term loans totaling
$228.0 million and $212.0 million, respectively, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2019 and 2018, PIMCO incurred $3.7
million and $2.3 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had $724.1
million (2018: $578.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $45.8 million and $41.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively, which are primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $8.6 million and $6.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses
and marketing and promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PIMCO Deutschland GmbH and its branches (collectively PDG), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH, who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PDG,
together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are subject to PIMCO’s Globa Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer
Pricing Policy) for shared management services that are provided by all PIMCO entities. Shared management
services provided include portfolio management, account management and business management and
administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared management services are allocated in accordance
with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2019, the revenue earned from third parties for shared management services
alocated to PDG was $40.3 million (2018: $36.9 million) greater than the revenue alocated from PDG and is
presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PDG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2019, costs alocated to PDG
were $33.3 million (2018: $30.8 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2019, the Company had a $9.8 million (2018: $6.5 million) receivable from and a $10.3
million (2018: $9.8 million) payable to PDG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and payables
to affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE, which expires in November 2020. The
facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 20bps (rate of 1.743% as of
December 31, 2019). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf of
its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2019 and 2018.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@ ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option
grant date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over
the related vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless
transaction unless the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan.
As disclosed in note 8(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred
Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If, at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less
than the exercise price of the option award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units
of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt
of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units are authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. As of December 31, 2019
and 2018, 153,400 and 143,858 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 48,876 M units have been
issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party
vauation was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend
yield was estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed
to M unit holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select
group of peers using the Merton Method. The expected life was cal culated based upon treating the three vesting
tranches (one third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.
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The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 14,519 15,528
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 17.9% 21.0%
Expected dividends 13.2% 11.8%
Risk free rate of return 2.4% 2.5%

A summary of the activity in 2019 and 2018 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the
M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options exercise
Vested Nonvested Totd price

Outstanding at

December 31, 2017 - 122,972 122,972 s 14,486
Changes during the year:

Granted - 49,595 49,595 15,528

Vested 19,084 (19,084) - -

Exercised (19,084) - (19,084) 23,594

Forfeited - (9,625) (9,625) 14,954
Outstanding at

December 31, 2018 - 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:

Granted - 39,751 39,751 14,519

Vested 23,492 (23,492 - -

Exercised (23,492 - (23,492) 16,178

Forfeited - (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at

December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 s 13,492
Exercisable as of

December 31, 2019 - - - -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2019 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $16,587
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.87 years.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $14,622 for 2019 and
$15,487 for 2018. M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 3,171 M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2019,
48,445 M units are owned by current employees and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM
LLC.

M unit options totaling 19,084 options vested during 2018. The M unit estimated fair values as of the vesting
dates for those options were less than the exercise price of each of those option awards. Therefore, as aresult of
the automatic cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued in 2018 and the entire Black-Scholes amount
was reallocated from the Class M unit option capital account to the Class A member capital account in the
accompanying consolidated statements of changesin capital.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $14.6 million and $15.8 million, respectively, and is
included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2019, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested
M unit option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through
December 31, 2024 is $20.1 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation under these programs was $1.3 billion and $1.2
billion for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $50.5 million and $52.6 million for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively. LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability
was $111.1 million and $106.4 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included within
current accrued compensation and noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP is the sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering PIMCO
employees. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and allows eligible
employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is subject to a maximum
dollar amount determined from time to time by the Interna Revenue Code. Employees are generally eligible
following the later of attainment of age 21 or on the first day of the month following the start date. After the
completion of one year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to
the Internal Revenue Code limits, contributed by the employees. The amount expensed by the Company related
to this plan during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $15.4 million and $13.3 million,
respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2),
301(8)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts
deferred under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as
directed by the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to
fund ongoing activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of
insolvency. Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability as
of December 31, 2019 and as December 31, 2018 was $688.7 million and $475.7 million, respectively, and are
included in interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz
SE determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines
the discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and amounted to $167 thousand in 2019 and $1.1 million in 2018 and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(9) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are asfollows:

Y ear ended December 31

2019 2018
Current:

Federal $ 11,770 6,278
State 2,022,507 856,534
Foreign 100,158,160 108,644,006
Total current 102,192,437 109,506,818

Deferred:
Foreign (3,371,142) (3,527,542)
Total deferred (3,371,142) (3,527,542)
Total provision $ 98,821,295 105,979,276

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, income taxes payable amounted to $36.7 million and $39.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, deferred tax assets amounted
to $21.4 million and $17.7 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2019, and 2018,
amounted to $61 thousand and $21 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2019 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset $ 29,146,041
Interest expense on lease liabilities 6,961,811
Variable lease cost 136,753
Short-term lease cost 671,976
Expenses of |eases of low value assets 2,192,653

For the year ended December 31, 2019, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $38.6 million.
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December 31, 2019 and 2018

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31.

2020 $ 37,196,686
2021 36,018,999
2022 34,857,028
2023 33,003,033
2024 19,746,963
Thereafter 124,158,997
Total operating lease payments 284,981,706
Lessimputed interest 34,206,718
Present value of lease liabilities $ 250,774,988

(11) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
bank deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually
material to the Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does
not require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for
each customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of
collection on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual
customer has been identified as at risk for collection.
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December 31, 2019 and 2018

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such ingtitutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aways have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2019.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial
obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company has access to AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as
discussed in note 7.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk istherisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions aso occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds
the Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material

investments in such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in
accordance with client guidelines or the funds governing documents.
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In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2019, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material
differences to members capital as of December 31, 2019 or the reported comprehensive income for the year
then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

PIMCO is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which arise in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently pending
and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financial position or results
of operations. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for provisions in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees asincurred.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. On December 31, 2019, Pl LLC made the election to
operate under the aternative standard set forth in Rule 15¢3-1. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital
of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was $57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand.

For the year ending December 31, 2018, Pl LLC was required to maintain minimum net capital that required that
the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15-to-1. At December 31,
2018, PI LLC had net capital of $49.7 million for regulatory purposes, which was $45.9 million in excess of its
required net capital of $3.8 million. PI LLC's aggregate indebtedness to net capita ratio was 1.14-to-1 as of
December 31, 2018.
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(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $535.5
thousand and $178.2 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which isincluded in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the
accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’ s interests in those vehicles:

December 31
2019 2018
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 493,340,219 $ 289,027,697
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 170,996 131,786

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(15) Acquisition

On January 2, 2019, PIMCO fully acquired the equity interest in Gurtin Municipal Bond Management, a
municipal bond manager. The acquisition alows the combined business to offer clients a more extensive and
enhanced suite of strategies and services, backed by broader muni credit research and quantitative analysis, and
enhanced technology. The Company paid cash consideration of $51.9 million, net of cash received. In allocating
the purchase price, the Company recorded goodwill of $30.9 million, which represents the amount of
consideration paid over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired including intangible assets with afair
value of $27.4 million as well as future contingent consideration. Intangible assets acquired consist of customer
relationships, developed technology, and trade name.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 24, 2020, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 27,775 vested on January 15, 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards were
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 9,732 M units.

On March 13, 2020, PIMCO granted 29,802 M unit options that have an exercise price of $17,806 per unit.

In early 2020, the existence of a hew coronavirus (“COVID-19") was confirmed which has since spread across a
significant number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. The Company
considers the emergence and spread of COVID-19 to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. Since the
balance sheet date, the Company has seen AuM outflows and negative returns, but it has not resulted in a material
adverse impact to the Company through April 24, 2020. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practicable at
this time to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of
any future impact.
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2020

30

986,012,126 103,886,238
21,253,078 2,239,224
535,339,566 56,403,377
294,683,703 31,047,875
47,193,259 4,972,282
22,516,326 2,372,320
19,524,499 2,057,101
17,624,264 1,856,892
57,060,877 6,011,934

2,001,207,698

210,847,243

129,963,779 13,692,984
196,429,588 20,695,821
627,465,500 66,109,765
30,865,176 3,251,955
28,829,715 3,037,499
15,134,281 1,594,548
46,813,772 4,932,299

1,075,501,811

113,314,871

3,076,709,509

324,162,114
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367,274,561 38,696,048
508,495,201 53,575,054
109,796,650 11,568,175
31,558,658 3,325,020
20,330,975 2,142,072
19,524,499 2,057,101
10,971,849 1,155,994

1,067,952,393

112,519,464

627,465,500 66,109,765
207,122,378 21,822,414
118,556,440 12,491,107

4,131,438 435,288

957,275,756

100,858,574

2,025,228,149

213,378,038

850,000 (216,025,072) (22,760,402)
150,000 1,275,468,926 134,383,406
58,608 34,906,516 3,677,751
153,629 29,612,176 3,119,939
(72,481,186) (7,636,618)

1,051,481,360

110,784,076

3,076,709,509

324,162,114
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2020

30

1,834,662,925

193,300,086

520,077,828 54,795,400
562,972,705 59,314,804
179,780,107 18,941,632
24,815,681 2,614,580

3,122,309, 246

328,966,502

956,315,329

100,757,383

388,669,270 40,950,194
299,485,496 31,553,792
112,039,220 11,804,452
81,856,277 8,624,377
54,365,575 5,727,957
22,662,089 2,387,678
20,748,079 2,186,018

1,936,141,335

203,991,851

1,186,167,911

124,974,651

(45,314, 186) (4,774,303)
(3,603,229) (379,636)
(968,046) (101,993)

1,136,282,450

47,304,597

119,718,719

4,984,012

1,088,977,853

(13,862,492)

114,734,707

(1,460,552)

1,075,115,361

113,274,154
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850,000 (683,902,349) (72,055,951) 150,000 1,288,040,853 135,707,984 48,876 28,952,832 3,050,470
788,445,427 83,070,610 241,963,009 25,493,223 58,569,417 6,170,874
(332,290,733) (35,010,152) (254,534,936) (26,817,801) (56,453,628) (5,947,954)
4,984,931 525,212
6,737,652 709,879 3,837,895 404,361
850,000 (216,025,072) (22,760,402) 150,000 1,275,468,926 134,383,406 58,608 34,906,516 3,677,751
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2020 30

153,400 32,501,945 3,433,887 (58,618,694) (6.176,066) 607,064,587 63,960,325
1,088,977,853 114,734,707
(643,279,297) (67,775,907)
4,984,931 525,212
7,595,778 800,291 7,595,778 800,291

(10,575,547) (1.,114,240)
(13,862,492) (1,460,552) (13,862,492) (1,460,552)
153,629 29,612,176 3,119,939 (72,481,186) (7.636,618) 1,051,481,360 110,784,076
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2020 30

1,088,977,853

114,734,707

7,448,098 784,732
36,134,904 3,807,173
3,603,229 379,636
968,046 101,993
12,114 1,276
38,377 4,043
15,010,423 1,581,498
(5,786,719) (609,689)
(80,637,974) (8,496,017)
(3,455,900) (364,114)
154,078,424 16,233,703
(24,879,984) (2,621,355)
277,275,703 29,213,768
(386,342) (40,705)

1,468,400,252

154,710,651

(3,592,110) (378,465)
(2,921,920) (307,853)
(18,000) (1,896)
(6,532,030) (688,215)
416,000,000 43,829,760

(644,000,000)
(643,279,297)

4,984,931
(18,255, 684)

(67,851,840)

(67,775,907)
525,212

(1,923,419)

(884,550,050)

(93,196,193)

(13,862,492) (1,460,552)
563,455,680 59,365,690
422,556,446 44,520,547

986,012,126

103,886,238
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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1940 15
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO 2020
2018 18 PIMCO PL
PIMCO PL
2018
PIMCO

2019 24 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO

PIMCO

2019 12 17 PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
2020
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 19 PIMCO
2019
PIMCO PIMCO

12 31
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2020 941,473,871.63 991 9,369
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2020 25 2,634

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2020 10 1,000 1,064 1,360

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2020 1,209 127,380

1989
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2020 100

2020 1,251

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Maples
Trustee Services Bermuda Limited
BMA
BMA
BMA
2001
BMA
BMA BMA
BMA
60
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Brown Brothers Harriman and Company
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60

45

30

60

45

30

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A
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2019 12
638
2019 12 1,759.69
BMA
Mutual Fund Company
Unit Trust Partnership
1981
2006
1972
BMA BMA
BMA 1969
BMA
BMA
BMA BMA
BMA
BMA BMA
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BMA
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BMA

BMA

132

2,000

1902
1883
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1992

BMA
2012

BMA
BMA
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1975 1925
1989
1989 2001
2009
2001
2009
1989
100
15
100 21
2009 2009
2009 2009
2035 31
2006
2007
1998 BMA CIS
BMA Institutional

funds Administered funds Standard funds
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200,000

300,000

100

500

LLC

50,000
BMA

BMA ERICA
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BMA
20
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100
IFRS
GAAP BMA
100,000
IFRS
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BMA BMA
BMA
IFRS GAAP BMA
BMA BMA BMA
BMA
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BMA
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BMA
BMA BMA
BMA
BMA
BMA
BMA
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BMA
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2019
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1966

2035 31

3,050
2,350
2,095
32,676

30

960.00
960.00
1,740.00
1,160.00
1,250.00
1,740

1,090.00
1,090.00
1,720.00
1,740.00
1,160.00
1,250.00
1,740
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real
Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods
indicated in the table below. These financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as
“financia statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31, 2020

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year ended
May 31, 2020

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2020, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financia statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of

each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2020, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their
cash flows, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 5, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in
capital, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financia statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the
financial position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financia statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts
for leasesin 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 24, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real
Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods
indicated in the table below. These financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as
“financia statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Tota Return Fund (1)
PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2019

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2019

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2019, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2019, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their
cash flows, and each of their financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 6, 2019
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